

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 


PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
AGENDA 


TUESDAY 
NOVEMBER 5, 2019 


  
5:00 P.M. – SPECIAL MEETING – CLOSED SESSION 


 
6:00 P.M. – SPECIAL MEETING - APPEAL  HEARING 


 
7:00 P.M. - REGULAR MEETING 


 
2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California 


 
  


Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  


Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 


 
Public Comment: The public is encouraged to address the City Council on any matter listed on the agenda or on 
any other matter within its jurisdiction subject to the rules of decorum described in Council Resolution 2019-03.  If you 
wish to address the City Council, please complete the gold card that is provided at the rear entrance to the Council 
Chambers and hand the card to the City Clerk.  City Council will hear public comment on items listed on the agenda 
during discussion of the matter and prior to a vote.  City Council will hear public comment on matters not listed on the 
agenda during Citizens to be Heard, Agenda Item 5.  
 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable  
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service.  Assisted listening devices are available 
at this meeting.  Ask the City Clerk if you desire to use this device. 
 
Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection at the Office of the City Clerk, City Hall, 2131 Pear Street during 
regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday – Thursday, and on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  
You may also contact the City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 
 
COUNCIL MEETINGS ARE TELEVISED LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 
p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  City Council 
meetings are video-streamed live on the City’s website, and remain archived on the site for five (5) years. 


Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds 
and declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public 
agencies in this State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of 
the law that their actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  
The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  
The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what 
is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on 
remaining informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created. 



http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/





 


Pinole City Council  
Agenda –November 5, 2019 
 


CALL AND NOTICE OF 
PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  


SPECIAL MEETING 
 AT 5:00 PM 


NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
 
 


 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 


TROOPS 
 
 
2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 
 
3. CLOSED SESSION   


 
A. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 


  Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54956.8 
  Property:  811 San Pablo Avenue 


Agency negotiator:  City Manager Fitzer and Assistant City Manager De La 
Rosa 


  Negotiating parties:  Housing Consortium of the East Bay (HCEB) 
  Under negotiation:  Price and terms 
 
4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT to the Special City Council Meeting of November 5, 2019 In 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  October 31 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







City Council 
Agenda – November 5, 2019 


CALL AND NOTICE OF 
PINOLE CITY COUNCIL 


SPECIAL MEETING 
 AT 6:00 PM 


NOVEMBER 5, 2019 


1. CALL TO ORDER


2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 


3. APPEAL & PUBLIC HEARING Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item
should fill out a speaker card prior to the completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card 
to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must 
disclose the communication on the record prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 


A. Consider An Appeal Of A Project Proposing A Personal Storage Facility At 
890 San Pablo Avenue [Action: Consider Appeal and Provide Direction] 


4. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of November 5, 2019 In
Remembrance of Amber Swartz.


I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  


POSTED:  October 31, 2019 at 4:00 P.M. 


_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 







City Council   
Agenda – November 5, 2019 
  


CALL AND NOTICE OF 
PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  


REGULAR MEETING 
 AT 7:00 PM 


NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 


TROOPS 
 
2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 
 
3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   


 


NO ADDITIONAL CLOSED SESSION SCHEDULED 
See 5:00 p.m. Special Meeting Closed Session Agenda 


 
 
4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 


 
A. Proclamations/Recognitions 


 
1.  Shelter in Place Day – November 6, 2019 
 


 
B. Presentations/Recognitions 


 
1. Certificate of Recognition for Dina Rosales, City Treasurer 


 
2. Wastewater Pollution Control Plant Update by Mike Warriner and Tamara 


Miller 
 
3.  Fire Department Update by Chief Kouns and Battalion Chief Wynkoop 


 
4. Quarterly Code Enforcement Update by Tamara Miller 


 
 


 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 







City Council   
Agenda – November 5, 2019 
  


Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meetings of October 22 and October 26, 2019 
 


B. Receive the October 12, 2019 – November 1, 2019 List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $959,246.36; the October 18, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of 
$419,936.98; and the November 1, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of $434,028.69. 


 
C. Authorizing An Application For SB 2 Planning Grant Program Funds [Action:  


Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T.Miller)] 
 
D. Authoring Submittal Of An Application For Per Capita Grant Funds [Action:  


Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller) 
 
E. Approve An Amendment To The Contract And Issue A Task Order For 4Leaf For 


Staff Augmentation For An Amount Not To Exceed $211,285 [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T.Miller)] 


 
F. Approve An Amendment To The Contract For A Task Order For M Group For 


Staff Augmentation For An Amount Not To Exceed $87,000 [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 


 
G. Placement Of Liens For Delinquent Unpaid Waste Collection Charges Falling 


Delinquent Between May & August 2019, Considered At An Administrative 
Hearing On October 3, 2019 [Action:  Adopt Resolution Per Staff 
Recommendation (Iopu)] 


 
H. Update To The Measure S 2014 Five-Year Funding Plan [Action:  Adopt 


Resolution Per Staff Recommendation (Fitzer)] 
 
I. Approve An Amendment To The Professional Services Agreement With 


Emergency Services Consulting International (ESCI) In An Amount Not To 
Exceed $10,500 To Perform Additional Analysis In The Fire Service Delivery 
Study [Action:  Adopt resolution per Staff Recommendation (Fitzer)] 
 


 
   
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 


 
A. Ordinance Adding Chapter 10.78 to the Pinole Municipal Code Restricting 


Oversized Vehicle Parking on City Streets [Action:  Conduct Public Hearing and 
Approve First Reading (Casher)] 


 
9. OLD BUSINESS 
 


A.       Provide Direction On Process And Activities Related To Becoming A Charter  
City   [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction (Mog)] 


 
 







City Council   
Agenda – November 5, 2019 
  


10. NEW BUSINESS 
None. 
 


11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 
A. Mayor Report 


1. Announcements 
 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


 
D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 


 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of November 19, 2019 In 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  October 31, 2019 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 







  
 
 
 
 


  


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT  3A 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: JUSTIN SHIU, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
  
SUBJECT: TO CONSIDER AN APPEAL OF A PROJECT PROPOSING A 


PERSONAL STORAGE FACILITY AT 890 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
To consider an appeal of a project proposing a personal storage facility at 890 San 
Pablo Avenue. 
 
Staff recommends that City Council confirm the Planning Commission approval of 
the proposed project at 890 San Pablo Avenue, and adopt a resolution approving 
Design Review, a Conditional Use Permit, and Tree Removal Permit for the 
proposed project. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Beau Reinberg, applicant, submitted an application for the development of a new 
Personal Storage Facility at 890 San Pablo Avenue (APN 402-240-014). The final 
design in the approved plans includes construction of a two-story office and self-
storage building and a three-story self-storage building totaling approximately 75,983 
square feet on a 1.34 acre lot at 890 San Pablo Avenue.  
 
On January 28, 2019, the applicant presented the initial design proposal for a 95,981 
square foot building containing only personal storage use to a Joint City Council and 
Planning Commission Study Session for comments on design and consistency with 
General Plan and Specific Plan goals. The applicant redesigned the project based 
on comments heard at the meeting and resubmitted a 75,983 square foot project 
including approximately 3,760 square feet of office/commercial space. 
 
On August 26, 2019, Planning Commission considered the project at a public 
hearing held on August 26, 2019. The proposed project requires Design Review for 
nonresidential developments, a Conditional Use Permit, and an associated Tree 
Removal Permit. The Planning Commission is the decision-making body for 


 







City Council Report 3A 
November 5, 2019  2 


approval of these types of entitlements. . The staff report containing the Planning 
Commission resolution, conditions of approval, and project plans is included as 
Attachment B. The Planning Commission approved the project with a 4-3 decision. 
Minutes from the meeting are included as Attachment C. A decision of the Planning 
Commission may be appealed to the City Council for review by a member of the City 
Council or a member of the public. A complete appeal application was submitted by 
a member of the public within the required ten-day appeal period. The Appeal 
Statement is included as Attachment D. 
 
The City Council may confirm, modify, or reverse the action of the Planning 
Commission, in whole or in part, or add or amend such conditions as it deems 
necessary. As provided in 17.10.070 of the Municipal Code, City Council shall state 
the basis for its action in taking the action on an appeal. 
 
During the appeal hearing, both appellant and the project applicant will have the 
opportunity to present their cases with greater detail at the City Council meeting for 
consideration.  
 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
In hearing the appeal, the City Council must decide whether to approve or deny 
Design Review, a Conditional Use Permit, and an associated Tree Removal Permit 
for the proposed project, with conditions as the Council determines necessary. 
 
Standards for Decision 
 
In considering Design Review for the project, the City Council must determine 
whether or not the following findings can be made for the proposed project, as 
conditioned:  


1.  The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan 
and complies with applicable zoning regulations, planned development, 
master plan or specific plan provisions, improvement standards, and other 
applicable standards and regulations adopted by the city; 


2.  The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or 
pedestrian transportation modes of circulation; and 


 3. The site layout (orientation and placement of buildings and parking areas), 
as well as the landscaping, lighting, and other development features, are 
compatible with and complement the existing surrounding environment 
and ultimate character of the area under the general plan and applicable 
specific plans. 


 
In considering the Conditional Use Permit for the project, the City Council must 
determine whether or not the following findings can be made for the proposed 
project, as conditioned:  
 







City Council Report 3A 
November 5, 2019  3 


1. The proposed use is consistent with the general plan, any applicable 
specific plans, and all applicable provisions of this title (Title 17 Zoning 
Code); 


2. The establishment, maintenance, or operation of the use applied for will 
not, under the circumstances of the particular case (location, size, design, 
and operating characteristics), be detrimental to the health, safety, peace, 
morals, comfort, or general welfare of persons residing or working in the 
neighborhood of such use or to the general welfare of the city; 


3. The site of the proposed use is physically suitable for the type, density and 
intensity of the use and related structures being proposed; and 


4. It will not be contrary to the specific intent clauses, development 
regulations, or performance standards established for the zoning district in 
which it is located. The proposed use and related structures are 
compatible with other land uses, transportation and service facilities in the 
vicinity. 


 
In considering the Tree Removal Permit for the project, the City Council must 
determine whether or not the following findings can be made for removal of the 
protected trees on the property: 


1. The burden to the applicant in preserving the protected tree(s) greatly 
outweighs the benefit to the public; and  


2. Preserving the protected tree(s) would severely reduce the scale or 
feasibility of the development.  


 
The City Council may only approve the entitlement, as conditioned, if it can make the 
above findings for each entitlement sought. Conversely, the City Council may only 
deny the requested entitlements if it is not able to make one or more of those 
findings. The Council’s decision must specifically identify which findings can or 
cannot be made, and there must be evidence in record to support that decision 
(which can include the application materials, materials prepared by staff, as well as 
public testimony during the Public Hearing). For example, if the City Council believes 
the project is not consistent with the General Plan, it should identify specific General 
Plan policies and/or goals with which the proposed project is inconsistent.  
 
  
Appellant’s Points of Appeal 
 
A summary of reasons the appellant submitted the appeal is shown below, and the 
full appeal statement is included in Attachment D. 
 


• The project does not meet the goals as set forth in Pinole’s General Plan and 
Three Corridors Specific Plan. 


• This project does not meet the economic development goals of Pinole. 
• This project adds no meaningful enhancement or revenue to our community. 
• This project will be very profitable for Extra Space Storage but brings in in 


little revenue for Pinole. 







City Council Report 3A 
November 5, 2019  4 


• Pinole may soon be perceived as the regional storage area for surrounding 
cities. 


• The proposed small office suites are not a true incubator model, and the 
concept does not guarantee they will be used by small businesses or be 
affordable alternatives. 


 
Some of the reasons for the appeal identified by the appellant are the same as, or 
very similar to, the required findings established by the Municipal Code for 
considering the project. The City Council’s decision must be based on its ability, or 
inability, to make the required findings, and not on any other factors.    
 
Information Regarding Land Use Considerations 
 
A discussion of points regarding land use, including the proposed project’s 
consistency with the General Plan, is below. This information also addresses some 
of the issues raised in the appeal.  
 


• The project is a light industrial use on a site designated Service Sub Area 
(SSA) in the General Plan. The SSA designation within the San Pablo 
Avenue area is intended to “preserve land for manufacturing and industrial 
uses, particularly ‘green industry’. A limited amount of general office, retail 
and residential uses may be permitted where they will not conflict with the 
principal industrial uses in the area” (Page 5.0-21, General Plan). Within the 
Service Sub-Area, the project site is located in the Office Industrial Mixed Use 
(OIMU) district. The Three Corridors Specific Plan  provides that the purpose 
of the OIMU district is “to allow a wide range of office and light industrial 
development. This designation is intended for office and light industrial uses 
with supporting retail and service uses” (Page 6.0-4, Three Corridors Specific 
Plan). 


• The project is compatible with Goal LU.1 and Policy LU.1.1 in contributing to 
the diversity of land uses along San Pablo Avenue and providing for the 
availability of commercial services and employment opportunities. San Pablo 
Avenue consists of a variety of land use designations, including medium to 
high density residential, residential mixed use, commercial mixed use, and 
office industrial mixed use, and the project proposes a use compatible with 
the portion of San Pablo Avenue intended for office and light industrial type 
uses. 


o GOAL LU.1 Preserve and enhance the natural resources, high-quality 
residential neighborhoods and commercial areas, and small-town 
(semi-rural) character of Pinole. 


o POLICY LU.1.1 Increase land use diversity along the San Pablo 
Avenue, Pinole Valley Road and Appian Way corridors; reduce 
residential density on large land holdings designated for Suburban 
Residential land use; and maintain other land use designations for a 
variety of residential, commercial, light industrial, recreational, open 
space and public purposes which (1) protect environmental resources; 







City Council Report 3A 
November 5, 2019  5 


(2) provide a mix of housing types, densities and tenure; (3) ensure 
that a variety of commercial and industrial goods, services and 
employment opportunities are available; and (4) offer a range of 
recreational and public facilities to meet the needs of residents. 


• The project would redevelop an underutilized lot to contribute new 
development with greater use and benefits along the portion of San Pablo 
Avenue that can accommodate office and light industrial development. 
Personal storage facilities are a light industrial use, and the property is 
designated for industrial uses. The project would add to the services provided 
and to the tax base, referenced in Goal LU.7 and Policy LU.7.1. The extent to 
which the project does this can be further deliberated through the City Council 
discussions.   


o GOAL LU.7 Balance housing and employment opportunities to reduce 
trips in and out of the region and encourage commercial development 
which maintains and enhances the quality of the city’s commercial 
areas, provides services for residents and broadens the tax base of the 
community to provide needed revenues for public services. 


o POLICY LU.7.1 Provide sufficient land for commercial and industrial 
uses to allow for development that provides basic goods and services 
to Pinole residents. 


o POLICY LU.7.2 Provide for economic development which (1) maintains 
the City’s ability to finance services and the construction and 
maintenance of public improvements; (2) offers local employment 
opportunities for Pinole residents to reduce inter-city commuting; and 
(3) assures the availability and diversity of resident-serving goods and 
services. 


• The project site, in the OIMU district, is intended for office and light industrial 
uses and has limitations on certain other uses, as provided in the land use 
description in the Three Corridors Specific Plan. Commercial and other 
support services may be provided but the predominant use of integrated 
developments is office and/or light industrial. Retail must be ancillary to 
industrial use and cannot exceed ten percent of total usable floor area. Public 
and quasi-public uses are permitted. 


o “The purpose of the Office Industrial Mixed Use District is to allow a 
wide range of office and light industrial development. This designation 
is intended for office and light industrial uses with supporting retail and 
service uses. Offices may be developed in an office park setting, but 
most office and light industrial development stands alone. Commercial 
and other support services may be integrated vertically and/or 
horizontally in this district, but the predominant use of integrated 
developments is office and/or light industrial. Retail must be ancillary to 
the principal industrial activity of the property and cannot exceed 10% 
of total usable floor area. Public and quasi-public uses (community 
centers, public library, city hall, parks and other community serving 
uses etc) are permitted.” (Page 6.0-4, Three Corridors Specific Plan). 







City Council Report 3A 
November 5, 2019  6 


• Personal storage facilities are prohibited in all zoning districts in the City, 
except for the OIMU district, in which they are a conditionally permitted use. 
OIMU designated properties are located only in the San Pablo Avenue 
corridor. Any proposals for future storage facilities would be subject to 
discretionary review, through the Conditional Use Permit process. 


 
In hearing the appeal, the City Council is requested to consider this staff report and 
all other evidence and testimony presented at the hearing.  The City Council may 
confirm, modify, or reverse the Planning Commission’s approval, or add or amend 
conditions as deemed necessary.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Approval or denial of the proposed project will have no direct fiscal impacts.  
 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 
A: Draft Resolution  
 
B:        Planning Commission Staff Report for August 26, 2019, excluding 
           Attachment B exhibits (under Resolution 19-11, not in appeal consideration). 
 
C: Draft Minutes, dated August 26, 2019  
 
D:       Appeal Statement  
 







 
RESOLUTION 19-xx 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF CONTRA 
COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, UPHOLDING THE PLANNING COMMISSION’S 
APPROVAL OF DESIGN REVIEW (DR18-13), CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (CUP 18-13), 
AND TREE REMOVAL PERMIT (TR19-03) TO CONSTRUCT A PERSONAL STORAGE 
FACILITY WITH OFFICE/COMMERCIAL SPACE AT 890 SAN PABLO AVENUE, APN:  402-
240-014 
 


WHEREAS, Beau Reinberg, applicant, filed an application for Design Review (DR18-
13), Conditional Use Permit (CUP 18-13), and Tree Removal Permit (TR19-03) with the City of 
Pinole to construct a personal storage facility with office/commercial space at 890 San Pablo 
Avenue (APN 402-240-014); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole conducted a duly noticed 
public hearing to consider application DR18-13, CUP 18-13, and TR19-03 for 890 San Pablo 
Avenue on August 26, 2019;  
 


  WHEREAS, the Planning Commission adopted Resolution 19-10 approving the Design 
Review, Conditional Use Permit, and Tree Removal Permit entitlement request;  


 
  WHEREAS, a member of the public submitted an appeal of the approval within the 


appeal period established in the Pinole Municipal Code; 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council is the appropriate authority to hear and take action on the 


appeal of the Planning Commission’s decision; 
 


 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Pinole has conducted a duly noticed public 
hearing to consider the appeal on November 5, 2019;  
 


  WHEREAS, after the close of public hearing, the City Council considered all public 
comments received both before and during the public hearing, the presentation by City staff, the 
staff report, and all other pertinent information regarding the proposed development;  
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council hereby finds that: 
 


1. The City Council has considered the full record before it, including but not limited to, 
such information as the staff report, testimony by staff, the appellant, the applicant, and 
the public, and other materials and evidence submitted or provided to the City Council. 
Furthermore the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated herein 
by reference. 


 
2. The project is consistent with the General Plan and Specific Plan in that the proposed 


project involves development of storage and limited commercial/office spaces in a 
location intended for industrial uses and limited retail and general office. 
 


3. The City Council explicitly adopts and incorporates all findings contained in Planning 
Commission Resolution 19-10 as though set forth herein in their entirety.  


 
  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole confirms the 


ATTACHMENT A 







 


approval of DR 18-13, CUP 18-13, and TR 19-03, as conditioned, as provided in Planning 
Commission Resolution 19-10. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the City Council of the City of Pinole held on 
the 5th day of November 2019, by the following vote: 


                                            
  
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
  
ABSTAIN:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 


                   
            


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted on 
the 5th day of November 2019.                          
 
 
 
________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
3391792.1  







ATTACHMENT B























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































  
 


                     August 26, 2019    1 


DRAFT 1 
 2 


MINUTES OF THE REGULAR 3 
PINOLE PLANNING COMMISSION 4 


 5 
August 26, 2019 6 


 7 
 8 
A.        CALL TO ORDER:    7:03 P.M. 9 
 10 
B. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 11 
 12 


Commissioners Present: Flashman, Kurrent, Moriarty, Murphy, Ojeda, Wong, 13 
Chair Brooks    14 


  15 
Commissioners Absent:   None  16 
 17 
Staff Present: Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City 18 


Engineer   19 
 Justin Shiu, Contract Planner  20 
  21 


C. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD 22 
 23 
 There were no citizens to be heard.   24 
 25 
D. CONSENT CALENDAR 26 
 27 
 There were no items on the Consent Calendar.   28 
            29 
 E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:   30 
 31 


1. Design Review 18-13, Conditional Use Permit 18-13, and Tree Removal 32 
Permit 19-03: Extra Space Storage  33 
 34 
Request:   Consideration of a design review, use permit, and tree 35 


removal permit request to construct a 2-story office/mini-36 
storage building and a 3-story mini-storage building 37 
totaling approximately 75,953 square feet on a 1.34 acre 38 
lot; and the Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 39 
prepared for the proposed development, pursuant to the 40 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).   41 


 42 
Applicant:   Beau Reinberg 43 
 44 
Location:   890 San Pablo Avenue (APN: 402-240-014)  45 


ATTACHMENT C 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    2 


Project Planner: Justin Shiu  1 
 2 


Contract Planner Justin Shiu provided a PowerPoint presentation of the staff report 3 
dated August 26, 2019.  The Planning Commission had been provided copies at 4 
the dais of a written request from the applicant requesting modification to one of the 5 
mitigation measures as part of the Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program.  6 
Rather than require monitoring of archaeological oversight, the applicant sought an 7 
archaeological survey prior to construction.  A dust mitigation plan had also been 8 
requested and had been included as a condition of approval, with the applicant 9 
required to work with the neighboring property owner in the preparation of the plan, 10 
and with submittal of the final plan to the City prior to the issuance of building 11 
permits.   12 
 13 
Staff also received late correspondence from the East Bay Municipal Utility District 14 
(EBMUD) requesting additional measures be included, as shown in another 15 
handout provided to the Planning Commission, which measures could be included 16 
as conditions of approval, pursuant to the language provided in the 17 
correspondence.   18 
 19 
Mr. Shiu recommended the Planning Commission take the following actions:   20 
 21 
• Adopt Resolution 19-10, conditionally approving the Design Review, Conditional 22 


Use Permit, and Tree Removal Permit request to construct and operate a mixed 23 
Office/Commercial and personal storage project at 890 San Pablo Avenue;  24 


 25 
• Adopt Resolution 19-11, approving the Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) 26 


prepared pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and the 27 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (MMRP), subject to the request 28 
from EBMUD and any modifications directed by the Planning Commission; and  29 


 30 
• Adopt the Erratum dated August 26, 2019 modifying the MND and MMPR and 31 


adopting written findings for the equivalent or more effective mitigation 32 
measures in the Erratum.   33 


 34 
Responding to the Commission, Mr. Shiu detailed the General Plan consistency 35 
and General Plan Policies as shown in the staff report.  He acknowledged staff had 36 
not analyzed the number of existing storage units in Pinole but the applicant should 37 
be able to clarify why more storage units were needed in the community.  In staff’s 38 
opinion, the facility would be an economic benefit to Pinole through the 39 
development of a commercial site.   40 
 41 
Mr. Shiu also provided additional details on the archaeological survey process as 42 
part of the MND and MMRP.  As reported, the initial input was that an 43 
archaeological monitor be on-site and there had been an inquiry whether or not 44 
archaeological studies had been done for the site.   45 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    3 


 1 
 2 
The environmental consultant had determined that an archaeological or tribe 3 
monitor would be appropriate although the applicant had decided to proceed with 4 
an archaeological survey prior to construction.  As part of the MMRP, the tribes 5 
would be informed of the construction schedule and offered the opportunity to have 6 
a monitor on-site at that time who would continue to prepare the archaeological 7 
survey.  The applicant would notify the tribe of the findings of the survey.   8 
 9 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 10 
 11 
BEAU REINBERG, 3159 Fee Fee Road, Suite 221, Brighton, MO, Applicant, 12 
provided an overview of the feedback from the Joint City Council/Planning 13 
Commission meeting held on January 28, 2019.  Based on that feedback, the 14 
applicants had revised the project to be more suitable for the City and the 15 
community.  He clarified the applicant had been in contact with members of the 16 
tribe and their lead archaeologist, who had requested the archaeological 17 
monitoring.  The intent was that those representatives would be present during the 18 
archaeological review survey.  He detailed the process for the archaeological 19 
survey and advised that if any archaeological artifacts were found, construction 20 
would immediately stop.    21 
 22 
Mr. Reinberg detailed the statistics for self-storage facilities and noted the site’s 23 
proximity to a business park and other businesses in the community.  The facility 24 
would include small office suites with Internet and phone access.  There were 25 
currently four existing self-storage facilities in Pinole, all of which were dated, and 26 
while about 90 percent were occupied, the City did not have a Class A facility that 27 
was safe with office suites.  He suggested this was a different product type from 28 
what self-storage facilities used to be.   29 
 30 
Mr. Reinberg walked through the building elevations and the use of different 31 
articulation, colors, and materials that would create the appearance of a 32 
commercial mixed-use property with a full drive-around Building A, and with two 33 
stories along the San Pablo Avenue elevation.  The facility would also enjoy 34 
controlled access and landscape screening around the buildings.  The layout of the 35 
floor plans for each of the buildings, highlights of the photo simulations, and details 36 
of the market analysis for self-storage facilities were all highlighted. 37 
 38 
In response to the Commission, Mr. Reinberg acknowledged the self-storage facility 39 
would not be a sales tax revenue generator.  There would be a small retail office at 40 
the front of the self-storage facility where customers may purchase small items 41 
associated with self-storage.  He acknowledged that solar panels could be 42 
considered and noted that operating expenses would be minimized with all lights to 43 
be operated through light-emitting diodes (LEDS) and motion sensors.  The project 44 
would be a low energy and limited traffic generator with low carbon emissions 45 
associated with its use.  While the signage for the building at this time did not 46 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    4 


identify the office suites, there would be a need to market those spaces.  1 
 2 
 3 
Mr. Reinberg also clarified the building colors and explained that a hill located at the 4 
rear of the property would remain for the most part with the project to be built into 5 
the hill via some excavation.  There would be three employees for the self-storage 6 
portion of the project.  The project cost had been estimated at a little over $7 7 
million.  He suggested that Pinole was underserved for Class A climate controlled 8 
facilities and commented that while the applicants had not yet worked with a 9 
Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) Certified Contractor, 10 
green building techniques would be considered.  As to whether additional 11 
permeable paving could be considered, he stated that permeable pavement on the 12 
driveways would be a maintenance challenge but made sense for the parking 13 
spaces.    14 
 15 
RAFAEL MENIS, Pinole, clarified he was speaking neither for nor against the 16 
proposal.  He understood a portion of the building would be set aside for 17 
commercial office space, although the floor plans had shown most of the units as 18 
units rather than office or storage spaces.  He asked whether the units would be 19 
interchangeable.   20 
 21 
THOMAS WELSH, Pinole, Crockett Premier Auto Body, stated over the last year 22 
he had begun discussions with the applicants and had met many times to walk his 23 
and the applicant’s properties.  He supported the project and anything that would 24 
potentially benefit and expand the City; however he remained concerned with dust 25 
and the issues it could create for his business which included a paint process for 26 
vehicles.  If the business was unable to paint customer’s vehicles it could not 27 
operate.  He wanted to be advised of any dust mitigation plan during construction.  28 
When informed there was a condition of approval requiring the applicant to work 29 
with Crockett Premier Auto Body on a dust mitigation plan, he thanked the Planning 30 
Commission for the inclusion of the condition.   31 
 32 
Mr. Reinberg clarified the first floor of the front building would allow the opportunity 33 
for some interchangeable movement of the storage and office spaces if a larger 34 
office space was needed, although that not been identified on the plans.  Given the 35 
way the building had been laid out he did not foresee the need for the office suites 36 
to be eliminated if proven to be unsuccessful in the future.    37 
 38 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  39 
 40 
The Planning Commission discussed Design Review 18-13, Conditional Use Permit 41 
18-13, and Tree Removal Permit 19-03, and offered the following comments and/or 42 
direction to staff:  43 
 44 


• Recommended an additional condition of approval that permeable pavement 45 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    5 


be provided for all of the parking spaces with the driveway area negotiable 1 
with porous concreate that could stand up to larger trucks.  Recognized the 2 
applicants’ desire to invest in Pinole and was hopeful more jobs would be 3 
created through the business.  (Moriarty)  4 


 5 
Mr. Shiu recommended a new Condition of Approval to read:  All parking spaces 6 
shall be paved with permeable paving and the drive aisles shall be paved with 7 
permeable paving as determined feasible by the City Engineer.   8 
 9 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer, clarified the Contra 10 
Costa Clean Water Program to which the City of Pinole was a signatory participant, 11 
and identified the expectations for permeable pavement and sometimes the 12 
collection of the underlining drainage.  She suggested compliance with the 13 
guidebook prepared by Contra Costa County was all that was necessary to ensure 14 
the project met those requirements.   15 
 16 


• Supported the project but encouraged the applicant to consider working with 17 
a LEED certified contractor, to be added as a condition of approval, and 18 
sought a broader conversation to require LEED certified buildings in Pinole.  19 
(Murphy)  20 


 21 
Chair Brooks noted that the applicant was not required to retain a LEED certified 22 
contractor pursuant to current building codes and it could not be a condition of 23 
approval but could be encouraged; and Commissioner Wong pointed out the 24 
building code regulations would change in 2020 and while LEED certification was 25 
not required at this time applicants/contractors were encouraged to follow those 26 
processes.   27 


 28 
• Recognized the project as superior versus the initial iteration presented to 29 


the City Council/Planning Commission in January but remained unconvinced 30 
the project met the findings of the General Plan Land Use and Economic 31 
Development Policies as detailed in the staff report.  Noted some members 32 
of the City Council also indicated the project did not meet the same findings 33 
and policies. Given those doubts and the question of whether additional 34 
storage units were necessary in Pinole, he was inclined to deny the project.  35 
Read into the record comments from the former Planning Manager related to 36 
the appropriateness of the project in Pinole.  (Kurrent) 37 
 38 


• Recognized the applicant’s testimony that existing self-storage facilities in 39 
Pinole were at 90 percent occupancy but questioned the need to add more 40 
units in the community.  Acknowledged the facility was considered a new 41 
type of self-storage facility and could be competition to existing facilities, 42 
which may incentivize those facilities to upgrade.  Recognized the applicant 43 
had spent a great deal of time to improve the design and make it more 44 
attractive.  (Wong) 45 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    6 


 1 
• Expressed concern allowing the process of designing the facility to proceed 2 


for a year to now suggest it did not meet the City’s General Plan.  Raised 3 
concern with the adequacy of the number of restrooms compared to the 4 
multiple office suites and if additional restroom facilities were needed it may 5 
impact sewer/water requirements.  (Ojeda) 6 


 7 
• Shared the concerns whether the project met the General Plan. Liked the 8 


inclusion of the office suites which may attract small businesses and 9 
telecommuters to the area but found the project had not followed Green 10 
Building design.  Encouraged the applicant to partner with a non-profit to 11 
determine a way to dedicate one or two storage units for people in the 12 
community who may be unhoused.  If that was done, would be more inclined 13 
to suggest the business would provide a service to the community.  14 
Generally found the building and landscaping to be attractive and liked the 15 
improvements made from the initial design.  (Flashman)  16 


 17 
• Suggested the commercial industry would benefit from storage in the subject 18 


area and the mix of office suites offered a more appealing project.    (Brooks)  19 
 20 
The Planning Commission discussed at length its concerns whether the project met 21 
the General Plan; whether another self-storage facility was warranted in Pinole, and 22 
whether the application should be denied allowing the applicant to appeal the 23 
Planning Commission’s decision to the City Council.   24 
 25 


 Chair Brooks allowed the applicant to again address the Planning Commission.   26 
 27 


Mr. Reinberg stated there had been four Councilmembers present during the Joint 28 
City Council/Planning Commission meeting in January.  Two Councilmembers 29 
questioned the project’s adherence to the General Plan and two Councilmembers 30 
were supportive of the use.  At that time, a much larger project had been proposed 31 
as compared to the current iteration.  Part of the reason for changing the use to 32 
office space had been to meet the conditions of the General Plan and address 33 
issues raised by the City Council and the public.  He detailed the average 34 
consumer size needed for self-storage facilities and emphasized the applicants 35 
would not have proposed the project in Pinole if the need was not apparent.  He 36 
reiterated the mixed use development along with the surrounding uses would only 37 
benefit the community and emphasized the project had been under contract for 38 
over a year and a half for a property that had been vacant for years.  He suggested 39 
the project was great for Pinole and he asked for support.   40 
 41 
Mr. Shiu detailed the options the Planning Commission may consider including 42 
approval, denial, or a continuance which would allow staff to consult with legal 43 
counsel.  Approval or denial of the project would involve the appeal process. 44 
  45 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    7 


Commissioner Kurrent offered a motion to Deny Design Review 18-13, Conditional 1 
Use Permit 18-13, and Tree Removal Permit 19-03:  Extra Space Storage, based 2 
on the fact the project did not meet the findings as shown in the August 26, 2019 3 
staff report.   4 
 5 
There was no second to the motion. 6 
 7 
Commissioner Ojeda offered a motion, seconded by Commissioner Moriarty (for 8 
discussion purposes) to approve Design Review 18-13, Conditional Use Permit 18-9 
13, and Tree Removal Permit 19-03:  Extra Space Storage.   10 
 11 
On the motion, Commissioner Kurrent reiterated his concerns including the 12 
concerns of the City Council during the January 28, 2019 Joint City 13 
Council/Planning Commission meeting; Commissioner Murphy opposed the motion 14 
on the floor; and Commissioner Flashman clarified with staff the City Council may 15 
call up the item subject to the applicable appeal fee.   16 
 17 
MOTION to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 19-10, with Exhibit A: 18 
Conditions of Approval, Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of 19 
Pinole, County of Contra Cosa, State of California, Approving a Design Review 20 
Request (DR 18-13), Conditional Use Permit (CUP 18-13), and Tree Removal 21 
Permit (TR 19-03) to Construct a Personal Storage Facility with Office/Commercial 22 
Space at 890 San Pablo Avenue, APN:  402-240-014.  The motion CARRIED by a 23 
Roll Call Vote: 24 


  25 
 MOTION:   Ojeda  SECONDED:  Moriarty        APPROVED: 4-26 


3 27 
              NOES:  Kurrent, Moriarty, Murphy 28 
                   29 


[Note:  Commissioner Moriarty was the second but voted no on the motion.  The 30 
second motion did not include the staff recommendation to include the request by 31 
EBMUD nor was action taken on the Erratum as recommended by staff.]  32 


 33 
MOTION to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 19-11, with Exhibit A: Initial 34 
Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration and Exhibit B:  Mitigation Monitoring and 35 
Reporting Program, Resolution of the Planning Commission of the City of Pinole, 36 
County of Contra Cosa, State of California, Approving the Initial Study/Mitigated 37 
Negative Declaration and Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program for Design 38 
Review Request (DR 18-13), Conditional Use Permit (CUP 18-13), and Tree 39 
Removal Permit (TR 19-03) to Construct a Personal Storage Facility with 40 
Office/Commercial Space at 890 San Pablo Avenue, APN:  402-240-014,   41 


  42 
 MOTION:   Ojeda  SECONDED:  Wong         APPROVED: 7-43 


0  44 
  45 
 Commissioner Brooks identified the 10-day appeal process in writing to the City 46 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    8 


Clerk.   1 
                   2 
F. OLD BUSINESS:  None  3 
   4 
G. NEW BUSINESS:  5 
 6 


1. Review of Draft Five Year Capital Improvement Plan for Consistency 7 
with the General Plan  8 


 9 
 10 


Request:   Review of the Draft 2019/20 – 2023/24 City Capital 11 
Improvement Plan for Consistency with the City’s 12 
General Plan  13 


 14 
Project Staff:   Tamara Miller  15 


 16 
 Development Services Director/City Engineer Tamara Miller provided a 17 


PowerPoint on the Draft 2019/20 to 2023/24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 18 
for consistency with the General Plan.  She recommended the Planning 19 
Commission adopt a resolution recommending the City Council find that the 20 
proposed Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) for Fiscal Years 2019/2020 through 21 
2023/2024 is in conformance with the City of Pinole General Plan and she 22 
responded to questions from the Planning Commission.     23 


 24 
 PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED 25 
 26 
 RAFAEL MENIS, Pinole, referenced the City Street Paving Equipment project 27 


and was pleased the City would be purchasing the equipment rather than 28 
outsourcing to private contractors.  He also spoke to the role of the Planning 29 
Commission versus the City Council and noted there were elements of the 30 
General Plan calling for assessment of fiscal impacts.  He pointed out the City 31 
Council’s role was to consider the City’s expenditures while the Planning 32 
Commission’s role was to focus on whether a project complied with the General 33 
Plan.   34 


 35 
 The Planning Commission discussed the Draft 2019/20 to 2023/24 Five-Year 36 


Capital Improvement Plan and offered the following comments and/or direction to 37 
staff: 38 


 39 
• Encouraged staff to provide the information prior to the meeting date to 40 


ensure proper due diligence and review of the information provided.  41 
(Moriarty)  42 
 43 


• Spoke to the responsibilities of the City Council versus the Planning 44 
Commission.  (Kurrent) 45 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    9 


 1 
MOTION to adopt Planning Commission Resolution 19-xx, Resolution of the 2 
Planning Commission of the City of Pinole, Recommending the City Council of the 3 
City of Pinole Find that the Proposed Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Years 4 
2019/2020 Through 2023/2024 is in Conformance with the City of Pinole General 5 
Plan.   6 
 7 


 MOTION:   Kurrent  SECONDED:  Flashman         APPROVED: 7-8 
0  9 


  10 
H. CITY PLANNER’S / COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT   11 
 12 


Ms. Miller reported a community meeting to discuss Making Waves, the potential 13 
development of an elementary school at the former Doctor’s Hospital, had been 14 
scheduled for August 28, 2019 at the Pinole Youth Center from 6:00 to 8:00 P.M.  15 
 16 
Commissioner Kurrent briefed the Planning Commission on a community meeting 17 
he had attended related to Making Waves and his opinion a full Environmental 18 
Impact Report (EIR) would be required.  He had also spoken with City staff to 19 
request that his email address be corrected to avoid missing important information.   20 
 21 
Chair Brooks reported he had been cautioned by the City Attorney if he attended 22 
the Making Waves community meeting to not indulge in any conversation with 23 
anyone for or against the project since it would be presented to the Planning 24 
Commission.   25 
 26 
Commissioner Ojeda clarified with the Planning Commission and staff the conflict of 27 
interest parameters for projects submitted to the Planning Commission, and when 28 
Planning Commissioners must recuse themselves from discussions. 29 
 30 
Commissioner Murphy reported there had been a discussion on the NextDoor 31 
website regarding concerns with wildfire in the Pinole Valley and he requested a 32 
future agenda item to discuss issues of safety and climate control.   33 
 34 
Chair Brooks expressed concern with the recent Planning Commission packet 35 
availability and urged notifications to be provided via new e-mails.   36 
 37 
When asked the status of the process for a new Planning Manager, Ms. Miller 38 
reported the City had gone through an active recruitment process to fill the position 39 
and had hired an outside consultant to assist in recruitment, which at this point had 40 
been unsuccessful, although recruitment efforts continued.  She also stated, when 41 
asked, that staff would provide appropriate materials to Commissioners for online 42 
training.  43 
 44 


I.         COMMUNICATIONS:  None  45 
 46 







  
 


                     August 26, 2019    10 


J. NEXT MEETING 1 
 2 


The next meeting of the Planning Commission will be a Regular Meeting to be 3 
held on Monday, September 23, 2019 at 7:00 P.M. 4 


 5 
K. ADJOURNMENT: 10:13 P.M   6 
 7 
 Transcribed by:  8 
 9 
 10 
 Sherri D. Lewis  11 
 Transcriber  12 
 13 







ATTACHMENT D











10/31/2019


1


Pinole-Hercules 
Water Pollution Control Plant 


Upgrade Project  


Update for


Pinole City Council


November 5, 2019


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
2


The pipeline and ductbank between the RAS and WAS pump 
stations was backfilled.


6B-2


1 of 170


REGULAR MEETING - 7:00 P.M.







10/31/2019


2


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
3


Repairs and upgrades to the maintenance building have 
started.


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
4


The primary sludge pump parts arrived and the pumps were 
upgraded and placed into service.


2 of 170







10/31/2019


3


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
5


Final grade preparation and concrete curbs at manholes are 
being installed. 


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
6


Condensate piping and handrails are being fabricated around 
the plant. 


3 of 170







10/31/2019


4


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
7


The treatment plant site prior to start of construction


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
8


The treatment plant site in September 2019


4 of 170







10/31/2019


5


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
9


New Plant Facilities now in operation


Headworks structure
Grit structure


New electrical building


Standby generator


Public works building


Gravity sludge thickener


Solids Handling Facilities


Influent sewer


New Aeration Basin


Secondary Clarifier 2


Effluent Pump Station


Primary Clarifier 3


Mixed Liquor facility


New chlorine contact basin


Primary Clarifier 2


Blower Facilities


Maintenance Facilities


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
10


New Secondary Clarifier 2, Primary Clarifier 3, chlorine 
contact and chemical basin in May 2019


5 of 170







10/31/2019


6


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
11


New Secondary Clarifier 2, Primary Clarifier 3, chlorine 
contact and chemical basin in August 2019


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
12


Planned focus for this quarter


Grading and paving


Blower building ventilation modifications


RAS pump modifications


Weir trough modifications


6 of 170







10/31/2019


7


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
13


Progress/payments on work to date


Billings for Work through July 2019 totals $43,614,386Billings for Work through July 2019 totals $43,614,386


 $-


 $5,000,000


 $10,000,000


 $15,000,000


 $20,000,000


 $25,000,000


 $30,000,000


 $35,000,000


 $40,000,000


 $45,000,000


 $50,000,000


Early $


Revised Schedule Late $


Actual Invoiced


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
14


Baseline Overview of Schedule Work Activities


Civil/Site Work, 
Yard pipe, 
Ductbank


ConstructionPre-
construction


Submit 
Shutdown 
Requests


Prepare 
Submittals


Submittal 
Review and 
Approval


Material 
Fabrication and 


Delivery


Headworks and 
Solids Handling


Permits


Headworks and 
Grit Facilities


Primary 
Clarifiers 1 & 2


Electrical 
Building


Outfall Pipeline


Influent Sewer


Solids Handling 
Facility


Testing and 
Commissioning


Temporary 
Bypass Piping 
and Pumping


Secondary 
Treatment


Aeration Basins


RAS/WAS 
Pumping 
Station


Secondary 
Clarifier 2


Blower Building


Primary Clarifier 
3


Maintenance 
Building


Testing and 
Commissioning


Temporary 
Bypass Piping 
and Pumping


Secondary 
Clarifier 1 and 


Chlorine 
Contact Basin 


Yard Piping and 
Ductbanks


Chlorine 
Contact Basin


Public Works 
Building


Sodium 
Hydroxide Area


Digester Gas 
Burner


Secondary 
Clarifier 1


Miscellaneous 
site work


Testing and 
Commissioning


Facility Start-up


Demobilization 
period


7 of 170







10/31/2019


8


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
15


Activities underway to date


Civil/Site Work, 
Yard pipe, 
Ductbank


ConstructionPre-
construction


Submit 
Shutdown 
Requests


Prepare 
Submittals


Submittal 
Review and 
Approval


Material 
Fabrication and 


Delivery


Headworks and 
Solids Handling


Permits


Headworks and 
Grit Facilities


Primary 
Clarifiers 1 & 2


Electrical 
Building


Outfall Pipeline


Influent Sewer


Solids Handling 
Facility


Testing and 
Commissioning


Temporary 
Bypass Piping 
and Pumping


Secondary 
Treatment


Aeration Basins


RAS/WAS 
Pumping 
Station


Secondary 
Clarifier 2


Blower Building


Primary Clarifier 
3


Maintenance 
Building


Testing and 
Commissioning


Temporary 
Bypass Piping 
and Pumping


Secondary 
Clarifier 1 and 


Chlorine 
Contact Basin 


Yard Piping and 
Ductbanks


Chlorine 
Contact Basin


Public Works 
Building


Sodium 
Hydroxide Area


Digester Gas 
Burner


Secondary 
Clarifier 1


Miscellaneous 
site work


Testing and 
Commissioning


Facility Start-up


Demobilization 
period


Work in Progress


Completed


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
16


Current Construction Contract Status


Original construction contract value $43,143,000


Change orders to date  (1 through 86) $1,820,026


Total current construction contract value (95% work complete to date) $44,963,026


Executed change orders total 4.2 percent of work completed to dateExecuted change orders total 4.2 percent of work completed to date


8 of 170







10/31/2019


9


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
17


Executed Change Orders


Number Subject Cost 
1 – 84 TOTAL Prior Change Orders 1 through 84 $ 1,773,258


85 Remove three existing pine trees at plant perimeter $       14,147
86 Blower building supply fan and louver $       32,621


87 Solids Handling Building Flow Instruments $       22,238


88 Air relief Valve at 18-inch RAS line $         2,664


Total This Period $      71,670


TOTAL Change Orders to Date $ 1,844,928


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
18


We currently have 67 potential change orders to be 
negotiated


TYPE Rough estimate
19 PCOs for existing utilities not shown on drawings $230,000
19 PCOs for structural design changes (additions and credits) $102,000
12 PCOs for additional demolition due to field conditions $37,000


2 PCOs for electrical design changes (additions and credits) $20,000
8 PCOs for miscellaneous design changes $52,000
7 PCOs for process design changes $29,000


TOTAL POTENTIAL COST $470,000


Costs and merit have not been verified. Additional costs may be incurred for work
not yet completed.  
Costs and merit have not been verified. Additional costs may be incurred for work
not yet completed.  


9 of 170







10/31/2019


10


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
19


Projection of Construction Contract Contingency At End of 
Project


Project Contingency (7% of original construction bid) $ 3,020,010


Change orders to date $ 1,844,928
Estimated PCOs currently in negotiation $    470,000
Remainder $705,082


Carollo Amendments $853,900
Total  ($148,818)


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
20


Four issues were reported in the last update


• Two issues have been resolved.


• Two formal claims remain unresolved but negotiations continue. 


• The project has not achieved substantial completion due to non-
functioning equipment.


• We are currently working towards Final and substantial completion 
simultaneously.


10 of 170







10/31/2019


11


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
21


Major work items to achieve Final Completion


Concrete flatwork (sidewalks and other surfaces) – Complete by mid September


Start of asphalt paving- mid September


Completion of asphalt paving- end of September


WAS pump modifications complete- end of September


Raise valve covers and manholes- mid October


Complete site lighting- end of October


Substantial and Final Completion- End of OctoberSubstantial and Final Completion- End of October


Fi
le


na
m


e.
pp


t/
22


QUESTIONS?


11 of 170







10/31/2019


1


Auto Aid Agreements: 


• Battalion 7: Auto Aid Agreement


• Possible AAA with Richmond Fire


6B-3


12 of 170







10/31/2019


2


Training: 


• Outside Training Classes


• In House Training: Fire Recruits


• Training Records          Target Solutions 


New Recruits:


• Two Recruit Firefighters:
Berkeley Academy on October 21, 2019
20-week academy
4-week in-house training.


13 of 170







10/31/2019


3


New Apparatus:  


• Fire Engine: mid-June 2020 


• Battalion Chief’s: 
In service in November 2019


• UTV: Spec'd out


14 of 170







10/31/2019


4


Fire Prevention:


• Not Every Hero Wears a Cape. Plan and Practice Your 
Escape! 


• Remember to change your batteries in your smoke and 
carbon monoxide detectors!!


• Completed 120 of our top identified most critical 
inspections. 


• Many businesses and housing units had not been 
inspected in several years. We found several without a 
current 5-year sprinkler test certification, missing 
identification markings, and access and exit issues. 


15 of 170







10/31/2019


5


Vegetation Management:


• All vegetation management has been
completed for this year. 


• Pre-emergent program for next year


• Working with Cal Fire hand crews to help


16 of 170







10/31/2019


6


Fire Station Work: 


Station 73:
A. Station Alert system: Completed as of June 


2019.


B. Kitchen update is completed. 


C. Dorm Door and Privacy Rooms: 
Construction start date Nov-January time 
frame. Contingent on staff relocation 
during construction.


Fire Station Work: 


Station 74:  
A. All sheet rock and previous roof leak 


repairs: February 2019


B. The backup generator will be repaired for 
a water leak. 


C. Station carpet removal and cement 
flooring polishing: scheduled 
December  2019


17 of 170







10/31/2019


7


Policy and Procedures:


• A new Policy and Procedures Manual: 
May 2019 


• Lexipol: Private company to build new
Policies and Procedures for public
agencies


18 of 170







10/31/2019


8


Technology: Record-keeping software


1. Operative IQ: 
Controlled Substance Software   program


2. Crew Sense Software: Staffing software


3. Target Solutions Software program


Fire Study: Results and discussion


I agree with the results / needs: we are 
understaffed, we just get by.  I believe 
we need to open Station 74 as stated in 
the report.


Going with Con Fire: This is the long term 
solution and something we need to look 
at very closely.  If not, staying as Pinole 
Fire Dept and opening Station 74.


19 of 170







10/31/2019


9


Unit Hour Utilization:  It means: How much 
time we are not available for service. 
We will not be able to provide on-time 
response to the 90% target based on the 
NFPA percentile-based performance 
standards we use.  Our call volume 
increases, on average, 3% a year, 
compounded.
While Pinole Engine 73 is not at 10 
percent UHU at this time, absent the 
addition of a second engine in Pinole, 
the math tells us we will exceed the 
threshold in a few years.


 Why are we going to medical calls?
› Closest Unit. 
› No local hospitals.


 Recent Fires:  
› Pinole experienced longer response 


times.


20 of 170







10/31/2019


1021 of 170







7A 


Pinole City Council  
Minutes – October 22, 2019 
Page 1 


CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 
MINUTES 


October 22, 2019 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 


TROOPS 
 
The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Murray called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order 6:12 p.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
 


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Councilmember  
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember  
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 
 
 B. STAFF PRESENT 
 
Michelle Fitzer, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 
Neil Gang, Police Chief 
 
 
City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on October 17, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. All legally 
required notice was provided.  
 
City Clerk Iopu announced that additional materials pertaining to Agenda Item 7G on the 
agenda were provided at the dais for the Council and copies were placed at the rear of the 
Chamber for the public. 
 
Following an inquiry to the Council, Council member Salimi reported a conflict on Item 7G and 
stated that he will abstain from voting on that item. 
 
 
3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.     
 
None. 
 
4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 


22 of 170







Pinole City Council  
Minutes – October 22, 2019 
Page 2 
 


matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 
Jeff Rubin, Pinole Historical Society President, announced November Pinole Historical Society 
Program is cancelled and will reconvene in February. Announced details of upcoming 
fundraising dinner event on November 2nd. 
 
Rafael Menis, resident of Pinole, stated that there is a group forming in the community 
regarding Making Waves charter school.  Made comments regarding the constitution, national 
politics and the importance of following the rule of law.   
 
Maureen Toms, resident of Pinole, spoke regarding the group in the community forming in 
opposition of the proposed Making Waves Charter School.  Discussed the decision-making 
paths that the group is addressing; City of Pinole Planning Commission/City Council and the 
Contra Costa County Office of Education. 
 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 


 
A. Proclamations  


 


 
B. Presentations / Recognitions 


1. Fire Department Update by Fire Chief Scott Kouns and Battalion Chief 
 Chris Wynkoop 


 
Item continued to the November 5, 2019 meeting.   


 


 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of October 1, 2019 
 


B. Receive the September 28, 2019 – October 11, 2019  List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $535,903.27 and the October 4, 2019 Payroll in the Amount of 
$406,859.78    
 


C. Census 2020 – Resolution of Support [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (Iopu)] 
 


D. Approve A Resolution Authorizing The Chief Of Police To Negotiate And The City 
Manager To Execute A Contract With Odin Systems Inc. In The Amount Of 
$264,050.29 In Measure S 2014 Funds For 18 Replacement Cameras, 2 New 
Cameras, Wireless Connections, 2 Replacement Servers, 9 ALPR Cameras, 1 
Server, Software, And Labor [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Gang)] 
 


E. Adopt A Resolution Approving A Second Amendment to the Exclusive 
Negotiating Agreement Between the City of Pinole and General Realty CE, LLC 


23 of 170







Pinole City Council  
Minutes – October 22, 2019 
Page 3 
 


for the Sale and Purchase of the Pinole Shores II Properties [Action: Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 
 


F. Approve Funding Allocation Of $94,000 From Measure S 2006 Fund Balance To 
Complete The Dorm Separation And Privacy Remodel Project At Fire Station 73 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Kouns)] 


 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Tave to approve Consent Calendar 
Items A – F. 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi  
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 
 


 
Consent Calendar item 7G was pulled for further discussion by Mayor Pro Tem Swearingen. 
 
 


G.  Approve An Amendment To The Professional Services  Agreement With Carollo 
Engineers For The Pinole Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant Upgrade Project 
In An Amount Not To Exceed $215,170 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (T. Miller)] 
 


 
Council members asked questions.  Staff addressed the questions. 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Tave to approve Consent Calendar 
Item G 
 
Vote:   Passed  4-0 


Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin  
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   Salimi 


 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 
None. 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 
 


A. Receive the FY 2018-19 Fourth Quarter Financial Report [Action:  Receive and File 
Report (A. Miller)] 


 
City Manager Fitzer gave the report in the absence of Finance Director Miller.   
 
Council members asked questions.  City Manager Fitzer responded to questions. 
 


24 of 170







Pinole City Council  
Minutes – October 22, 2019 
Page 4 
 


Council members made comments regarding the report. 
 
 
 B. Receive And Review A Report From HdL Econsolutions On The City’s Market  
  Analytics, Void Analysis And Community Profile Reports [Action:  Discuss and  
  Provide Direction (De La Rosa)] 
 
Item continued to the November 19th meeting. 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 
 A. Discussion Regarding Options For Filling Vacant City Treasurer Position   
  [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction (Casher)] 
 
City Attorney Casher introduced the item and provided background information. 


Council members asked questions.  Staff addressed questions.  


 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Martinez-Rubin to Appoint An Interim 
Treasurer No Later Than December 17th, 2019 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murray, Swearingen, Tave, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
 


 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  


 
A. Mayor Report 


1. Announcements 
 
Mayor Murray reported on Mayor’s Conference that he attended in Antioch.   Gave details of 
presentation by CCTA regarding EV charging stations. 
 


B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


 
Council member Salimi reported on the League of CA Cities Conference that he attended and 
that it was a very positive experience.  Gave details and impressions of John Martin 
presentation regarding the future of America.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin announced having attended a Community College District 
Board presentation.  Stated that high student debts keep millennials from achieving their goals.  
Announced Contra Costa County, FTTT Promise, a free tuition program opportunity. 
 
Council member Tave reported on a resource guide for taxes for voters as a resource ahead of 
election; Cocotax.org. Highlighted considerations for voters with regard to potential tax 
measures.   
 


25 of 170







Pinole City Council  
Minutes – October 22, 2019 
Page 5 
 


Council member Tave and Mayor Murray reported on safety subcommittee meeting with West 
Contra County School District.  Gave summary of meeting and announced future agenda item 
to discuss SRO program. 
 
Mayor Murray announced upcoming WCCIMA meeting, where they will review candidates for 
new Executive Director. 
 
Mayor Murray announced West County Mayor’s Meeting, on Thursday, October 24 at 8:30 a.m. 
at Pinole City Council Chambers. 
 


C. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin requested update on Eucalyptus trees and what is the plan for 
that area. Consensus given. 
 
City Manager Fitzer provided information regarding the request.  Stated that staff has been 
working on it, has an update and will be presenting it to Council. 
 
Council member Tave requested a future agenda item to discuss an “Adopt-A- Highway” 
program. 
  
City Manager Fitzer stated that this item is already being worked on and there will be an update 
to Council provided by staff. 
 
Council member Tave requested an item to discuss protocol regarding the use of City of Pinole 
letterhead.  Consensus not given. 
 


D. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 
City Manager Fitzer reported her attendance at the League of CA Cities Conference. 


  
F. City Attorney Report 


 
City Attorney Casher reported his attendance at the League of CA Cities Conference.  Attended 
meetings as the East Bay Representative for Legal Advocacy Committee and FPPC 
Subcommittee member. 
 
Announced upcoming Municipal Code Subcommittee meeting on Monday, October 28, 2019. 
 
City Attorney Casher made statements honoring his uncle, Melchor “Porsing” Sabaot, a 
dedicated public servant in the Philippines who recently passed away. 
 
 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of November 5, 2019 in 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
At 7:52 p.m., Mayor Murray adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting of 
November 5, 2019 In Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
 


26 of 170







Pinole City Council  
Minutes – October 22, 2019 
Page 6 
 


I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  October 10, 2019 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
  


27 of 170







7A1 


Pinole City Council  
Minutes – October 26, 2019 
Page 1 


CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 
MINUTES 


October 26, 2019 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 


TROOPS 
 


Mayor Murray called the meeting to order at 9:22 a.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL 


 
A. COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT 


 
Peter Murray, Mayor 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor Pro Tem  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member, arrived at 9:23 a.m. 
 


B. STAFF PRESENT 
 
Michelle Fitzer, City Manager 
 
 
3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 
 A. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 


Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54957 
Title:  City Manager  


 
 
4. RECONVENE TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF THE CLOSED SESSION 


 
No reportable action. 
 
5. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting on November 5, 2019 In 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
At 3:32 p.m Mayor Murray adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting on 
November 5, 2019 In Remembrance of Amber Swartz 
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
 
________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk  
 
Approved by City Council:  


28 of 170







29 of 170







30 of 170







31 of 170







32 of 170







33 of 170







34 of 170







35 of 170







36 of 170







37 of 170







38 of 170







39 of 170







40 of 170







41 of 170







42 of 170







43 of 170







44 of 170







45 of 170







46 of 170







47 of 170







48 of 170







49 of 170







50 of 170







51 of 170







52 of 170







   
 CITY COUNCIL   


REPORT                                                                       7C 
                                                                                                                                          
                                                            
                                                             


 
 
 


 


DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 


TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: MICHAEL P. LAUGHLIN, AICP, INTERIM PLANNING MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR SB 2 PLANNING GRANT 


PROGRAM FUNDS 
 
 


RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing an application for 
and receipt of SB2 Planning Grant (PGP) funds. 
 


BACKGROUND 
 
In 2017, Governor Brown signed a 15-bill housing package to address the state’s 
housing shortage and high housing costs. The approval included the Building Homes 
and Jobs Act (SB 2), which established a $75 recording fee on real estate documents to 
increase the supply of affordable homes in California. Because the number of real 
estate transactions recorded in each county will vary from year to year, the revenues 
collected will fluctuate.  
 
The state is currently in Year 1 (2019) of the funding cycle which is intended to fund 
planning grants and homelessness programs. Year 2 (2020) and beyond will include 
funding for locally administered affordable housing (70% of funds) and State 
Administered affordable housing (30% of funds).  
 
The Year 1 funding is intended to provide funding and technical assistance to all local 
governments in California to help cities and counties prepare, adopt, and implement 
plans and process improvements that streamline housing approvals and accelerate 
housing production. 
 
The current SB 2 PGP funding is considered “over the counter” and is not competitive. 
The City of Pinole has been allocated $160,000 in funding which will be disbursed upon 
the completion of an application which must include a resolution from the City Council 
authorizing the submittal and receipt of the funds (Attachment A). A report to the state 
for the use of funds will be required. 
 
Article III, Section 300 of the PGP Guidelines sets forth the eligible activities and uses of 


53 of 170







City Council Meeting 7C 
November 5, 2019  2 
 
SB 2 PGP funding. Eligible activities must demonstrate a nexus to accelerating housing 
production and may include updates to general plans,  
community plans, specific plans, local planning related to implementation of sustainable 
communities strategies, or local coastal plans, and local process improvements that 
improve and expedite local planning.   
 
The threshold requirements to apply for the grant include:  
 


• Having an HCD-compliant Housing Element,  
• Have submitted a recent Annual Progress report,  
• Demonstrate a nexus to accelerating housing production, and  
• Demonstrate that the applicant promotes development consistent with State 


Planning Priorities (Government Code Section 65041.1) or other planning 
priorities.  


 
The City meets all the threshold requirements and can submit an application to receive 
funding. 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The City of Pinole is currently experiencing strong interest in development sites within 
the Three Corridors Specific Plan area (Appian Way, San Pablo Avenue and Pinole 
Valley Road). One of the primary issues staff is encountering is that the Specific Plan 
and associated General Plan Environmental Impact Report (EIR) are now about 10 
years old.  In addition, the Specific Plan provides only general guidance for land uses 
and project design. As a result, developers don’t have clear direction on how to design 
their projects, with preliminary submittals that often require staff, community or decision 
maker recommended design modifications before moving forward.  If projects are 
submitted, a costly and time consuming environmental review process (typically the 
preparation of a Mitigated Negative Declaration and associated studies) is required prior 
to the project being brought forward for review.  
 
In addition to the need to augment the Three Corridors Specific Plan and associated 
environmental documents, Senate Bill (SB) 35 has placed the onus on cities to create 
“objective design standards” for developers.  Without objective design standards, 
developers can invoke SB 35 streamlining if their project includes the provision of at 
least 10% affordable housing (which the Pinole Municipal Code requires).  If 
streamlining is invoked, the developer only has to comply with current requirements in 
the General Plan, Specific Plan and zoning and any design standards in place when the 
application is made, which provides the jurisdiction with little opportunity to request 
design changes. The City Council may be familiar with the Valco Mall redevelopment 
SB 35 streamlining request, which limited the City of Cupertino’s ability to modify plans 
for a large mixed-use project.  
 
Staff is proposing a project that would create a stand-alone Three Corridors Specific 
Plan guidance document that would provide objective design standards and additional 


54 of 170







City Council Meeting 7C 
November 5, 2019  3 
 
implementation guidance.  In addition to this document, an associated environmental 
document would be prepared that would allow for less project by project CEQA review, 
specifically for projects that include housing. While staff finds benefit to a 
comprehensive Specific Plan update, the associated time and costs would far exceed 
the grant amount. Staff anticipates that the cost of this effort will exceed the $160,000. 
The City collects 0.5% of project value as part of the overall fees paid for development 
projects specifically for plan updating, and these funds will be used to augment the 
project budget as needed.   
 
Once the grant is given by the state, staff would prepare an RFP to request consultant 
services.  Staff would work on the scope of services and negotiate with the chosen 
consultant to achieve a project that will meet the proposed budget of $230,000. A 
review of the budget may be required after the scope of services is agreed upon to 
ensure that we have the right size project to fit the allowable budget. The consultant 
contract, finalized scope of services, and any budget changes will be brought to Council 
for review.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The grant would have a net positive fiscal impact to the City of $160,000.  However, an 
estimated $70,000 from the fees specifically for plan updating would be required to 
augment to the grant amount to complete the stand-alone Three Corridors Specific Plan 
guidance document.  
 


ATTACHMENTS 
 
A: Resolution  
B:       Draft Application  


 


55 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 


 


RESOLUTION NO.    
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
AUTHORIZING APPLICATION FOR AND RECEIPT OF  


SB 2 PLANNING GRANT PROGRAM (PGP) FUNDS 
 


1. Background.  


 
 WHEREAS, The State of California, Department of Housing and Community 
Development (Department) has issued a Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA) dated 
March 28, 2019 for its Planning Grants Program (PGP). 
 
 WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Pinole desires to submit a project 
application for the PGP Program to accelerate the production of housing and will 
submit a 2019 PGP grant application as described in the Planning Grants Program 
NOFA and SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines released by the Department for 
the PGP Program.  
 


WHEREAS, The Department is authorized to provide up to $123 million under 
the SB 2 Planning Grants Program from the Building Homes and Jobs Trust Fund for 
assistance to local governments, as described in Health and Safety Code section 
50470 et seq. (Chapter 364, Statutes of 2017(SB 2)) related to the PGP Program. 
 
2. Order.  


WHEREAS, The City Council hereby authorizes and directs staff to apply for 
and submit to the Department the 2019 Planning Grants Program application released 
March 28, 2019 in the amount of $160,000. 


 
  WHEREAS, In connection with the PGP grant, if the application is approved by 
the Department, the City Manager is authorized to enter into, execute, and deliver a 
State of California Agreement (Standard Agreement) for the amount of $160,000, and 
any and all other documents required or deemed necessary or appropriate to evidence 
and secure the PGP grant, the City of Pinole’s obligations related thereto, and all 
amendments thereto (collectively, the “PGP Grant Documents”), subject to any 
changes in form or technical language approved by the City Manager and City 
Attorney. 
 
  WHEREAS, The City of Pinole shall be subject to the terms and conditions as 
specified in the Standard Agreement, the SB 2 Planning Grants Program Guidelines, 
and any applicable PGP guidelines published by the Department.  Funds are to be 
used for allowable expenditures as specifically identified in the Standard Agreement.  
The application in full is incorporated as part of the Standard Agreement.  Any and all 
activities funded, information provided, and timelines represented in the application will 
be enforceable through the executed Standard Agreement.  The City Council hereby 
agrees to use the funds for eligible uses in the manner represented in the application 


56 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 


 


as approved by the Department, and 2019 Planning Grants Program Application. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Pinole City Council does 
hereby authorize the City Manager to execute the City of Pinole Planning Grants 
Program application, the PGP Grant Documents, and any amendments thereto, subject 
to any changes in form or technical language approved by the City Manager and City 
Attorney, on behalf of the City of Pinole as required by the Department for receipt of the 
PGP Grant. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 5th day of November 2019 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
NOES:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
ABSENT:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
ABSTAIN:    COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 5th day of November 2019  


 
 


______________________________________  
Heather Iopu, CMC  
City Clerk 
 


57 of 170







ATTACHMENT B


58 of 170







59 of 170







60 of 170







61 of 170







62 of 170







63 of 170







64 of 170







65 of 170







66 of 170







   


  CITY COUNCIL 
  REPORT 7D 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 


TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/CITY 
ENGINEER 


 
SUBJECT: AUTHORING SUBMITTAL OF AN APPLICATION FOR PER CAPITA 


GRANT FUNDS 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution authorizing submittal of 
an application for per capita grant funds. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This program originates from Proposition 68, placed on the ballot via Senate Bill 5 
(DeLeon, Chapter 852, statutes of 2017), and approved by voters on June 5, 2018.  
Known as The California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and 
Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018, it created a per capita grant funding program.  
Funds for the program were appropriated via State Budget item 3790-101-6088(b).    
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
Below is the description from the attached Procedural Guide: 
 


• General Per Capita Program: $185,000,000 
 


Funds are available for local park rehabilitation, creation, and improvement grants to 
local governments on a per capita basis. Grant recipients are encouraged to utilize 
awards to rehabilitate existing infrastructure and to address deficiencies in 
neighborhoods lacking access to the outdoors (PRC §80061(a)). 
 


• Eligible Recipients (PRC §80062) 
 


Sixty percent (60%) of the General Per Capita funds are allocated to the following 
entities based on population. The minimum allocation is $200,000. 


 Cities 
 Eligible Districts, other than a regional park district, regional park and open-


space districts, and regional open-space districts 


67 of 170







City Council Report 7D 
November 5, 2019  2 


Forty percent (40%) of the General Per Capita funds are allocated to the following 
entities based on population. The minimum allocation is $400,000. 


 Counties 
 Regional park districts, regional park and open space districts, and regional 


open space districts 
 


• Eligible Projects 
 


 Projects must be for recreational purposes, either acquisition or 
development. 


 Up to 5% of the allocation may be used for a community access projects. 
 Multiple projects may be completed under one contract; each project 


requires a separate application packet. 
 A project can only have one location. One project that serves several parks 


is not permitted. 
 Grantees are encouraged to partner with other grantees on projects.  


 
• Match 


 


Projects not serving a “severely disadvantaged community” (median household 
income less than 60% of the statewide average) require a 20% match. 
 


• No Supplanting 
 


Grantees must use Per Capita grant funds to supplement existing expenditures, 
rather than replace them.  Similarly, if a project has been approved by the 
governing body, and a funding source has been identified, Per Capita funds 
cannot be swapped in as a new funding source unless the prior funding source is 
applied to another recreational capital project. 
 


• Grant Process 
 


GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD: July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2022 
 


1. Resolution: Grantee passes one resolution approving the filing of all 
applications associated with the contract, and forwards a copy to OGALS. 
 


2. Application Packet(s) (submit no later than January 31, 2020): The grantee 
defines the project scope(s) and amount of grant funds needed for each 
project. As projects are identified, the grantee submits individual application 
packet(s) to OGALS. OGALS reviews each application packet and sends a 
letter of approval to the grantee or requests additional information. 
 


3. Contract: Must be signed and submitted no later than March 31, 2020. 
 


4. Payments and end of grant performance period: Grantee requests payments 
for eligible costs.  


68 of 170







City Council Report 7D 
November 5, 2019  3 


5. Accounting and Audit: Department of Parks and Recreation’s Audits Office 
may conduct an audit. The grantee is required to retain all project records for 
five years following issuance of the final grant payment or project termination, 
whichever is later.  


 
• Authorizing Resolution 


 


Grantee passes one resolution approving the filing of all applications associated 
with the contract, and forwards a copy to OGALS. The Authorizing Resolution 
provided may be reformatted; however, the language provided in the resolution 
must remain unchanged. Resolution items 4, 5, 7, 8 and 9 are all required by 
Proposition 68. 
 
 
At this time staff is anticipating an application submittal for the Fowler House Re-use 
at 2548 Charles Avenue.  As Council is aware, a Fowler House Re-Use Committee 
has been established, which includes representatives from the Community.  
Meetings have occurred to discuss the potential recreational uses for this location.  
The two (2) uses of interest are bocce ball courts or expanded parking for the Senior 
Center and Fernandez Park.   
 
The attached resolution is required now.  The application for grant funds will be 
submitted by the deadline of January 31, 2020.  The submitted project will depend 
on the use recommended by the Subcommittee and approved by the City Council.  
In addition, if it is determined that a different or additional project is appropriate, an 
application will be submitted for that project as well. 
 
Our FY 2019/20 Capital Improvement Plan includes a funding allocation of $200,000 
for this project.  These funds would be used for the matching requirement of the 
grant.  As stated above, a match is required for our community and the grant funds 
cannot be used to supplant existing funding sources. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Submittal of the resolution will make us eligible to receive a per capita grant 
allocation of at least $200,000. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A: Resolution 
B: Procedural Guide for the California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal 


Protection and Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018 Per Capita Program 
 


69 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 


RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX              
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
APPROVING APPLICATION(S) FOR PER CAPITA GRANT FUNDS 


WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated 
the responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of 
the Per Capita Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures governing 
application(s); and 


WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 
Recreation require the grantee’s Governing Body to certify by resolution the approval of 
project application(s) before submission of said applications to the State; and 


WHEREAS, the grantee will enter into a contract with the State of California to 
complete project(s); 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Pinole hereby: 
1. Approves the filing of project application(s) for Per Capita program grant 


project(s); and 
2. Certifies that said grantee has or will have available, prior to commencement of 


project work utilizing Per Capita funding, sufficient funds to complete the 
project(s); and 


3. Certifies that the grantee has or will have sufficient funds to operate and maintain 
the project(s), and 


4. Certifies that all projects proposed will be consistent with the park and recreation 
element of the City of Pinole’s general or recreation plan (PRC §80063(a)), and 


5. Certifies that these funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, local 
revenues in existence as of June 5, 2018 (PRC §80062(d)), and 


6. Certifies that it will comply with the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor 
Code, and 


7. (PRC §80001(b)(8)(A-G)) To the extent practicable, as identified in the 
“Presidential Memorandum--Promoting Diversity and Inclusion in Our National 
Parks, National Forests, and Other Public Lands and Waters,” dated January 12, 
2017, the City of Pinole will consider a range of actions that include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 
(A) Conducting active outreach to diverse populations, particularly minority, low- 
income, and disabled populations and tribal communities, to increase awareness 
within those communities and the public generally about specific programs and 
opportunities. 
(B) Mentoring new environmental, outdoor recreation, and conservation leaders 
to increase diverse representation across these areas. 
(C) Creating new partnerships with state, local, tribal, private, and nonprofit 
organizations to expand access for diverse populations. 


 
 
70 of 170







Resolution No. 2019- 
November 5, 2019 
Page 2 
 


 


(D) Identifying and implementing improvements to existing programs to increase 
visitation and access by diverse populations, particularly minority, low-income, 
and disabled populations and tribal communities. 
(E) Expanding the use of multilingual and culturally appropriate materials in 
public communications and educational strategies, including through social 
media strategies, as appropriate, that target diverse populations. 
(F) Developing or expanding coordinated efforts to promote youth engagement 
and empowerment, including fostering new partnerships with diversity-serving 
and youth-serving organizations, urban areas, and programs. 
(G) Identifying possible staff liaisons to diverse populations. 


8. Agrees that to the extent practicable, the project(s) will provide workforce 
education and training, contractor and job opportunities for disadvantaged 
communities (PRC §80001(b)(5)). 


9. Certifies that the grantee shall not reduce the amount of funding otherwise 
available to be spent on parks or other projects eligible for funds under this 
division in its jurisdiction. A one-time allocation of other funding that has been 
expended for parks or other projects, but which is not available on an ongoing 
basis, shall not be considered when calculating a recipient’s annual 
expenditures. (PRC §80062(d)). 


10. Certifies that the grantee has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General 
Provisions contained in the contract shown in the Procedural Guide; and 


11. Delegates the authority to the Development Services Director, or designee to 
conduct all negotiations, sign and submit all documents, including, but not 
limited to applications, agreements, amendments, and payment requests, 
which may be necessary for the completion of the grant scope(s); and 


12. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 


 
Approved and adopted the 5th day of November, 2019. 


 
AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:    


NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 5th day of November 2019. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


71 of 170







Procedural Guide  
for the  


 
California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, 


and Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018  
 


PER CAPITA PROGRAM 
March 2019 Draft 


 


           
 


State of California 
The Natural Resources Agency 


Department of Parks and Recreation 
Office of Grants and Local Services (OGALS) 


 
 


“Creating Community through People, Parks, and Programs” 
 


Send Application and correspondence to: 
 


Street Address for Overnight Mail: 
 


Calif. Dept. of Parks and Recreation 
Office of Grants and Local Services 


1416 Ninth Street, Room 918 
Sacramento, CA  95814 


Mailing Address: 
 


Calif. Dept. of Parks and Recreation 
Office of Grants and Local Services 


P.O. Box 942896 
Sacramento, CA  94296-0001 


Phone: (916) 653-7423 


Website:  www.parks.ca.gov/grants 
 


 
  


2018-2019 California State Budget, Chapter 29 
Budget Item 3790-101-6088 (b) - $185,000,000 shall be available for the Local 
Park Rehabilitation, Creation in Urban Areas Program, consistent with subdivision 
(a) of Section 80061 of the Public Resources Code. 
 
 
 72 of 170



http://www.parks.ca.gov/grants

fitzer

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT B







2 
 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 


 


 
Department Mission 


The mission of the California Department of Parks and Recreation is to provide for the 
health, inspiration, and education of the people of California by helping to preserve the 
state’s extraordinary biological diversity, protecting its most valued natural and cultural 
resources, and creating opportunities for high-quality outdoor recreation. 
 


Community Engagement Division Mission 
The mission of the Community Engagement Division is to encourage healthy 
communities by connecting people to parks, supporting innovative recreational 
opportunities, embracing diversity, fostering inclusivity, and delivering superior customer 
service, with integrity for the enrichment of all. 
 


The Office of Grants and Local Services Mission 
The mission of the Office of Grants and Local Services is to address California’s diverse 
recreational, cultural and historical resource needs by developing grant programs, 
administering funds, offering technical assistance, building partnerships and providing 
leadership through quality customer service. 
 
 


OGALS VISION GOALS 
 


To Be: 


 A leader among park and recreation professionals. 


 Proactive in anticipating public park and recreation needs and how new legislation 
and grant programs could best meet these needs. 


 Honest, knowledgeable and experienced grant administration facilitators. 


 Sensitive to local concerns while mindful of prevailing laws, rules and regulations. 


 Perceptive to opportunities for partnerships, growth and renewal where few existed 
before. 


 Committed to providing quality customer service in every interaction and 
transaction. 


 Responsive to the needs of applicants, grantees, nonprofit organizations, local 
governments, legislative members, and department employees. 


73 of 170







3 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
PER CAPITA PROGRAM DESCRIPTION ........................................................................ 4 


Eligible Recipients (PRC §80062) ...................................................................................... 4 


Eligible Projects ................................................................................................................. 5 


GRANT PROCESS ............................................................................................................ 5 


Authorizing Resolution ....................................................................................................... 6 


APPLICATION SECTION .................................................................................................. 9 


Application Packet Checklist ............................................................................................ 10 


Per Capita Project Application Form ................................................................................ 11 
Per Capita Match ............................................................................................................. 12 
Acquisition Projects .......................................................................................................... 13 


Eligible Acquisition Costs ................................................................................................. 14 
Development Projects ...................................................................................................... 15 
Community Access Projects ............................................................................................ 17 


Development Project Scope/Cost Estimate Form ............................................................ 19 
Community Access Project Scope/Cost Estimate Form................................................... 20 


Funding Sources Form ..................................................................................................... 21 
CEQA Compliance Certification ....................................................................................... 22 
Land Tenure ..................................................................................................................... 23 


Site Plan   ....................................................................................................................... 25 
Sub-leases or Agreements ............................................................................................... 25 


Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction and Carbon Sequestration. ................................ 25 


SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS ............................................................................................ 26 


Status Report ................................................................................................................... 26 
Bond Act Sign .................................................................................................................. 28 


Deed Restriction .............................................................................................................. 29 


GRANT PAYMENT SECTION ......................................................................................... 33 


Payment Request Form ................................................................................................... 34 


Grant Expenditure Form ................................................................................................... 35 
Project Completion Packet ............................................................................................... 36 


PER CAPITA CONTRACT .............................................................................................. 41 


ACCOUNTING AND AUDITS .......................................................................................... 48 


Accounting Requirements ................................................................................................ 48 


Audit Checklist ................................................................................................................. 49 


REFERENCES ................................................................................................................ 50 


Public Resources Code relating to the Per Capita program ............................................. 50 
Allocation Tables .............................................................................................................. 53 


DEFINITIONS .................................................................................................................. 53 


Words and terms shown in SMALL CAPS are found in the definitions section. 


74 of 170







4 
 


Per Capita Program Description 
 
Background 
This program originates from Proposition 68, placed on the ballot via Senate Bill 5 
(DeLeon, Chapter 852, statutes of 2017), and approved by voters on June 5, 2018. 
Funds for the program were appropriated via State Budget item 3790-101-6088(b). 
Legislative program information is found in the Public Resources Code (PRC) beginning 
at §80000 (see page 50). 


General Per Capita Program: $185,000,000 
Funds are available for local park rehabilitation, creation, and improvement grants to 
local governments on a per capita basis. Grant recipients are encouraged to utilize 
awards to rehabilitate existing infrastructure and to address deficiencies in 
neighborhoods lacking access to the outdoors (PRC §80061(a)). 
 
Urban County Per Capita: $13,875,000 
Additional funds are available for Per Capita grants to cities and districts in urbanized 
counties (a county with a population of 500,000 or more) providing park and recreation 
services within jurisdictions of 200,000 or less in population. An entity eligible to receive 
funds under this subdivision shall also be eligible to receive funds available under the 
General Per Capita Program (PRC §80061(b)). 
 
Eligible Recipients (PRC §80062) 
Sixty percent (60%) of the General Per Capita funds are allocated to the following 
entities based on population. The minimum allocation is $200,000. 


 Cities 
 Eligible Districts, other than a regional park district, regional park and open-space 


districts, and regional open-space districts1 
Forty percent (40%) of the General Per Capita funds are allocated to the following 
entities based on population. The minimum allocation is $400,000. 


 Counties 
 Regional park districts, regional park and open space districts, and regional open 


space districts 
 
Allocations 
Specific entities eligible for funding and their allocations can be found beginning on 
page 53. 
 
                                            
1  For purposes of this chapter, “district” means any regional park district, regional park and open-
space district, or regional open-space district formed pursuant to Article 3 (commencing with 
§5500) of Chapter 3 of Division 5, any recreation and park district formed pursuant to Chapter 4 
(commencing with §5780) of Division 5, or any authority formed pursuant to Division 26 
(commencing with §35100). With respect to any community or unincorporated region that is not 
included within a district, and in which no city or county provides parks or recreational areas or 
facilities, “district” also means any other entity, including, but not limited to, a district operating 
multiple-use parklands pursuant to Division 20 (commencing with §71000) of the Water Code. 
 


75 of 170







5 
 


Eligible Projects 
 PROJECTS must be for recreational purposes, either acquisition or DEVELOPMENT. Do 


not submit combined acquisition and development projects. 
 Up to 5% of the allocation may be used for a COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECT (PRC 


§80008(c)(1)). 
 Multiple PROJECTS may be completed under one contract; each PROJECT requires a 


separate APPLICATION PACKET.  
 A PROJECT can only have one location. One PROJECT that serves several parks is not 


permitted. 
 GRANTEES are encouraged to partner with other GRANTEES on PROJECTS (PRC 


§80063(b)). See page 53 for information on allocation transfers. 
 
Match 
PROJECTS not serving a “severely disadvantaged community” (median household income 
less than 60% of the statewide average) require a 20% match (see page 12) (PRC 
§80061(c)). 
 
No Supplanting 
GRANTEES must use Per Capita grant funds to supplement existing expenditures, rather 
than replace them (PRC §80062(d)). For example, a GRANTEE has a budget for 
recreational capital expenditures of $500,000 per year, and is receiving a $200,000 
allocation under the Per Capita program. The budget cannot be reduced to $300,000, 
with the Per Capita funds making up the difference. 
Similarly, if a PROJECT has been approved by the governing body, and a funding source 
has been identified, Per Capita funds cannot be swapped in as a new funding source 
unless the prior funding source is applied to another recreational capital project.  
GRANTEES should keep all documents indicating intent to use Per Capita grant funds for 
PROJECTS. 
 
Grant Process 
GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD: July 1, 2018 – June 30, 2022 


1. Resolution (submit no later than November 1, 2019): GRANTEE passes one 
resolution approving the filing of all applications associated with the contract, and 
forwards a copy to OGALS. 


2. APPLICATION PACKET(s) (submit no later than January 31, 2020): The GRANTEE 
defines the PROJECT SCOPE(s) and amount of grant funds needed for each PROJECT. 
As PROJECTS are identified, the GRANTEE submits individual APPLICATION PACKET(s) to 
OGALS. OGALS reviews each APPLICATION PACKET and sends a letter of approval to the 
GRANTEE or requests additional information. 


3. Contract (sign and submit no later than March 31, 2020): OGALS will forward a 
contract to the GRANTEE once a PROJECT APPLICATION PACKET has been approved. 
OGALS will encumber the total amount of approved applications. As GRANTEE submits 
additional APPLICATION PACKETS, OGALS will amend the contract to reflect the total 
PROJECT amount for all approved APPLICATION PACKETS, up to the allocation amount.  


76 of 170







6 
 


a. The contract section, beginning on page 41, includes a sample contract.  
b. The GRANTEE must return the contract signed by the AUTHORIZED 


REPRESENTATIVE to OGALS no later than March 31, 2020.   
c. OGALS returns a copy of the fully executed contract to the GRANTEE.   


4. Payments and end of GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD: GRANTEE requests payments 
for ELIGIBLE COSTS. The grant payments section, beginning on page 33, provides 
payment request instructions and forms.  
a. The GRANTEE may request payments after each PROJECT is approved by OGALS.  
b. The GRANTEE completes PROJECT SCOPE(s) no later than December 31, 2021. 
c. The GRANTEE sends PROJECT COMPLETION PACKET(s) to OGALS no later than 


March 31, 2022. 
d. OGALS processes the final payment request after each PROJECT is complete as 


documented by the GRANTEE in the PROJECT COMPLETION PACKET, and as verified 
by OGALS by conducting a site inspection.   


5. Accounting and Audit: DPR’s Audits Office may conduct an audit. The GRANTEE is 
required to retain all PROJECT records for five years following issuance of the final 
GRANT payment or PROJECT termination, whichever is later. The Accounting and 
Audit Section, beginning on page 48, provides directions and an Audit Checklist 
for DPR audit and accounting requirements.   


 
 
Authorizing Resolution 
GRANTEE passes one resolution approving the filing of all applications associated with 
the contract, and forwards a copy to OGALS.  
The Authorizing Resolution on the following page may be reformatted; however, the 
language provided in the resolution must remain unchanged.  
The Authorizing Resolution serves two purposes: 


1. It is the means by which the GRANTEE’S Governing Body agrees to the terms of 
the contract; it provides confirmation that the GRANTEE has the funding to 
complete, operate and maintain PROJECTS associated with the contract. 


2. Designates a position title to represent the Governing Body on all matters 
regarding PROJECTS associated with the contract. The incumbent in this position 
is referred to as the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE. 


Resolution items 4, 5, 7, 8 and 9 are all required by Proposition 68.  
Complete the highlighted areas of the Authorizing Resolution. The AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE can delegate signatory authority to other individuals (by position title) 
either in entirety or for particular documents. This may be included in item 11 of the 
resolution, or the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE may submit a letter (on letterhead) or 
email to OGALS delegating authority. 
 
  


77 of 170







7 
 


Resolution Form 
Resolution No: __________________ 


  
RESOLUTION OF THE (Title of Governing Body/City Council, Board of Supervisors) 


OF (City, County, or District) APPROVING APPLICATION(S) FOR PER CAPITA 
GRANT FUNDS 


 
 WHEREAS, the State Department of Parks and Recreation has been delegated 
the responsibility by the Legislature of the State of California for the administration of 
the Per Capita Grant Program, setting up necessary procedures governing 
application(s); and 
 
 WHEREAS, said procedures established by the State Department of Parks and 
Recreation require the grantee’s Governing Body to certify by resolution the approval of 
project application(s) before submission of said applications to the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the grantee will enter into a contract with the State of California to 
complete project(s); 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the (grantee’s governing body) 
hereby: 
1. Approves the filing of project application(s) for Per Capita program grant 


project(s); and 
2. Certifies that said grantee has or will have available, prior to commencement of 


project work utilizing Per Capita funding, sufficient funds to complete the 
project(s); and  


3. Certifies that the grantee has or will have sufficient funds to operate and maintain 
the project(s), and 


4. Certifies that all projects proposed will be consistent with the park and recreation 
element of the [city/county/district’s] general or recreation plan (PRC §80063(a)), 
and 


5. Certifies that these funds will be used to supplement, not supplant, local 
revenues in existence as of June 5, 2018 (PRC §80062(d)), and 


6. Certifies that it will comply with the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor 
Code, and 


7. (PRC §80001(b)(8)(A-G)) To the extent practicable, as identified in the 
“Presidential Memorandum--Promoting Diversity and Inclusion in Our National 
Parks, National Forests, and Other Public Lands and Waters,” dated January 12, 
2017, the [city/county/district] will consider a range of actions that include, but are 
not limited to, the following: 
(A) Conducting active outreach to diverse populations, particularly minority, low-
income, and disabled populations and tribal communities, to increase awareness 
within those communities and the public generally about specific programs and 
opportunities. 
(B) Mentoring new environmental, outdoor recreation, and conservation leaders 
to increase diverse representation across these areas. 


78 of 170







8 
 


(C) Creating new partnerships with state, local, tribal, private, and nonprofit 
organizations to expand access for diverse populations. 
(D) Identifying and implementing improvements to existing programs to increase 
visitation and access by diverse populations, particularly minority, low-income, 
and disabled populations and tribal communities. 
(E) Expanding the use of multilingual and culturally appropriate materials in 
public communications and educational strategies, including through social 
media strategies, as appropriate, that target diverse populations. 
(F) Developing or expanding coordinated efforts to promote youth engagement 
and empowerment, including fostering new partnerships with diversity-serving 
and youth-serving organizations, urban areas, and programs. 
(G) Identifying possible staff liaisons to diverse populations. 


8. Agrees that to the extent practicable, the project(s) will provide workforce 
education and training, contractor and job opportunities for disadvantaged 
communities (PRC §80001(b)(5)). 


9. Certifies that the grantee shall not reduce the amount of funding otherwise 
available to be spent on parks or other projects eligible for funds under this 
division in its jurisdiction. A one-time allocation of other funding that has been 
expended for parks or other projects, but which is not available on an ongoing 
basis, shall not be considered when calculating a recipient’s annual 
expenditures. (PRC §80062(d)). 


10. Certifies that the grantee has reviewed, understands, and agrees to the General 
Provisions contained in the contract shown in the Procedural Guide; and 


11. Delegates the authority to the (designated position, not name of person 
occupying position), or designee to conduct all negotiations, sign and submit all 
documents, including, but not limited to applications, agreements, amendments,  
and payment requests, which may be necessary for the completion of the grant 
scope(s); and 


12. Agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, 
rules, regulations and guidelines. 


 
Approved and adopted the _____day of ______________, 20_______. 
 
I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution Number_____ was duly 
adopted by the (grantee’s governing body) following a roll call vote: 
 
Ayes: ____    
Noes: ____ 
Absent: ____ 
 
 
(Clerk) 


 


79 of 170







9 
 


Application Section 
 GRANTEE may submit multiple APPLICATION PACKETS.   


 Separate APPLICATION PACKETS are required for each PROJECT site. 


 Provide all APPLICATION PACKET items in the order shown in the following checklist. 


 Submitted documents need not contain “wet” signatures; but the GRANTEE must 
keep all original signed documents. 


 If submitting hard copies, number all pages of the APPLICATION PACKET. 


 GRANTEES are encouraged to submit documents digitally, as .pdf files. E-mail each 
APPLICATION PACKET item to the PROJECT OFFICER as a separate digital file, labeled 
as the application item. 


OGALS will send a contract to the GRANTEE once a PROJECT APPLICATION PACKET has been 
approved. OGALS will encumber the total amount of approved applications. As GRANTEE 
submits additional applications, OGALS will amend the contract to reflect the total PROJECT 
amount for all approved applications, up to the allocation amount.  
Any costs incurred prior to finalizing the contract are at the GRANTEE’S own risk. 


 
 
  


80 of 170







10 
 


 
State of California – The Natural Resources Agency 


DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 
 


Application Packet Checklist 
 
GRANTEES must complete the checklist below and submit it with the APPLICATION PACKET. 
An APPLICATION PACKET is not complete unless all items on the checklist are submitted. 
Each PROJECT requires its own APPLICATION PACKET. 
  


C
heck if 


included 


C
heck if not 
applicable 


 
Application Item 


 
Procedural 


Guide  
Page # 


 


 
Check when 


signed by 
AUTHORIZED 


REPRESENTATIVE 
 


 
Application 


Packet 
Page # 


  Application Packet Checklist Pg. 10  Pg._____ 


  Application Pg. 11  Pg._____ 


  Development Project Scope/Cost 
Estimate, or Pg. 19  Pg._____ 


  Community Access Project 
Scope/Cost Estimate, or Pg. 20  Pg._____ 


  Acquisition Requirements Pg. 13  Pg._____ 


  Funding Sources Form Pg. 21  Pg._____ 


  Per Capita Match Calculator Pg. 12  Pg._____ 


  CEQA Compliance Certification Pg. 22  Pg._____ 


  Land Tenure documentation Pg. 23  Pg._____ 


  Sub-Leases or Agreements Pg. 25  Pg._____ 


  Site Plan Pg. 25  Pg._____ 


  GHG Emissions Reduction 
Worksheet Pg. 25  Pg._____ 


 
 
 


 
 


 
 


  


81 of 170







11 
 


 
State of California – The Natural Resources Agency 


DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 
 


Per Capita Project Application Form 
   


PROJECT NAME  REQUESTED GRANT AMOUNT 
$                                
MATCH AMOUNT (if project is not serving a 
severely disadvantaged community) 
$ 


PROJECT SITE NAME and PHYSICAL ADDRESS where 
PROJECT is located (including zip code) 


LAND TENURE ( all that apply) (not 
required for COMMUNITY ACCESS 
PROJECTS) 


  Owned in fee simple by GRANTEE 
 


  Available (or will be available) under 
a _________ year lease or easement 


NEAREST CROSS STREET 


(Check one) Project is for Acquisition ☐   Development  ☐   Community Access  ☐    


COUNTY OF PROJECT LOCATION 


GRANTEE NAME AND MAILING ADDRESS  


AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AS SHOWN IN RESOLUTION  
 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name (typed or printed) and Title Email address Phone 
 
GRANT CONTACT - For administration of grant (if different from AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE) 
 
 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
Name (typed or printed) and Title Email address Phone 
 
 
GRANT SCOPE:  I represent and warrant that this APPLICATION PACKET describes the intended use of the 
requested GRANT to complete the items listed in the attached Grant Scope/Cost Estimate Form or 
acquisition documentation.  I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the State of California, that 
the information contained in this APPLICATION PACKET, including required attachments, is accurate. 


                            ____________________ 
Signature of AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE as shown in Resolution                             Date 
 
Print Name   
 
Title   


 
 


82 of 170







12 
 


Per Capita Match 
PROJECTS that do not serve severely disadvantaged communities (median household 
income less than 60% of the statewide average) must include 20% match from the 
GRANTEE (PRC §80061(c)). 
Costs incurred to provide match must be eligible costs. 
Visit the website parksforcalifornia.org/percapita and follow the instructions; submit the 
report with the APPLICATION PACKET. 


Eligible match sources 
 Federal funds 


 Local funds 


 Private funds 


 IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES 


 Volunteer labor 
Ineligible match source 


 State funds 
 


  


83 of 170







13 
 


Acquisition Projects 
 
Acquisition Requirements  
1. Purchase price cannot exceed the appraised value, even if the GRANTEE is willing to 


pay the difference. 
2. Land cannot be acquired through eminent domain. 
3. Associated acquisition costs, such as appraisals, escrow fees, title insurance, etc., 


combined must be less than 25% of the PROJECT costs. 
4. A deed restriction must be recorded on the property after the acquisition is complete. 
5. Land must be open to the public for recreational purposes within three years from 


the date the final payment is issued by the State Controller’s Office (SCO).2  
6. GRANTEE must provide Title Insurance. 
7. PROJECTS must be consistent with the park and recreation element of the 


[city/county/district’s] general or recreation plan (PRC §80063(b)). 
8. Per Capita funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, local revenues in 


existence as of June 5, 2018 (PRC §80062(d)). 
 
Acquisition Grant Scope/Cost Estimate 
Provide the following information on a document signed by the AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE: 
 A brief description, for example, “Acquisition of approximately (enter total acreage 


to be acquired) for the development of ___ park by (enter date no later than three 
years from the date final payment is issued by the SCO).” 


 Estimated total costs for land and relocation 
 Estimated total costs other than the purchase price and relocation costs, such as 


appraisals, escrow fees, title insurance fees, deed restriction recordation costs 
 
Acquisition Documentation 
For each parcel to be acquired, submit the following documents: 
1. An appraisal conducted within the last twelve months 
2. A separate letter from an independent third party, AG rated appraiser certified by 


the California Office of Real Estate Appraisers stating the appraisal was reviewed, 
and was completed using acceptable methods 


3. County Assessor’s parcel map, showing parcel number and parcel to be acquired 
4. Estimated value of each parcel to be acquired with a description of how that value 


was determined (such as the listed price on MLS, in-house estimation, website 
evaluation, assessed value) 


5. Acreage of each parcel to be acquired 
6. A description of any encumbrances that will remain on the property, such as 


grazing, timber, mineral rights or easements 
7. A brief description of the intended recreational use of the land with the estimated 


date by which the site will be open to the public for recreational purposes 


                                            
2 Grantees will see this date on their project complete letter – “A final payment was issued by the SCO on 
xx/xx/20xx” 


84 of 170







14 
 


8. A letter from the seller indicating a willingness to enter into negotiations to sell the 
property, and indicating the seller’s understanding that the State cannot participate 
in acquisitions for more than the appraised value 


For easement acquisitions, in addition to the requirements above, provide: 


9. A copy of the proposed easement guaranteeing the authority to use the property for 
the purposes specified in the application. 


For relocation costs, in addition to the requirements above, provide: 


10. A letter signed by the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, listing the relocation costs for 
each displaced tenant, certifying that the relocation amount does not exceed the 
maximum allowed pursuant to Government Code §§7260-7277. 


Eligible Acquisition Costs 
 IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES – see accounting rules for more information (page 


48) 
 GRANT administration and accounting  
 Public meetings/focus groups/design workshop  
 Appraisals, escrow fees, surveying, other costs associated with acquisition 
 Cost of land 


 
Ineligible Acquisition Costs – Cannot be charged to the grant 


 Acquisitions to fulfill any mitigation requirements imposed by law (PRC §80020) 
 Land acquired outside state 
 Costs incurred outside the grant performance period 
 Development costs 
 Acquisitions for less than fee title 


 
 
  


85 of 170







15 
 


Development Projects 
 
Development Project Requirements 
1. PROJECTS must be consistent with the park and recreation element of the GRANTEE’S 


general or recreation plan (PRC §80063(b)). 
2. Per Capita funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, local revenues in 


existence as of June 5, 2018 (PRC §80062(d)). 
3. Contracted work must comply with the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor Code. 
4. GRANTEE must have adequate liability insurance, performance bond, or other security 


necessary to protect the State and GRANTEE’S interest against poor workmanship, 
fraud, or other potential loss associated with the completion of the PROJECT. 


5. PRE-CONSTRUCTION COSTS may not exceed 25% of the PROJECT amount. 
6. The primary purpose of any building constructed or improved must be public 


recreation. Renovating a gymnasium that includes office space for staff is eligible; 
renovating GRANTEE’S office building is not. 


7. PROJECTS must be accessible, including an accessible path of travel to the PROJECT. 
 
Eligible Development Costs  
All costs must be incurred within the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD. Costs listed below are 
examples of eligible costs, and not inclusive. Contact OGALS if you have any questions 
regarding a PROJECT cost. 
 
Eligible Pre-construction Costs – up to 25% of PROJECT costs; incurred prior to 
groundbreaking as determined by the GRANTEE 


 Public meetings, focus groups, design workshops  
 Plans, specifications, construction documents, and cost estimates  
 Permits 
 CEQA  
 Bid preparation and packages 
 IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES prior to groundbreaking 
 Grant administration and accounting prior to groundbreaking 


 
Eligible Construction Costs – up to 100% of the PROJECT costs; incurred after 
groundbreaking. 


 Construction – necessary labor and construction activities to complete the 
PROJECT, including site preparation (demolition, clearing and grubbing, 
excavation, grading), onsite implementation and construction supervision 


 Equipment – Equipment use charges (rental and in-house) must be made in 
accordance with GRANTEE’S normal accounting practices. 


 Bond and other signs 
 Premiums on hazard and liability insurance to cover personnel or property 
 Site preparation 
 Purchase and installation of equipment: security cameras, lighting, signs, display 


boards, sound systems, video equipment, etc. 


86 of 170







16 
 


 Construction management: including site inspections and PROJECT administration 
 Miscellaneous:  other costs incurred during the construction phase, such as 


transporting materials, equipment, or personnel, and communications 
 Employee services after groundbreaking 
 GRANT administration and accounting after groundbreaking 


 
Ineligible Development Costs – Cannot be charged to the grant 


 PRE-CONSTRUCTION COSTS that exceed 25% of the PROJECT costs 
 Development to fulfill any mitigation requirements imposed by law (PRC §80020) 
 All non-capital costs, including interpretive and recreational programming, 


software and software development 
 Construction or improvements to facilities that are not primarily designated for 


recreational purposes, such as park district offices 
 Furniture or equipment not site specific and not necessary for the core function of 


a new facility (non-capital outlay) 
 Costs incurred before or after the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD 
 Indirect costs – overhead business expenses of the GRANTEE’S fixed or ordinary 


operating costs (rent, mortgage payments, property taxes, utilities, etc.)   
 Food and beverages 
 Out-of-state travel 
 Repairs – activities performed to a section of a structure that are intended to 


allow the continued use. 
 Maintenance – activities intended to be performed on a regular basis to maintain 


the expected useful life of a structure. 
 Fundraising 


 
Distinguishing capital outlay from maintenance and repair: 


 Capital outlay – building something new, or in regards to existing structures, 
activities intended to boost the condition beyond its original or current state. 


 Repairs – activities performed to a section of a structure that are intended to 
allow the continued use. 


 Maintenance – activities intended to be performed on a regular basis to maintain 
the expected useful life of a structure. 


 
Examples: 
Roof – replacing broken shingles is maintenance; fixing a hole is repair; replacing 
the roof is capital outlay. 
Playground – adding additional fall material is maintenance; fixing the chains on a 
swing set is repair; replacing the play structures is capital outlay. 
Windows – repairing the glazing is maintenance; replacing broken panes is repair; 
replacing the windows is capital outlay. 


  


87 of 170







17 
 


Community Access Projects 
 
Community Access Project Requirements 
1. PROJECTS must be consistent with the park and recreation element of the GRANTEE’S 


general or recreation plan (PRC §80063(b)). 
2. Per Capita funds must be used to supplement, not supplant, local revenues in 


existence as of June 5, 2018 (PRC §80062(d)). 
3. Contracted work must comply with the provisions of §1771.5 of the State Labor 


Code. 
4. GRANTEE must have adequate liability insurance, performance bond, or other security 


necessary to protect the State and GRANTEE’S interest against poor workmanship, 
fraud, or other potential loss associated with the completion of the PROJECT. 


Eligible Community Access Project Costs 
All costs must be incurred within the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD. Costs listed below are 
examples of eligible costs, and not inclusive. Contact OGALS if you have any questions 
regarding a PROJECT cost. 


 Meetings: public meetings/focus groups, GRANTEE planning sessions 
 PROJECT management (excluding grant writing) and accounting 
 Non-capital costs, including interpretive and recreational programming, software 


and software development 
 IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES related to PROJECT activities. 
 Equipment (the cost of equipment or vehicle(s) currently owned by the grantee): 


such equipment or vehicle(s) may be charged to the grant for each use. The 
GRANTEE shall maintain a log that describes the activities conducted and the time 
that the equipment or vehicle is used, as related to the grant scope, as well as a 
license number or vehicle identification number.  
 GRANTEE may also rent or purchase the equipment or vehicle(s), whichever is 


the most economical use of grant funds. 
 Purchased equipment or vehicle(s): residual market value shall be credited to 


the project costs upon completion.  
 Supplies and materials: activity supplies, educational materials, communication 


materials, etc. Supplies and materials may be drawn from central stock if claimed 
costs are no higher than those the grantee would pay if purchased elsewhere.  


 Miscellaneous costs:  other costs incurred, such as transporting materials or 
personnel. 


Ineligible Community Access Project Costs 
 Costs incurred before or after the grant performance period 
 Indirect costs – overhead business expenses of the grantee’s fixed or ordinary 


operating costs (rent, mortgage payments, property taxes, utilities, etc.)   
 Food and beverages 
 Out-of-state travel 
 Capital outlay expenditures 
 Costs associated with master plans 


88 of 170







18 
 


 Repairs and maintenance by IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES 
 Fundraising 


 


 
  


Accounting Rules for In-House Employee Services  
GRANTEES must follow these accounting practices for services performed by its 
employees to be eligible for reimbursement: 
 Maintain time and attendance records as charges are incurred, identifying the 


employee through a name or other tracking system, and that employee’s actual 
time spent on the PROJECT.  


 Time estimates, including percentages, for work performed on the PROJECT are 
not acceptable.  


 Time sheets that do not identify the specific employee’s time spent on the 
PROJECT are not acceptable.  


 Costs of the salaries and wages must be calculated according to the GRANTEE’S 
wage and salary scales, and may include benefit costs such as vacation, health 
insurance, pension contributions and workers’ compensation.  


 Overtime costs may be allowed under the GRANTEE’S established policy, 
provided that the regular work time was devoted to the same PROJECT. 


 May not include overhead or cost allocation. These are the costs generally 
associated with supporting an employee, such as rent, personnel support, IT, 
utilities, etc. 


89 of 170







19 
 


 
State of California – The Natural Resources Agency 


DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 
 


Development Project Scope/Cost Estimate Form 
 
GRANTEE: _________________________ Project Name: _______________________ 
  


 
Development project scope  (Describe the PROJECT in 30 words or less):          
 
Project Scope Items -  all that apply:  
Install 
new 


Renovate 
existing 


Replace 
existing Recreation Element 


   Pool, aquatic center, splash pad 


   Trails or walking paths 


   Landscaping or irrigation 


   Group picnic, outdoor classrooms, other gathering spaces 


   Play equipment, outdoor fitness equipment 


   Sports fields, sports courts, court lighting 


   Community center, gym, other indoor facilities 


   Restroom, concession stand 


   Other:________________________________________ 


   Other:________________________________________ 


   Minor elements which support one or more of the recreation 
elements checked above: benches, lighting, parking, signage, etc.  


Total estimated cost for construction:  $ 
 
PRE-CONSTRUCTION (costs incurred prior to ground-breaking, such as design, 
permits, bid packages, CEQA); up to 25% of total project cost. $ 


Total PROJECT cost:  $ 
 
Subtract GRANTEE match if not in severely disadvantaged community (20% of 
total PROJECT Cost) 


 
$  -                 


Total PROJECT amount requested: 
 
$ 


 
The GRANTEE understands that all elements listed on this form must be complete and open to the 
public before the final grant payment will be made.    
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE Signature Date 


Print Name and Title 


90 of 170







20 
 


 
 


State of California – The Natural Resources Agency 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 


 
Community Access Project Scope/Cost Estimate Form 


 
GRANTEE: _________________________ Project Name: ______________________ 
  


Project site: 


Project Scope Items -  all that apply and provide a brief description:  


 
Transportation (for recreation programs) 


 
Physical activity programming (sport leagues, dance, exercise, etc.) 


 
Resource interpretation 


 
Multilingual translation 


 
Natural science 


 
Workforce development and career pathways 


 
Education 


 
Communication related to water, parks, climate, coastal protection, and other outdoor 
pursuits 


Total PROJECT cost:  $ 
 
Subtract GRANTEE match if not in severely disadvantaged community (20% of 
total PROJECT Cost) 


 
$  -                 


Total PROJECT amount requested: 
 
$ 


 
The GRANTEE understands that all elements listed on this form must be complete and available to 
the public before the final grant payment will be made.    
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE Signature Date 


Print Name and Title 


91 of 170







21 
 


 
 


State of California – The Natural Resources Agency 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 


Funding Sources Form 
 
GRANTEE: _________________________ Project Name: _______________________ 
 
PROJECTS funded by the program are not complete until the grant SCOPE is complete. 
 
If Per Capita grant funds will be used as part of the funding for a larger project, 
GRANTEES can do one of the following: 
1. Identify a smaller subset of the larger project that can be completed. That smaller 


project will be the grant SCOPE. 
2. Incorporate the funds from the Per Capita grant into the larger project. The larger 


project will be the grant SCOPE. 
 
Per Capita funds will / will not (circle one) be used as part of the funding for a larger 
project. 
 
If Per Capita grant funds will be used as part of the funding for a larger project, briefly 
describe the scope of that larger project: 
 
 
 
The total cost of the larger project that these grant funds will contribute to is: $________ 
 
Anticipated completion date: _________________ 
 
List all funds that will be used. Submit revised Funding Sources form should funding 
sources be added or modified. 
 
Funding Source Date Committed Amount 
Per Capita/State of California July 1, 2018 $ 
   
   
   


 
_______________________________________________    _____________________ 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE Signature     Date 
 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Print Name and Title 


92 of 170







22 
 


 
 


State of California – The Natural Resources Agency 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 


CEQA Compliance Certification 
Not required for COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECTS 


 
GRANTEE: __________________________________________________________ 


Project Name: ______________________________________________________ 


Project Address:  ___________________________________________________ 


Is CEQA complete? Yes  No    Is completing CEQA a project scope item? Yes   No 


 
What document was filed, or is expected to be filed for this project’s CEQA analysis:  
 


   Date complete/expected to be completed   
 Notice of Exemption (attach recorded copy if filed)  ___________ 
 Notice of Determination (attach recorded copy if filed)  ___________ 
 Other: ____________________________   ___________ 
 
If CEQA is complete, and a Notice of Exemption or Notice of Determination was not filed, attach 
a letter from the Lead Agency explaining why, certifying the project has complied with CEQA 
and noting the date that the project was approved by the Lead Agency.   
 
Lead Agency Contact Information: 
Agency Name: ______________________________________________________________ 


Contact Person: _____________________________________________________________ 


Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________ 


Phone: (     ) ___________________ Email: __________________________________ 


 
Certification: 
I hereby certify that the above referenced Lead Agency has complied or will comply with the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and that the project is described in adequate and 
sufficient detail to allow the project’s construction or acquisition.   


I further certify that the CEQA analysis for this project encompasses all aspects of the work to 
be completed with grant funds.   
 
______________________________    ________      ____________________________                         
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE              Date  AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
(Signature)       (Printed Name and Title) 


FOR OGALS USE ONLY 
CEQA Document Date Received PO Initials 
NOE  NOD   


93 of 170







23 
 


Land Tenure 
The purpose of the land tenure requirement is to verify that the GRANTEE has sufficient 
legal rights to the property to fulfill the terms of the contract.  


 PROJECT amounts up to $100,000 require at least 20 years of land tenure at the 
site to be acquired or developed. 


 PROJECT amounts greater than $100,000 require at least 30 years of land tenure 
at the site to be acquired or developed. 


 The 20 or 30 year land tenure requirement begins on July 1, 2018. 
 The GRANTEE remains responsible for fulfillment of the terms of the contract, even 


if the GRANTEE’S land tenure agreement changes within the contract 
PERFORMANCE PERIOD. 


 Not applicable to COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECTS. 
 
Land Tenure Ownership Documentation 
If the GRANTEE owns PROJECT site in fee simple, provide one of the following: 


 Deed or deed recordation number, or 
 Title report, or 
 Tract map or assessor’s map with owner’s name 


 
Land Tenure Non-Ownership Documentation 
If the GRANTEE does not own the PROJECT site in fee simple, provide: 


 Land Tenure Agreement Checklist (page 24) 


 Signed land tenure agreement 
 
If the grantee does not own the project site in fee simple, and the existing land tenure 
agreement does not meet the requirements shown in the Land Tenure Checklist, 
provide 


 Land Tenure Agreement Checklist (page 24) 


 Signed land tenure agreement 
 An explanation as to how the existing land tenure agreement adequately protects 


the State’s interest. OGALS will review and determine if the land tenure is 
sufficient. 


 
  


94 of 170







24 
 


Land Tenure Agreement Checklist 
If the GRANTEE does not own the land in fee simple, complete this checklist. Attach a 
copy of the signed land tenure agreement. Identify the page numbers where the 
required items can be found in the land tenure agreement and highlight the provisions in 
the agreement where the information is located. All items are required.  
GRANTEE: __________________________ Project Name: _______________________ 
 
 Page Required Item 


□ 
 Type of agreement: For example: lease, joint powers agreement, 


easement, memorandum of understanding, etc. 
____________________________________________________ 


□ 


 Parties to the agreement (land owner must be public agency or utility) 
and date signed: 
Party                                                               Date Signed 
__________________________________    ________________ 
__________________________________    ________________ 
__________________________________    ________________ 


□  Term of the agreement: ____ years 


□ 
 Agreement end date: _______________________ 


 Grant amounts up to $100,000 require at least 20 years of land tenure. 
 Grant amounts above $100,000 require at least 30 years of land tenure. 
 The land tenure requirement begins on July 1, 2018. 


□  Renewal option: Must include an option, which can be non-binding, for the 
GRANTEE to renew the agreement beyond the original 20 or 30 year term. 


□ 
 Termination clause: Any of the following is acceptable: 


 No termination clause – the agreement is non-revocable. 
 Termination clause specifies the agreement is revocable only for cause. 
 The termination clause cannot allow the land owner to revoke the 


agreement without cause, i.e., at will. 


□ 


 Site Control, Roles and Responsibilities should the GRANT be awarded, 
the agreement: 
 Authorizes the GRANTEE to proceed with the construction PROJECT. The 


GRANTEE may delegate construction to other entities. 
 Establishes when the general public can use the PROJECT and gives 


GRANTEE permission to operate the PROJECT site (such as scheduling 
recreational programs). The GRANTEE may delegate operational roles to 
other entities but is bound through the contract provisions to ensure full 
public access for the duration of the land tenure period. 


 Identifies which entity will maintain the PROJECT site. The GRANTEE may 
delegate maintenance to other entities but is bound through the contract 
provisions to ensure maintenance of the PROJECT site for the duration of 
the land tenure period. 


 


95 of 170







25 
 


Site Plan 
Provide a drawing showing where all the items listed in the PROJECT SCOPE/Cost 
Estimate Form will be located. To ensure that any building use meets the requirements 
of the program, include the function and approximate square footage of each room 
within buildings that are part of the SCOPE, and the approximate total square footage of 
the buildings. It does not need to be a detailed engineering rendering. Not required for 
COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECT applications. 
   
Sub-leases or Agreements 
Provide a list of all other leases, agreements, memoranda of understanding, etc., 
affecting PROJECT property or its operation and maintenance. 


Greenhouse Gas Emissions Reduction and Carbon Sequestration.3 
If your PROJECT involves tree planting, follow the instructions below. If your PROJECT does 
not involve tree planting, check the N/A box for this item on the Application Checklist. 
 
Before getting started, gather the following information about your PROJECT: 


 Tree species 
 Size of trees at planting 
 Information on the distance and direction to the nearest building (if applicable) 
 Information on the age and climate control of any nearby buildings (if applicable) 
 Information about the tree’s growing conditions 


Getting started: 
1. Navigate to the i-Tree site at https://planting.itreetools.org and select the tab for a 


new project.  
2. On the Location map, select your state, county and city, and then click Next. 
3. Configure the project parameters4:  


 “Electricity emissions factor” enter 285 and select kilograms 
 “Fuel emissions factor” enter 53.1 and select kilograms 
 “Years for the project” is the age of the trees 40 years from when they are 


planted. So, if the trees will be four years old at the time of planting, enter 44. 
 “Tree mortality” enter 0 


4. Tree Planting Configurations 
 Enter the tree groups for the project; create a new group for each new 


species or for each new location.  
 Species – select the species; add multiple species by creating new groups. 
 DBH – tree diameter four feet above the ground at time of planting. 
 Distance to nearest tree – select from drop down menu 


                                            
3 PRC §80001(b)(7)  
4 Project parameters are from the California Air Resources Board’s “Quantification Methodology for the 
California Natural Resources Agency Urban Greening Grant Program.” 


96 of 170



https://planting.itreetools.org/





26 
 


 Tree is (north, south, east or west) of Building – select the direction the tree is 
located to the nearest climate controlled building.  


 Climate controls – select the type of climate controls the nearby building has 
installed. If a tree is more than 60 feet away from a climate controlled 
building, select “none.” 


 Condition – select the overall health of the trees at the time of planting. 
 Exposure to sunlight – select the amount of sun that reaches the tree, based 


on its surroundings. 
 Number of trees – enter the number of trees that are the same species and 


the same characteristics (e.g. distance to building, location in respect to 
building, exposure to sunlight, etc.) If some of these characteristics change, 
multiple lines of the same species should be input into the tool. 


Once all the groups are entered, hit next 
5. Print the report in landscape mode, and submit it with your application. 


 


Special Requirements 
 Status Reports (page 26) 


 Bond Act Sign (page 28) 


 Deed Restriction (page 29)    
 
Status Report 
OGALS will send a Status Report every six months until receipt of a PROJECT COMPLETION 
PACKET.  Payment requests will not be processed if Status Reports are overdue.   
 
  


97 of 170







27 
 


Sample Status Report – Due xx/xx/20xx (30 days from mail date) 
 
Grantee:   
Project Number:   
Project Name:  
Project Scope:  
Project Phase:  □ Pre-Construction/Pre-Acquisition  □ Acquisition and/or Construction  
      □ Community Access 
 
When will you submit your next payment request?             For how much? 
 
Estimated date of project completion:  
 
Potential obstacles affecting completion: 
 
 
Is the PROJECT: On Time? yes/no  Within Budget? yes/no Within Scope? yes/no  If no, 
explain: 
 
Describe grant-funded work completed since last status report submitted on (DATE):   
 
Provide photos showing work completed since (DATE) 
 
Describe grant-funded work expected to be completed by (MailDate + 6 mos)  
 
If there have been any changes to the proposed funding for this project, attach a revised 
Funding Sources Form. 
 
Provide information on payments to be submitted over the next three years: 
 
Between 
7/1/18 
and 
6/30/19 


Between 
7/1/19 
and 
12/31/19 


Between 
1/1/20 
and 
6/30/20 


Between 
7/1/20 
and 
12/30/20 


Between 
1/1/21 
and 
6/30/21 


Between 
7/1/21 
and 
12/30/21 


After 
1/1/22 


$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
The purpose of this data is to help the State estimate borrowing needs; you will not be 
held to these estimates. 
I represent and warrant that I have full authority to execute this Grant Progress Status 
Report on behalf of the Grantee.  I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of 
the State of California, that this status report, and any accompanying documents, for the 
above-mentioned Grant is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. 
 
 __________________________        _______________________       _____________ 
Authorized Representative*                    Title           Date 
(*Certification to above information requires a signature by a person authorized in the 
resolution) 


98 of 170







28 
 


Bond Act Sign 
A sign acknowledging the California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, 
and Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018 as the funding source for the PROJECT must be 
installed during construction and at completion (PRC §80001(b)(3)). A sign is not 
required for COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECTS. 
Types of Signs 
1) Construction – An acknowledgment sign is required during construction. 
2) Post Completion - All grantees are required to post a sign at the PROJECT site upon 


completion of the project. The sign must be available for the final inspection of the 
PROJECT and remain in place for a minimum of four (4) years from date of PROJECT 
completion. There is no minimum or maximum size other than the minimum size for 
the logo, as long as the sign contains the required wording. 


If appropriate, the same sign can be used during construction and completion. 
Sign Language 
All signs must contain the language shown to the 
right of this paragraph. Use the names of the 
current officials. The name of the director of the 
local agency or other governing body may be 
added. The sign may also include names (and/or 
logos) of other partners, organizations, individuals 
and elected representatives. 
Logo 
All signs must display the Parks and Water Bond 
Act logo. The logo is available at   
http://resources.ca.gov/grants/logo-art/. Display 
the logo to maximize visibility and durability. Each 
edge of the logo must be a minimum of 24″ x 24″.  Exceptions may be approved, when 
appropriate, at OGALS’ discretion. 
Sign Construction 
All materials used shall be durable and resistant to the elements and graffiti. The 
California Department of Transportation and DPR standards may be used as a guide for 
gauge of metal, quality of paints used, mounting specifications, etc. 
Sign Cost 
The cost of the sign(s) is an eligible PROJECT cost. Permanent signage is encouraged.  
Appropriateness of Signs 
For projects where the required sign may be out of place or affected by local sign 
ordinances, OGALS may authorize a sign that is more appropriate to the project.   
State Approval 
GRANTEE shall submit the proposed number, locations, size, and language of signs for 
preliminary review. Final payments will not be processed until post completion signage 
has been approved and installed. 
 


Project Title/Description 


Another project funded  
through the California  
Natural Resources  
Agency to protect, 
restore, 
and enhance California’s 
cultural, community, and 
natural resources 


GAVIN 
NEWSOM, 
GOVERNOR 
Wade 
Crowfoot, 
Secretary for 
Natural 
Resources 
Lisa Mangat, 
Director, 
California 
Department of 
Parks and 
Recreation 


99 of 170



http://resources.ca.gov/grants/logo-art/





29 
 


Deed Restriction  
The Deed Restriction restricts the title to the property, safeguarding the property for 
purposes consistent with the GRANT for the duration of the contract PERFORMANCE 
PERIOD. A Deed Restriction is not required for COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECTS. 
If the GRANTEE owns the PROJECT land, a Deed Restriction must be recorded on the title 
to the property before OGALS will approve any grant payments except an advance into 
escrow.  
A Deed Restriction is not required if the GRANTEE does not own the PROJECT land, such 
as where the GRANTEE is improving property it has access to under a lease agreement.    
Deed Restriction Instructions 
1. Before filing the Deed Restriction, the GRANTEE must own the PROJECT land, and 


have an encumbered contract for the GRANT amount. 
2. The PROJECT OFFICER will send the Deed Restriction to the GRANTEE. Do not alter the 


Deed Restriction. The GRANTEE takes the following steps:  
1. Add ownership information to Paragraph I of the Deed Restriction: [formal 


name of GRANTEE] Insert ownership information as it appears on the deed.  
2. Create 3 copies (GRANTEE copy, OGALS copy and recorder’s copy) of the Deed 


restriction and the required attachments: 
(1) Exhibit A: Label this attachment “Exhibit A (Legal Description of Property)” 


and include a formal legal description of every parcel of property to which 
grant funds will be used for the development and/or acquisition thereof. This 
information can be obtained from the grant deed or title policy. (The 
assessor’s parcel number or a street address is NOT a valid legal 
description.) and, 


(2) Exhibit B:  Label this attachment “Exhibit B (Grant Contract)” and include a 
complete copy of the Grant Contract and provisions signed by the AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE and the State of California.  


3. Notarize it:  Take the following documents to a notary. OGALS recommends 
submitting these documents to the OGALS PROJECT OFFICER for review prior to 
notarizing. 


 Unsigned and undated Deed Restriction 
 Exhibit A (Legal Description of Property) 
 Exhibit B (Grant Contract) 


The AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE dates and signs the Deed Restriction signature 
page in the presence of a notary.  The notary will complete a Notary 
Acknowledgement (Civil Code §1189). 


4. Record it:  Take the notarized documents bulleted above to the County 
Recorder’s Office of the county in which the property is located. Ask the County 
Clerk to record the Deed Restriction with Notary Acknowledgement, Exhibit A, 
and Exhibit B, on the title to the property. 


5. Send it:  Send a copy of the notarized and recorded documents bulleted above to 
the OGALS PROJECT OFFICER. 


100 of 170







30 
 


 
RECORDING REQUESTED BY: 
California Department of Parks and Recreation 
Office of Grants and Local Services 
 
WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 
Office of Grants and Local Services 
PO Box 942896 
Sacramento, CA 94296-0001 
Attn:  [Project Officer] 
 
 
 


DEED RESTRICTION 
 
 


I. WHEREAS, insert ownership information as it appears on the deed 


(hereinafter referred to as “Owner(s)” is/are recorded owner(s) of the real property 


described in Exhibit A, attached and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter 


referred to as the “Property”); and 


II. WHEREAS, the California Department of Parks and Recreation 


(hereinafter referred to as “DPR”) is a public agency created and existing under the 


authority of section 5001 of the California Public Resources Code (hereinafter referred 


to as the “PRC”). And 


III. WHEREAS, Owner(s) (or Grantee) received an allocation of grant funds 


pursuant to the California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and 


Outdoor Access For All Act of 2018 Per Capita Program for improvements on the 


Property; and 


IV.  WHEREAS, on (enter date), DPR’s Office of Grants and Local Services 


conditionally approved Grant [project number], (hereinafter referred to as “Grant”) for 


improvements on the Property, subject to, among other conditions, recordation of this 


Deed Restriction on the Property; and 


V. WHEREAS, but for the imposition of the Deed Restriction condition of the 


Grant, the Grant would not be consistent with the public purposes of the Per Capita 


Program and the funds that are the subject of the Grant could therefore not have been 


allocated; and 


101 of 170







31 
 


VI. WHEREAS, Owner(s) has/have elected to comply with the Deed 


Restriction of the Grant, so as to enable Owner(s), to receive the Grant funds and 


perform the work described in the Grant; 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the issuance of the Grant funds by 


DPR, the undersigned Owner(s) for himself/herself/themselves and for his/her/their 


heirs, assigns, and successors-in-interest, hereby irrevocably covenant(s) with DPR that 


the condition of the grant (set forth at paragraph(s) 1 through 5 and in Exhibit B hereto) 


shall at all times on and after the date on which this Deed Restriction is recorded 


constitute for all purposes covenants, conditions and restrictions on the use and 


enjoyment of the Property that are hereby attached to the deed to the Property as fully 


effective components thereof.  


1.         DURATION. This Deed Restriction shall remain in full force and effect 


and shall bind Owner(s) and all his/her/their assigns or successors-in-interest for the 


period running from July 1, 20xx to June 30, 20xx (20 years) or June 30, 20xx (30 


years). 


2. TAXES AND ASSESMENTS. It is intended that this Deed Restriction is 


irrevocable and shall constitute an enforceable restriction within the meaning of a) 


Article XIII, section 8, of the California Constitution; and b) section 402.I of the California 


Revenue and Taxation Code or successor statue. Furthermore, this Deed Restriction 


shall be deemed to constitute a servitude upon and burden to the Property within the 


meaning of section 3712(d) of the California Revenue and Taxation Code, or successor 


statue, which survives a sale of tax-deeded property. 


3. RIGHT OF ENTRY. DPR or its agent or employees may enter onto the 


Property at times reasonably acceptable to Owner(s) to ascertain whether the use 


restrictions set forth above are being observed. 


4. REMEDIES. Any act, conveyance, contract, or authorization by Owner(s) 


whether written or oral which uses or would cause to be used or would permit use of the 


Property contrary to the terms of this Deed Restriction will be deemed a violation and a 


breach hereof. DPR may pursue any and all available legal and/or equitable remedies 


to enforce the terms and conditions of this Deed Restriction up to and including a lien 


sale of the property. In the event of a breach, any forbearance on the part of DPR to 


102 of 170







32 
 


enforce the terms and provisions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of enforcement 


rights regarding such breach, or any subsequent breach. 


5. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of these restrictions is held to be invalid, 


or for any reason becomes unenforceable, no other provision shall be affected or 


impaired. 


 


Dated: ______________________, 20 ____ 


 


Business Name (if property is owned by a business): 


_________________________________________ 


 


Signed: ___________________________ Signed:__________________________ 
  Authorized Representative   Additional signature, as required 


_________________________________   ________________________________  
Print/Type Name & Title of Above   Print/Type Name & Title of Above 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


103 of 170







33 
 


 
 
 


Grant Payment Section 
Payments may be requested after a PROJECT is approved and the contract is encumbered. 
Payment requests are processed through the State Controller’s Office and mailed to the 
GRANTEE approximately six to eight weeks from the date OGALS approves the request.  
Payment Requirements 
1. Payment requests prior to groundbreaking are limited to 25% of the PROJECT amount. 
2. Payments before the final payment may not exceed 80% of the PROJECT amount.  


20% of the PROJECT amount is retained for the final reimbursement. 
3. A deed restriction is required prior to processing any reimbursements except 


COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECTS and an acquisition ADVANCE. 
4. Group costs together to avoid frequent payment requests. Reimbursement requests 


greater than $10,000 are encouraged. 
5. For PROJECTS where match is required, GRANTEES must show eligible costs equal to 


125% of the requested reimbursement amount.  
6. CEQA must be complete prior to requesting any construction reimbursement. 
7. Provide a sample timesheet with the first IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES reimbursement. 
8. A summary list of bidders, recommendation by reviewer of bidders, awarding by 


governing body and contract agreement must be provided to the PROJECT OFFICER 
prior to requesting a reimbursement related to that contract. 


9. Provide construction progress photos, including a photo with the construction sign 
visible on the PROJECT site (see page 28), with all construction payment requests.  


10. Payment may be withheld by OGALS if the GRANTEE has outstanding issues, for 
example: breach of any other contract with OGALS, an unresolved audit exception, 
outstanding conversion, or having other park sites closed or inadequately maintained. 


Payment Request Form Instructions 
 All payment request types (reimbursement, final, ADVANCE) require this form. 
 Payment requests may be submitted by e-mail to the PROJECT OFFICER. 
 Round all amounts to the nearest whole dollar. 
 Complete the Payment Request Form as follows: 


1. PROJECT Number - Number assigned by OGALS when this PROJECT was approved. 
2. Contract Number - As shown in Certification of Funding section of the contract 
3. APPLICANT - GRANTEE name as shown on the contract 
4. PROJECT Title - Name of the PROJECT as shown in the Application 
5. Type of Payment – check appropriate box on form 
6. Payment Information – always round down to the nearest dollar. 
7. Send Warrant To - AGENCY name, address and contact person  
8. Signature of AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE according to the Resolution 


104 of 170







34 
 


 
 
 
Payment Request Form 


 
 
 


105 of 170







35 
 


 
 
 
Grant Expenditure Form 
All payment requests require a summary of costs incurred. An electronic version of this 
form is available at www.parks.ca.gov/grants. Grantees may use their own spreadsheet if 
it contains the required information shown below. Keep copies of invoices or warrants 
with the PROJECT records, available to OGALS upon request.  
Only provide the following information to OGALS: 
 
PROJECT Number_______________________ 
          


Warrant/Check #(1) Date(2) Recipient(3) Purpose(4) 
Pre-


Construction 
Amount(5) 


Construction 
Amount(6) 


 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________________________________________________ 
  
                              
PRE-CONSTRUCTION Subtotal (5)                                      $_____________ 
 
Construction Subtotal (6)                                                          $_____________ 
   
Grand Total (5) + (6)                                                                    $_____________ 
 
List only ELIGIBLE COSTS charged to the GRANT.  
Column (1) Electronic payment numbers/electronic funds transfer numbers in the 
“Warrant/Check Number” column are acceptable. Include an “EP” next to the electronic 
payment numbers/electronic funds transfer numbers. 


If IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES or GRANTEE’S own equipment was used, a work order or other 
tracking number can be used instead of a check/warrant number. 
Column (2) Date payment was made to recipient. If IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES were used, 
provide the date range with a summary of actual hours worked.  


Column (3) Name of Contractor, IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES, or other entity providing 
services and/or materials. 
Column (4) SCOPE item related to the expenditure and a brief description, such as 
“playground design,” “community center permits,” “walkway materials,” “sports field 
construction.”  


Column (5) PRE-CONSTRUCTION costs eligible for up to 25% of the GRANT amount. 


Column (6) DEVELOPMENT or COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECT costs eligible for up to 100% of 
GRANT amount. 


 
 
  


106 of 170



http://www.parks.ca.gov/grants





36 
 


 
 
 
Project Completion Packet 
PROJECT COMPLETION PACKETS must be submitted by March 31, 2022. 
The final payment (not less than 20% of the PROJECT amount) will be processed after 
PROJECT COMPLETION and the following occurs:  


1. Approval of the PROJECT COMPLETION PACKET (page 36). 
2. Site inspection by the PROJECT OFFICER to verify PROJECT COMPLETION.  


To request the final payment and complete the PROJECT, the GRANTEE must submit the 
following documents: 
 
For COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECTS: 


1. Payment Request Form (page 34) 
2. Grant Expenditure Form (page 35) 
3. Final Funding Sources Form (page 21) 
4. PROJECT COMPLETION Certification Form (page 37) 


For development PROJECTS, the GRANTEE must submit these additional documents: 
5. Photo of the bond act sign and location (page 28) 
6. Recorded Deed Restriction if not already provided (page 29) 
7. Completed CEQA if not already provided (page 22) 
8. Notice of Completion (optional)5 


For acquisition PROJECTS, the GRANTEE must submit these additional documents: 
1. A copy of the recorded deed to the property 
2. A map sufficient to verify the description of the property including parcel numbers 


and acreage 
3. Copy of title insurance policy 
4. Copy of title report 


  


                                            
5 OGALS recommends that the GRANTEE file a Notice of Completion with the County 
Recorder pursuant to State of California Civil Code §3093.  Filing the Notice of 
Completion is not a PROJECT COMPLETION requirement.  
 


107 of 170







37 
 


 
 
 
Project Completion Certification Form 


 
Grantee: __________________________________ Project Number: _____________ 
 
Grantee contact for audit purposes 
Name: ________________________________________________________________ 
Address: ______________________________________________________________ 
Phone: (_____) __________________ Email:________________________________ 
 
Project completion – list the grant scope items: 
 
 
Provide revised Funding Sources Form 
 
Interest earned on advanced funds:   $ ________________  
Interest spent on eligible costs:   $ ________________ 
 
Was a Notice of Completion filed with the County Recorder? Yes __ No __  
 
Certification: 
I hereby certify that all Grant funds were expended on the above named Project and that the 
Project is complete and we have made final payment for all work done. 


I have read California Penal Code §118 and understand that every person who testifies, declares, 
deposes, or certifies under penalty of perjury and willfully states as true any material matter which 
he or she knows to be false, is guilty of perjury, which is a felony punishable by imprisonment in 
state prison for two, three, or four years. 


Furthermore, I have read California Penal Code §72 and understand that every person who, with 
the intent to defraud, presents for allowance or for payment to any state board or officer, or to any 
county, city, or District board or officer, authorized to allow or pay the same if genuine, any false 
or fraudulent claim, bill, account, voucher, or writing, is guilty of a felony-misdemeanor punishable 
either by imprisonment in county jail for a period of not more than one year, by a fine not 
exceeding one thousand dollars, or both, or by imprisonment in state prison, by a fine not 
exceeding ten thousand dollars, or both. 


I represent and warrant that I have full authority to execute this Project Completion Certification 
on behalf of the Grantee.  I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing certification of 
Project Completion for the above-mentioned Grant is true and correct. 
 
________________________________________ _____________________________ 
GRANTEE’S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE         Title 
(Printed or Typed name) 
 
_____________________________________________________ ________________ 
GRANTEE’S AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE (Signature)    Date 
 
  


108 of 170







38 
 


 
 
 
Advance Payments 
 ADVANCE payments are made at the discretion of OGALS.  OGALS reserves the right to 


disapprove ADVANCE payment requests.  
o Past performance, GRANTEE capacity, and the GRANTEE’S financial resources 


will all be considered before issuing an ADVANCE. 
o GRANTEE’S that are unable to finance a considerable portion of their PROJECTS 


are encouraged to seek an allocation transfer (page 53). 
 ADVANCE payments may be requested for costs the GRANTEE will incur within the next 


six months.  
 ADVANCE funds, and any interest earned on those funds, must be spent within six 


months of receipt, or returned to OGALS.  
 The sum of DEVELOPMENT and COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECT ADVANCES cannot exceed 


50% of the PROJECT amount. 
Pre-Construction Advance 


 Payment 
Type 


Maximum 
Request 


When to 
Request 


Documents to 
Send to PROJECT OFFICER  


ADVANCE(s) 
costs to be 
incurred in 
next six 
months 


Preconstruction 
estimate shown on 
Development 
Project SCOPE/Cost 
Estimate Form 


After the 
contract has 
been 
encumbered  


 Payment Request Form 
 ADVANCE justification (see 


below) 
 


 
Construction Advance and Community Access Project Advance 


Payment 
Type 


Maximum 
Request 


When to Request Documents to 
Send to PROJECT OFFICER  


ADVANCE(s) 
costs to be 
incurred in 
next six 
months 


No more than 
50% of the 
grant amount. 


After the contract 
has been 
encumbered, and 
construction will 
commence during 
the next six 
months  


 Payment Request Form 
 ADVANCE justification (see below) 
 Copy of signed contract and a 


notice to proceed or IN-HOUSE 
EMPLOYEE SERVICES schedule 


 Filed NOD or NOE (page 22) 


 
Advance Justification 
Provide the following information: 
 Explanation as to why an ADVANCE is needed instead of a reimbursement. Describe 


any hardships the GRANTEE will experience if a reimbursement were issued instead of 
an ADVANCE. 


 A payment schedule, with a month-by-month estimate, for up to six months, showing 
the anticipated amount needed, and to whom the funds will be paid (IN-HOUSE 
EMPLOYEE SERVICES or name of contractor). The six month period should begin six to 
eight weeks after payment request is submitted. 
 


109 of 170







39 
 


 
 A funding plan, indicating how the GRANTEE intends to provide cash flow to the 


percentage of the PROJECT exceeding the 50% ADVANCE limit.  
 A statement indicating the GRANTEE will put the advanced funds into a separate, 


interest bearing account, and spend any interest earned on the PROJECT. 
 An acknowledgement that all invoices and contracts pursuant to which payments are 


made shall be made available to OGALS on demand. 
 
Clearing the Advance 
ADVANCES must be cleared with six months of receipt, or earlier. ADVANCES should be 
cleared incrementally, that is, as costs are incurred.  
An ADVANCE is cleared as follows: 


 Submit a grant expenditure form (see page 35) documenting expenditures of eligible 
costs equal to the ADVANCE amount plus any earned interest (or 125% of the ADVANCE 
amount if match is required). 


 Submit photos of construction completed and the construction sign (see page 28) with 
the ADVANCE funds (for construction ADVANCES). 


 Return the balance of unspent GRANT funds to OGALS no later than thirty days after the 
end of the six month ADVANCE period. OGALS will then return the GRANT funds to the 
contract balance. OGALS cannot return interest to the contract balance.  


Subsequent Payments 
ADVANCE payments must be cleared before any payments will be approved.   
This requirement may be waived in cases where a PROJECT requires timely payments to 
contractors, and the remaining balance of unspent ADVANCED funds cannot cover the next 
PROJECT payment.  The following are required to request a waiver: 


1. A letter to the PROJECT OFFICER, signed by the AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE, 
explaining why the waiver is needed. 


2. A statement in the letter that the majority of ADVANCED funds has been cleared.  
3. A payment schedule with month by month estimates detailing the anticipated 


amount needed including the unspent balance of previously ADVANCED funds, 
along with the additional requested reimbursement or ADVANCE. 


Acquisition Advance 


Payment Type When to Request Documents to Send  
ADVANCES up to 
100% of the GRANT 
and MATCH amounts  


After the contract is 
encumbered and escrow 
is open 


See following instructions  
1. Escrow letter 
2. Title report cover page 
3. Payment request form 


 
 
 
 
 
 


110 of 170







40 
 


 
The following items are required to request an ADVANCE payment into escrow: 
1. A letter on the GRANTEE’s letterhead, addressing all of the following elements, and 


signed by the GRANTEE’s AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE: 
a) Name, address and telephone number of the title company or escrow holder, and 


the escrow account number to which the GRANT funds will be disbursed.  
b) Copy of the property appraisal and written concurrence (page 13). 
c) GRANT contract number and amount of GRANT funds requested. 
d) A statement by the GRANTEE that “the preliminary title report shows that there are 


no liens, easements, or any other restrictions that would prevent completion of the 
PROJECT SCOPE and fulfillment of the contract provisions.” 


e) A statement by the GRANTEE that “all funds (exclusive of the GRANT funds to be 
provided under this agreement) needed for the completion of the acquisition of the 
property or properties have been secured and have been or will be deposited to 
escrow on or about the same date as the requested GRANT funds.”  In making this 
statement, the GRANTEE is entitled to reasonably rely on the representations of the 
seller. 


2. Cover page of the preliminary title report. 
3. Payment Request Form.  The “Send Warrant To” item 7 on the Payment Request 


Form must be completed using the title company’s or escrow holder’s name, mailing 
address, and contact person (see page 34).  


After approval by OGALS, the payment will be mailed by the State Controller’s Office to the 
designated escrow company within approximately 30 working days. 
 
Returning Unexpended Advanced Funds for Acquisition 
If all or a portion of GRANT funds ADVANCED to the title or escrow company are not expended, 
the unused portion of the ADVANCED funds must be returned to OGALS within 60 days after 
completion of the acquisition(s), within 60 days of the acquisition withdrawal, or within 60 
days after the end of the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD, whichever is earliest. 
 
 


  


111 of 170







41 
 


 


 


Per Capita Contract 


 


 
State of California – The Natural Resources Agency 


DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 
Sample Grant Contract 


Per Capita Program 
 


Grantee: Grantee 
Grant Performance Period is from July 1, 20xx through June 30, 20xx 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE PERIOD is from July 1, 20xx through June 30, 20xx 
The GRANTEE agrees to the terms and conditions of this Contract, and the State of 
California, acting through its Director of the Department of Parks and Recreation, 
pursuant to the State of California, agrees to fund the total State grant amount indicated 
below. 
The GRANTEE agrees to complete the GRANT SCOPE(s) as defined in the GRANT 
SCOPE/Cost Estimate Form or acquisition documentation for the application(s) filed with 
the State of California. 
 
Total State grant amount not to exceed $ Grant amount 
 


The General and Special Provisions attached are made a part of and incorporated 
into the Contract. 
 


 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 
 
By______________________________________ 
 
 
Date____________________________________ 


 
 
 
_______________________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
 
By _________________________________________ 
 (Typed or printed name of Authorized 
                Representative) 
  
                ________________________________________ 
 (Signature of AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE) 
 
Title _________________________________________ 
 
Date _________________________________________ 
 


 


 
 
CERTIFICATION OF FUNDING (FOR STATE USE ONLY) 


AMOUNT OF ESTIMATE $ CONTRACT NUMBER FUND 
 
 ADJ. INCREASING ENCUMBRANCE $ APPROPRIATION 


ADJ. DECREASING ENCUMBRANCE $ ITEM VENDOR NUMBER 


UNENCUMBERED BALANCE $ LINE ITEM ALLOTMENT CHAPTER STATUTE FISCAL YEAR 
 


T.B.A. NO. B.R. NO. INDEX 
 


Funding Source OBJ. EXPEND 


I hereby certify upon my personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this encumbrance. 


SIGNATURE OF ACCOUNTING OFFICER 
 


DATE 


112 of 170







 


42 
 


I. RECITALS 
 
This CONTRACT is entered into between the California Department of Parks and Recreation 
(hereinafter referred to as “GRANTOR,”  “DEPARTMENT” or “STATE”) and [grantee name] 
(hereinafter referred to as “GRANTEE”).   
 
The DEPARTMENT hereby grants to GRANTEE a sum (also referred to as “GRANT MONIES”) not 
to exceed $grant amount, subject to the terms and conditions of this CONTRACT and the 20xx/xx 
California State Budget, Chapter xx, statutes of 20xx, Item number – 3790-xxx-xxxx (appropriation 
chapter and budget item number hereinafter referred to as “PER CAPITA GRANT”).  These funds 
shall be used for completion of the GRANT SCOPE(S).   
 
The Grant Performance Period is from July 1, 20xx to June 30, 20xx.   
 
II. GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
A. Definitions  
 
As used in this CONTRACT, the following words shall have the following meanings:  
 


1. The term “ACT” means the California Drought, Water, Parks Climate, Coastal Protection, and 
Outdoor Access for All Act of 2018, as referred to in section I of this CONTRACT. 


2. The term “APPLICATION” means the individual project APPLICATION packet for a project 
pursuant to the enabling legislation and/or grant program process guide requirements. 
 


3. The term “DEPARTMENT” or “STATE” means the California Department of Parks and 
Recreation. 


 
4. The term “DEVELOPMENT” means capital improvements to real property by means of, but not 


limited to, construction, expansion, and/or renovation, of permanent or fixed features of the 
property. 


 
5. The term “GRANTEE” means the party described as the GRANTEE in Section I of this 


CONTRACT.  
 


6. The term “GRANT SCOPE” means the items listed in the GRANT SCOPE/Cost Estimate Form 
or acquisition documentation found in each of the APPLICATIONS submitted pursuant to this 
grant.  
 


7. The term “PROCEDURAL GUIDE” means the document identified as the “Procedural Guide for 
California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and Outdoor Access For All 
Act of 2018 Per Capita Program.”  The PROCEDURAL GUIDE provides the procedures and 
policies controlling the administration of the grant.   
 


B. Project Execution 
 


1. Subject to the availability of GRANT MONIES in the act, the STATE hereby grants to the 
GRANTEE a sum of money not to exceed the amount stated in Section I of this CONTRACT, in 
consideration of, and on condition that, the sum be expended in carrying out the purposes as set 


113 of 170







 


43 
 


forth in the scope described in the enabling legislation and referenced in the APPLICATION, 
Section I of this CONTRACT, and under the terms and conditions set forth in this CONTRACT.   


 The GRANTEE shall assume any obligation to furnish any additional funds that may be 
necessary to complete the GRANT SCOPE(S).   
The GRANTEE agrees to submit any change or alteration from the original GRANT SCOPE(S) 
in writing to the STATE for prior approval. This applies to any and all changes that occur after 
STATE has approved the APPLICATION.  Changes in the GRANT SCOPE(S) must be 
approved in writing by the STATE.  


2. The GRANTEE shall complete the GRANT SCOPE(S) in accordance with the time of the 
Performance Period set forth in Section I of this CONTRACT, and under the terms and 
conditions of this contract. 


3. The GRANTEE shall comply with the California Environmental Quality Act (Public Resources 
Code, §21000, et seq., Title 14, California Code of Regulations, §15000 et seq.).  


4. The GRANTEE shall comply with all applicable current laws and regulations affecting 
DEVELOPMENT projects, including, but not limited to, legal requirements for construction 
contracts, building codes, health and safety codes, and laws and codes pertaining to individuals 
with disabilities, including but not limited to the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. §12101 et seq.) and the California Unruh Act (California Civil Code §51 et seq.)    


 
C. Procedural Guide 


 
1. GRANTEE agrees to abide by the PROCEDURAL GUIDE.  
 
2. GRANTEE acknowledges that STATE may make reasonable changes to its procedures as set 


forth in the PROCEDURAL GUIDE. If STATE makes any changes to its procedures and 
guidelines, STATE agrees to notify GRANTEE within a reasonable time. 


 
D. Project Administration 
 


1. If GRANT MONIES are advanced for DEVELOPMENT projects, the advanced funds shall be 
placed in an interest bearing account until expended.  Interest earned on the advanced funds 
shall be used on the project as approved by the STATE.  If grant monies are advanced and not 
expended, the unused portion of the grant and any interest earned shall be returned to the 
STATE within 60 days after project completion or end of the grant performance period, 
whichever is earlier.   


2. The GRANTEE shall submit written project status reports within 30 calendar days after the 
STATE has made such a request.  In any event, the GRANTEE shall provide the STATE a 
report showing total final project expenditures within 60 days of project completion or the end of 
the grant performance period, whichever is earlier.  The grant performance period is identified in 
Section I of this CONTRACT.   


3. The GRANTEE shall make property or facilities acquired and/or developed pursuant to this 
contract available for inspection upon request by the STATE. 


  


114 of 170







 


44 
 


E. Project Termination 
 
1. Project Termination refers to the non-completion of a GRANT SCOPE.  Any grant funds that 


have not been expended by the GRANTEE shall revert to the STATE. 
 
2. The GRANTEE may unilaterally rescind this CONTRACT at any time prior to the 


commencement of the project.  The commencement of the project means the date of the letter 
notifying GRANTEE of the award or when the funds are appropriated, whichever is later.  After 
project commencement, this CONTRACT may be rescinded, modified or amended only by 
mutual agreement in writing between the GRANTEE and the STATE, unless the provisions of 
this contract provide that mutual agreement is not required.  


 
3. Failure by the GRANTEE to comply with the terms of the (a) PROCEDURAL GUIDE, (b) any 


legislation applicable to the ACT, (c) this CONTRACT as well as any other grant contracts, 
specified or general, that GRANTEE has entered into with STATE, may be cause for suspension 
of all obligations of the STATE unless the STATE determines that such failure was due to no 
fault of the GRANTEE.  In such case, STATE may reimburse GRANTEE for eligible costs 
properly incurred in performance of this CONTRACT despite non-performance of the 
GRANTEE. To qualify for such reimbursement, GRANTEE agrees to mitigate its losses to the 
best of its ability.  


 
4. Any breach of any term, provision, obligation or requirement of this CONTRACT by the 


GRANTEE shall be a default of this CONTRACT. In the case of any default by GRANTEE, 
STATE shall be entitled to all remedies available under law and equity, including but not limited 
to:  a) Specific Performance; b) Return of all GRANT MONIES; c) Payment to the STATE of the 
fair market value of the project property or the actual sales price, whichever is higher; and d) 
Payment to the STATE of the costs of enforcement of this CONTRACT, including but not limited 
to court and arbitration costs, fees, expenses of litigation, and reasonable attorney fees. 


5. The GRANTEE and the STATE agree that if the GRANT SCOPE includes DEVELOPMENT, 
final payment may not be made until the work described in the GRANT SCOPE is complete and 
the GRANT PROJECT is open to the public. 


 
F. Budget Contingency Clause  


If funding for any fiscal year is reduced or deleted by the budget act for purposes of this program, 
the STATE shall have the option to either cancel this contract with no liability occurring to the 
STATE, or offer a CONTRACT amendment to GRANTEE to reflect the reduced grant amount. This 
Paragraph shall not require the mutual agreement as addressed in Paragraph E, provision 2, of this 
CONTRACT. 


 
G. Hold Harmless 
 


1. The GRANTEE shall waive all claims and recourse against the STATE including the right to 
contribution for loss or damage to persons or property arising from, growing out of or in any way 
connected with or incident to this CONTRACT except claims arising from the concurrent or sole 
negligence of the STATE, its officers, agents, and employees. 


 
2. The GRANTEE shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the STATE, its officers, agents and 


employees against any and all claims, demands, damages, costs, expenses or liability costs 
arising out of the ACQUISITION, DEVELOPMENT, construction, operation or maintenance of 


115 of 170







 


45 
 


the property described as the project which claims, demands or causes of action arise under 
California Government Code Section 895.2 or otherwise except for liability arising out of the 
concurrent or sole negligence of the STATE, its officers, agents, or employees. 


 
3. The GRANTEE agrees that in the event the STATE is named as codefendant under the 


provisions of California Government Code Section 895 et seq., the GRANTEE shall notify the 
STATE of such fact and shall represent the STATE in the legal action unless the STATE 
undertakes to represent itself as codefendant in such legal action in which event the GRANTEE 
agrees to pay the STATE’s litigation costs, expenses, and reasonable attorney fees. 


 
4. The GRANTEE and the STATE agree that in the event of judgment entered against the STATE 


and the GRANTEE because of the concurrent negligence of the STATE and the GRANTEE, 
their officers, agents, or employees, an apportionment of liability to pay such judgment shall be 
made by a court of competent jurisdiction.  Neither party shall request a jury apportionment. 


 
5. The GRANTEE shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the STATE, its officers, agents and 


employees against any and all claims, demands, costs, expenses or liability costs arising out of 
legal actions pursuant to items to which the GRANTEE has certified.  The GRANTEE 
acknowledges that it is solely responsible for compliance with items to which it has certified. 


 
H. Financial Records  
 


1. The GRANTEE shall maintain satisfactory financial accounts, documents, including loan 
documents, and all other records for the project and to make them available to the STATE for 
auditing at reasonable times.  The GRANTEE also agrees to retain such financial accounts, 
documents and records for five years following project termination or issuance of final payment, 
whichever is later. 
 


2. The GRANTEE shall keep such records as the STATE shall prescribe, including records which 
fully disclose (a) the disposition of the proceeds of STATE funding assistance, (b) the total cost 
of the project in connection with such assistance that is given or used, (c) the amount and nature 
of that portion of the project cost supplied by other sources, and (d) any other such records that 
will facilitate an effective audit. 


 
3. The GRANTEE agrees that the STATE shall have the right to inspect and make copies of any 


books, records or reports pertaining to this contract or matters related thereto during regular 
office hours.  The GRANTEE shall maintain and make available for inspection by the STATE 
accurate records of all of its costs, disbursements and receipts with respect to its activities under 
this contract.  Such accounts, documents, and records shall be retained by the GRANTEE for at 
least five years following project termination or issuance of final payment, whichever is later. 
 


4. The GRANTEE shall use a generally accepted accounting system. 
 
I. Use of Facilities 
 
 1.   The GRANTEE agrees that the GRANTEE shall operate and maintain the property acquired or 


developed with the GRANT MONIES, for the duration of the Contract Performance Period.  
 


2. The GRANTEE agrees that, during the Contract Performance Period, the GRANTEE shall 
use the property acquired or developed with GRANT MONIES under this contract only for the 


116 of 170







 


46 
 


purposes of this grant and no other use, sale, or other disposition or change of the use of the 
property to one not consistent with its purpose shall be permitted except as authorized by the 
STATE and the property shall be replaced with property of equivalent value and usefulness 
as determined by the STATE. 


  
3. The property acquired or developed may be transferred to another entity if the successor 


entity assumes the obligations imposed under this CONTRACT and with the approval of 
STATE. 
 


4. Any real Property (including any portion of it or any interest in it) may not be used as security 
for any debt or mitigation, without the written approval of the STATE provided that such 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld as long as the purposes for which the Grant was 
awarded are maintained. Any such permission that is granted does not make the STATE a 
guarantor or a surety for any debt or mitigation, nor does it waive the STATE’S rights to 
enforce performance under the Grant CONTRACT.  


 
5. All real property, or rights thereto, acquired with GRANT MONIES shall be subject to an 


appropriate form of restrictive title, rights, or covenants approved by the STATE. If the project 
property is taken by use of eminent domain, GRANTEE shall reimburse STATE an amount at 
least equal to the amount of GRANT MONIES received from STATE or the pro-rated full market 
value of the real property, including improvements, at the time of sale, whichever is higher.  


 
6. If eminent domain proceedings are initiated against GRANTEE, GRANTEE shall notify 


STATE within 10 days of receiving the complaint. 
 
J. Nondiscrimination 
 


1. The GRANTEE shall not discriminate against any person on the basis of sex, race, color, 
national origin, age, religion, ancestry, sexual orientation, or disability in the use of any 
property or facility developed pursuant to this contract. 


2. The GRANTEE shall not discriminate against any person on the basis of residence except to 
the extent that reasonable differences in admission or other fees may be maintained on the 
basis of residence and pursuant to law. 


3. All facilities shall be open to members of the public generally, except as noted under the 
special provisions of this project contract or under provisions of the enabling legislation and/or 
grant program. 


K. Severability 
 


If any provision of this CONTRACT or the application thereof is held invalid, that invalidity shall 
not affect other provisions or applications of the CONTRACT which can be given effect without the 
invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this CONTRACT are severable. 


 
L.  Liability  


 
1. STATE assumes no responsibility for assuring the safety or standards of construction, site 


improvements or programs related to the GRANT SCOPE.  The STATE’S rights under this 
CONTRACT to review, inspect and approve the GRANT SCOPE and any final plans of 


117 of 170







 


47 
 


implementation shall not give rise to any warranty or representation that the GRANT SCOPE 
and any plans or improvements are free from hazards or defects. 


2. GRANTEE will secure adequate liability insurance, performance bond, and/or other security 
necessary to protect the GRANTEE’s and STATE’S interest against poor workmanship, fraud, 
or other potential loss associated with completion of the grant project. 


M.  Assignability  
 


Without the written consent of the STATE, the GRANTEE’S interest in and responsibilities under 
this CONTRACT shall not be assignable by the GRANTEE either in whole or in part.  
 


N.   Use of Grant Monies 
 


GRANTEE shall not use any grant funds (including any portion thereof) for the purpose of 
making any leverage loan, pledge, promissory note or similar financial device or transaction, 
without: 1) the prior written approval of the STATE; and 2) any financial or legal interests created 
by any such leverage loan, pledge, promissory note or similar financial device or transaction in 
the project property shall be completely subordinated to this CONTRACT through a 
Subordination Agreement provided and approved by the STATE, signed by all parties involved 
in the transaction, and recorded in the County Records against the fee title of the project 
property. 
 


N.   Section Headings 
 


The headings and captions of the various sections of this CONTRACT have been inserted only 
for the purpose of convenience and are not a part of this CONTRACT and shall not be deemed 
in any manner to modify, explain, or restrict any of the provisions of this CONTRACT. 


 
O.   Waiver 
 


Any failure by a party to enforce its rights under this CONTRACT, in the event of a breach, shall 
not be construed as a waiver of said rights; and the waiver of any breach under this CONTRACT 
shall not be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach.  


  
_____________________________________ 
GRANTEE 
By:__________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
Title:  _________________________________ 
Date: _________________________________ 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION 
 
By:    _________________________________ 
 
Date: _________________________________ 
 


118 of 170







 


48 
 


Accounting and Audits 
 


Accounting Requirements 
GRANTEES must use accounting practices that: 


 Provide accounting data that clearly records costs incurred on the PROJECT and accurately 
reflects fiscal transactions, with the necessary controls and safeguards. 


 Provide good audit trails, especially the source documents (purchase orders, receipts, 
progress payments, invoices, time cards, cancelled warrants, warrant numbers, etc.) specific 
to the PROJECT.   
 


Accounting Rules for Employee Services (IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES) 
GRANTEES must follow these accounting practices for employee services: 
 Maintain time and attendance records as charges are incurred, identifying the employee 


through a name or other tracking system, and that employee’s actual time spent on the 
PROJECT.  


 Time estimates, including percentages, for work performed on the PROJECT are not 
acceptable.  


 Time sheets that do not identify the specific employee’s time spent on the PROJECT are not 
acceptable.  


 Costs of the salaries and wages must be calculated according to the GRANTEE’S wage and 
salary scales, and may include benefit costs such as vacation, health insurance, pension 
contributions and workers’ compensation.  


 Overtime costs may be allowed under the GRANTEE’S established policy, provided that the 
regular work time was devoted to the same PROJECT. 


 May not include overhead or cost allocation. These are costs generally associated with 
supporting an employee, such as rent, personnel support, IT, utilities, etc.  


State Audit 
Grants are subject to audit by DPR.  (See page 49, Audit Checklist).  All PROJECT records must be 
retained for five years after final payment was issued, or PROJECT terminated, whichever is later. 
The GRANTEE must provide the following when an audit date and time has been confirmed by 
DPR: 


 All PROJECT records, including the source documents and cancelled warrants, books, papers, 
accounts, time sheets, or other records listed in the Audit Checklist or requested by DPR. 


 An employee having knowledge of the PROJECT and its records to assist the DPR auditor. 
Record Keeping Recommendation 
GRANTEES are encouraged to keep records of all eligible costs, including those not submitted to 
OGALS for payment. This provides a potential source of additional eligible costs, should any 
submitted expenses be deemed ineligible. 
 
Contact the DPR Audits Office at (916) 657-0370 for questions about these requirements. 


 


119 of 170







 


49 
 


Audit Checklist 
An audit of the PROJECT may be performed before or following PROJECT completion. The GRANTEE must retain and make 
available all PROJECT related records for five years following PROJECT termination or final payment of grant funds. Listed 
below are some of the items the auditor will examine during the review of your records as applicable. It is the 
responsibility of the GRANTEE to have these records available in a central location ready for review once an audit date 
and time has been confirmed. If you have any questions regarding these documents, you may contact the State 
Department of Parks and Recreation Audits Office at (916) 657-0370. 
 


CONTRACTS 


            Summary list of bidders (including individual bid 
packages) 


            Recommendation by reviewer of bids 


            Awarding by governing body (minutes of the 
meeting/resolution) 


            Construction contract agreement 


            Contract bonds (bid, performance, payment) 


            Contract change orders 


            Contractor's progress billings 


            Payments to contractor (cancelled checks/warrants, 
bank statements and EFT receipts**) 


            Stop Notices (filed by sub-contractors and release if 
applicable) 


            Liquidated damages (claimed against the contractor) 


            Notice of completion (recorded)  


 
IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES* 


            Authorization/work order identifying project 


            Daily time sheets signed by employee and supervisor 


            Hourly rate (salary schedules/payroll register) 


            Fringe benefits (provide breakdown) 


 
IN-HOUSE EQUIPMENT* 


            Authorization/work order 


            Daily time records identifying the project site 


            Hourly rate related backup documents 


MINOR CONTRACTS/MATERIALS/SERVICES/ 
EQUIPMENT RENTALS 


            Purchase orders/Contracts/Service Agreements 


            Invoices 


            Payments (actual cancelled checks/warrants, bank 
statements and EFT receipts **) 


 


ACQUISITION 


            Appraisal Report 


            Did the owner accompany the appraiser? 


            10 year history 


            Statement of just compensation (signed by seller) 


            Statement of difference (if purchased above 
appraisal) 


            Waiver of just compensation (if purchased below 
appraisal:  signed by seller) 


            Final Escrow Closing Statement 


            Cancelled checks/warrants, bank statements and EFT 
receipts, [payment(s) to seller(s)] 


            GRANT deed (vested to the participant) or final order of 
condemnation 


            Title insurance policy (issued to participant) 


            Relocation documents 


            Income (rental, grazing, sale of improvements, etc.)  


 
INTEREST 


            Schedule of interest earned on State funds advanced 
  Note:  Interest on grant advances is accountable, 


even if commingled in a pooled fund account and/or 
interest was never allocated back to the grant fund. 


 
AGREEMENT/CONTRACTS 


            Leases, agreements, etc., pertaining to 
developed/acquired property 


            Proof of insurance pertaining to developed/acquired 
property


* Estimated time expended on the projects is not acceptable.  Actual time records and all supporting 
documentation must be maintained as charges are incurred and made available for verification at the time 
of audit.   
** Front and back if copied. 


120 of 170







 


50 
 


References 
Public Resources Code relating to the Per Capita program 
 
80000. 
This division shall be known, and may be cited, as the California Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, 


Coastal Protection, and Outdoor Access For All Act of 2018. 


80001. 
(b) It is the intent of the people of California that all of the following shall occur in the 


implementation of this division: 


(3) To the extent practicable, a project that receives moneys pursuant to this division will 


include signage informing the public that the project received funds from the California 


Drought, Water, Parks, Climate, Coastal Protection, and Outdoor Access For All Act of 2018. 


(5) To the extent practicable, a project that receives moneys pursuant to this division will 


provide workforce education and training, contractor, and job opportunities for 


disadvantaged communities. 


 (7) To the extent practicable, administering entities should measure or require measurement of 


greenhouse gas emissions reductions and carbon sequestrations associated with projects that 


receive moneys pursuant to this division. 


 (8) To the extent practicable, as identified in the “Presidential Memorandum--Promoting 


Diversity and Inclusion in Our National Parks, National Forests, and Other Public Lands 


and Waters,” dated January 12, 2017, the public agencies that receive funds pursuant to this 


division will consider a range of actions that include, but are not limited to, the following: 


 (A) Conducting active outreach to diverse populations, particularly minority, low-income, 


and disabled populations and tribal communities, to increase awareness within those 


communities and the public generally about specific programs and opportunities. 


 (B) Mentoring new environmental, outdoor recreation, and conservation leaders to increase 


diverse representation across these areas. 


(C) Creating new partnerships with state, local, tribal, private, and nonprofit organizations 


to expand access for diverse populations. 


(D) Identifying and implementing improvements to existing programs to increase visitation 


and access by diverse populations, particularly minority, low-income, and disabled 


populations and tribal communities. 


(E) Expanding the use of multilingual and culturally appropriate materials in public 


communications and educational strategies, including through social media strategies, 


as appropriate, that target diverse populations. 


(F) Developing or expanding coordinated efforts to promote youth engagement and 


empowerment, including fostering new partnerships with diversity-serving and youth-


serving organizations, urban areas, and programs. 


(G) Identifying possible staff liaisons to diverse populations. 


80002. 
(d) “Department” means the Department of Parks and Recreation. 


(n) “Severely disadvantaged community” means a community with a median household income 


less than 60 percent of the statewide average. 


80008. 
(c) (1) Up to 5 percent of funds available pursuant to each chapter of this division shall, to the 


extent permissible under the State General Obligation Bond Law (Chapter 4 (commencing 


121 of 170







 


51 
 


with Section 16720) of Part 3 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the Government Code) and with the 


concurrence of the Director of Finance, be allocated for community access projects that 


include, but are not limited to, the following: 


(A) Transportation. 


(B) Physical activity programming. 


(C) Resource interpretation. 


(D) Multilingual translation. 


(E) Natural science. 


(F) Workforce development and career pathways. 


(G) Education. 


(H) Communication related to water, parks, climate, coastal protection, and other outdoor pursuits. 


80020. 
Moneys allocated pursuant to this division shall not be used to fulfill any mitigation requirements 


imposed by law. 


 


CHAPTER  3. Investments in Protecting, Enhancing, and Accessing California’s 
Local and Regional Outdoor Spaces 
80060. 
For purposes of this chapter, “district” means any regional park district, regional park and open-


space district, or regional open-space district formed pursuant to Article 3 (commencing with 


§5500) of Chapter 3 of Division 5, any recreation and park district formed pursuant to Chapter 4 


(commencing with §5780) of Division 5, or any authority formed pursuant to Division 26 


(commencing with §35100). With respect to any community or unincorporated region that is not 


included within a district, and in which no city or county provides parks or recreational areas or 


facilities, “district” also means any other entity, including, but not limited to, a district operating 


multiple-use parklands pursuant to Division 20 (commencing with §71000) of the Water Code. 


80061. 
(a) The sum of two hundred million dollars ($200,000,000) shall be available to the department, 


upon appropriation by the Legislature, for local park rehabilitation, creation, and improvement 


grants to local governments on a per capita basis. Grant recipients shall be encouraged to utilize 


awards to rehabilitate existing infrastructure and to address deficiencies in neighborhoods 


lacking access to the outdoors. 


(b) The sum of fifteen million dollars ($15,000,000) shall be available to the department, upon 


appropriation by the Legislature, for grants to cities and districts in urbanized counties 


providing park and recreation services within jurisdictions of 200,000 or less in population. 


For purposes of this subdivision, “urbanized county” means a county with a population of 


500,000 or more. An entity eligible to receive funds under this subdivision shall also be eligible 


to receive funds available under subdivision (a). 


(c) Unless the project has been identified as serving a severely disadvantaged community, an entity 


that receives an award pursuant to this section shall be required to provide a match of 20 


percent as a local share. 


80062. 
(a)(1) The department shall allocate 60 percent of the funds available pursuant to subdivision (a) 


of Section 80061 to cities and districts, other than a regional park district, regional park and 


open-space district, open-space authority, or regional open-space district. Each city’s and 


district’s allocation shall be in the same ratio as the city’s or district’s population is to the 


122 of 170







 


52 
 


combined total of the state’s population that is included in incorporated and unincorporated 


areas within the county, except that each city or district shall be entitled to a minimum 


allocation of two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000). If the boundary of a city overlaps 


the boundary of a district, the population in the overlapping area shall be attributed to each 


jurisdiction in proportion to the extent to which each operates and manages parks and 


recreational areas and facilities for that population. If the boundary of a city overlaps the 


boundary of a district, and in the area of overlap the city does not operate and manage parks and 


recreational areas and facilities, all grant funds for that area shall be allocated to the district. 


    (2) On or before April 1, 2020, a city and a district that are subject to paragraph (1), and whose 


boundaries overlap, shall collaboratively develop and submit to the department a specific 


plan for allocating the grant funds in accordance with the formula specified in paragraph (1). 


If, by that date, the plan has not been developed and submitted to the department, the director 


shall determine the allocation of the grant funds between the affected jurisdictions. 


(b)(1) The department shall allocate 40 percent of the funds available pursuant to subdivision (a) 


of §80061 to counties and regional park districts, regional park and open-space districts, 


open-space authorities formed pursuant to Division 26 (commencing with §35100), and 


regional open-space districts formed pursuant to Article 3 (commencing with §5500) of 


Chapter 3 of Division 5. 


(2) Each county’s allocation under paragraph (1) shall be in the same ratio that the county’s 


population is to the total state population, except that each county shall be entitled to a 


minimum allocation of four hundred thousand dollars ($400,000). 


(3) In any county that embraces all or part of the territory of a regional park district, regional 


park and open-space district, open-space authority, or regional open-space district, and 


whose board of directors is not the county board of supervisors, the amount allocated to the 


county shall be apportioned between that district and the county in proportion to the 


population of the county that is included within the territory of the district and the population 


of the county that is outside the territory of the district. 


(c) For the purpose of making the calculations required by this section, population shall be 


determined by the department, in cooperation with the Department of Finance, on the basis of 


the most recent verifiable census data and other verifiable population data that the department 


may require to be furnished by the applicant city, county, or district. 


(d) The Legislature intends all recipients of funds pursuant to subdivision (a) of §80061 to use 


those funds to supplement local revenues in existence on the effective date of the act adding 


this division. To receive an allocation pursuant to subdivision (a) of §80061, the recipient shall 


not reduce the amount of funding otherwise available to be spent on parks or other projects 


eligible for funds under this division in its jurisdiction. A one-time allocation of other funding 


that has been expended for parks or other projects, but which is not available on an ongoing 


basis, shall not be considered when calculating a recipient’s annual expenditures. For purposes 


of this subdivision, the Controller may request fiscal data from recipients for the preceding 


three fiscal years. Each recipient shall furnish the data to the Controller no later than 120 days 


after receiving the request from the Controller. 


80063. 
(a) The director of the department shall prepare and adopt criteria and procedures for evaluating 


applications for grants allocated pursuant to subdivision (a) of §80061. The application shall 


be accompanied by certification that the project is consistent with the park and recreation 


element of the applicable city or county general plan or the district park recreation plan, as the 


case may be. 


123 of 170







 


53 
 


(b) To utilize available grant funds as effectively as possible, overlapping and adjoining 


jurisdictions and applicants with similar objectives are encouraged to combine projects and 


submit a joint application. A recipient may allocate all or a portion of its per capita share for a 


regional or state project. 


 


 
Allocation Tables 
Following are the allocations for Per Capita GRANTEES. 
 
Allocation Transfer6 – Entities that receive an allocation under the Per Capita program 
may transfer all or part of that allocation to another eligible entity, provided that the 
following requirements are met: 
1. All required documentation must be submitted no later than six months from the end 


of the encumbrance period. 
2. The transferring agency must submit a resolution authorizing the transfer of the 


allocation. The resolution must name the recipient entity and the transferred amount. 
3. The recipient must be eligible to receive Per Capita funds. 
4. The recipient must have submitted the authorizing resolution shown on page 6. 
5. The recipient must submit a resolution authorizing the receipt of funds; the resolution 


must state the donor and the transferred amount. 


 


Definitions 
Capitalized words and terms used in this guide are defined below.   
ADVANCE – payment made to the GRANTEE for work that will occur in the future or work 
that has already occurred during the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD and has not been paid 
for by the GRANTEE. 
APPLICATION PACKET – the Application form and its required attachments described in 
the Application Checklist and Directions beginning on page 9. 
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE – the GRANTEE’S designated position authorized in the 
Resolution to sign all required GRANT documents.  
CEQA – the California Environmental Quality Act established policies and procedures 
requiring GRANTEES to identify, disclose to decision makers and the public, and attempt 
to lessen, significant impacts to environmental and historical resources that may occur 
as a result of the GRANTEE’S proposed PROJECT. (Public Resources Code §21000 et 
seq.; Title 14 California Code of Regulations §15000 et seq.) 
COMMUNITY ACCESS PROJECT – a) transportation, b) physical activity programming, c) 
resource interpretation, d) multilingual translation, e) natural science, f) workforce 
development and career pathways, g) education, h) communication related to water, 
parks, climate, coastal protection, and other outdoor pursuits pursuant to Public 
Resources Code §80008(c)(1) 


                                            
6 Please contact OGALS for sample transfer and recipient resolutions. 


124 of 170







 


54 
 


CONSTRUCTION COSTS – costs incurred starting with the date when ground-breaking 
construction activities such as site preparation, grading, or gutting begins, and 
continuing to the end of the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD. 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE PERIOD – the amount of time stated on the contract agreement, 
specifying the performance of the contractual grant obligations between the GRANTEE 
and DPR. 
DEVELOPMENT – construction, expansion, or renovation. 
DPR – the California Department of Parks and Recreation.   
GRANT – funds made available to a GRANTEE for completion of the PROJECT SCOPE(s) 
during the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD. 
GRANTEE – an entity having a fully executed contract with DPR. 
GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD – period of time that ELIGIBLE COSTS may be incurred by the 
GRANTEE and paid for by DPR, as specified in the fully executed contract.  
IN-HOUSE EMPLOYEE SERVICES – use of the GRANTEE’S employees working on the 
PROJECT SCOPE. 
OGALS – DPR’s Office of Grants and Local Services.   
PRE-CONSTRUCTION COSTS – costs incurred within the GRANT PERFORMANCE PERIOD for the 
planning, design, and permit phase of the PROJECT before construction can begin. 
PROJECT – the SCOPE as described in the APPLICATION PACKET to be completed with 
GRANT funds. 
PROJECT COMPLETION – when the PROJECT is complete and the facilities are open and 
useable by the public.   
PROJECT COMPLETION PACKET – The documents listed on page 36 that are required in 
order to request final payment following PROJECT COMPLETION. 
PROJECT OFFICER – an OGALS employee, who acts as a liaison with GRANTEES and 
administers GRANT funds, facilitates compliance with the Procedural Guide, and the 
GRANT contract.   
SCOPE – the acquisition, recreation features and major support amenities, or COMMUNITY 
ACCESS PROJECT described in the APPLICATION PACKET that must be completed prior to 
final GRANT payment. 
TOTAL PROJECT COST – the combined dollar amount of all funding sources used to 
complete the acquisition, or recreation features and major support amenities described 
in the APPLICATION PACKET.    


125 of 170







   
 CITY COUNCIL   


REPORT                                                          7E 
                                                                                                                                          
                                                            
                                                             


 
 
 


 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019  


 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/CITY 


ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT AND ISSUE A 


TASK ORDER FOR 4LEAF FOR STAFF AUGMENTATION FOR AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $211,285 


 


 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution to: 


 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call contract 


with 4Leaf  for a Task Order for staff augmentation in an amount not to exceed 
$211,285; and 
 


2. Authorize the Finance Director to amend the adopted budget to re-allocate 
$119,704 from Salaries and Benefits to Professional Services in Fund 212, in 
Budget Units 461, 462, and 465. 


   
BACKGROUND 


 
We have been and expect to continue to experience a lot of activity in the Building and 
Planning divisions of the Development Services Department. To be able to deliver 
service to the development community and home owners, it is necessary for the City to 
continue to rely upon our On-Call Consultants for staff augmentation.  
 
On November 13, 2018, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2018-101 approving 
on-call contract services for a number of consulting firms. M-Group, 4Leaf, CSG, and 
Safebuilt are firms on the On-Call list able to provide these services. The City has most 
recently been utilizing the services of 4Leaf for our new Code Enforcement position and 
our Permit Technician positions. Additionally, we are using 4leaf to provide a project 
specific Planner for several large development projects.  
 
We are currently recruiting for our new Code Enforcement Officer position, with 
interviews scheduled for November 12th. And we just successfully completed our 
recruitment for the two Permit Technician positions.  
 
 
 


126 of 170







City Council Meeting 7E 
November 5, 2019  2 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
It is vital that we continue to rely on our On-Call Consultants for staff augmentation for 
positions when they are vacant to be able to deliver service to the community.  Based 
on actual need and recent staff hires, it is estimated that we will need $245,000 the total 
for all currently planned staff augmentation from 4Leaf for the 2019/20 FY 
 
On May 7, 2019, Council approved a Task Order for $100,000 for an Interim Planning 
Manager.  On June 4, 2019, Council approved a Task Order for $50,000 for Project 
Specific Planner. These two Task Orders have $33,715 in funding to carry over into FY 
2019/20. $211,285 needs to be added to the Task Orders.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
To provide the funding necessary to cover this task order it is proposed to reallocate 
salary and benefits for the vacant positions to professional services. It is recommended 
to re-allocate $119,704 in funds from Salaries and Benefits to Professional Services as 
follows: $20,424 in 461, Planning; $54,400 in 462, Building; and $44,880 in 465, Code 
Enforcement.  There is no new funding being requested at this time, simply a 
reallocation from the Salaries/Benefits line item to the Professional Services line item. 
 
The remainder of the required funding is already budgeted in the Professional Services 
line item for each budget unit.  
 


 
ATTACHMENTS 


 
A. Resolution  
B. 4Leaf Contract Amendment Task Order 


 


127 of 170







  ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE,  


COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ON CALL CONTRACT WITH  


4LEAF ISSUING A TASK ORDER FOR CONTRACT STAFF AUGMENTATION  
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TO $211,285 


 
 
WHEREAS, the City has utilized 4Leaf for many years for staff augmentation for 


planner, permit technician, and building inspection;  
 
WHEREAS, in November 13, 2018, the City Council approved several on-call 


contracts which included 4LEAF for a period of four (4) years ending November 13, 
2022 with the understanding that any contract amendments in excess of $45,000 be 
presented to the City Council for approval; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is currently recruiting for a Code Enforcement Officer and a 
Building Inspector; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City continues to experience high levels of building activity and 


Code Enforcement service requests from the public; and  
 
WHEREAS, 4Leaf can provide the staff augmentation for these positions; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City continues to utilize the services of a project specific Planner 


for several large development projects; and  
 
WHEREAS, the total anticipated cost for all currently planned staff augmentation 


from 4Leaf is expected to be $245,400 for the 2019/20 FY; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Council  approved two Task Orders late in FY 18/19 for a total of 


$150,000 for staff augmentation in FY 18/19 with $34,115 still available for FY 19/20.  
 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby take the following actions:  


 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call contract 


for a task order for 4Leaf to provide additional staff augmentation for an 
amount not to exceed $211,285; and  
 


2. Authorize the Finance Director to re-allocate $119,704 in funds from Salaries 
and Benefits to Professional Services as follows: $20,424 in 461, Planning; 
$54,400 in 462, Building; and $44,880 in 465, Code Enforcement. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole held on the 5th day of November 2019, by the following vote: 
 


128 of 170







Pinole City Council 
Resolution No. 2019-__ 
Page 2 


 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:    


NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 5th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 


129 of 170







ATTACHMENT B 


  


AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 


4LEAF 
 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated November 20, 2018 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and 4LEAF (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as “Parties”) is 
approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
Exhibit A and B shall read as follows:  
 
Task Order to provide staff augmentation in an amount not to exceed $211,285 
bringing the total value of the Task Orders for FY 19/20 to $245,000.  
 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Services 
Agreement, dated November 20, 2018, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
  
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Michelle Fitzer       
City Manager         
 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
        
 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 
Dated: _____________________  
 


130 of 170







   
 CITY COUNCIL   


REPORT                                                          7F 
                                                                                                                                          
                                                            
                                                             


 
 
 


 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019  


 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR/CITY 


ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT:  APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE CONTRACT FOR A TASK 


ORDER FOR M GROUP FOR STAFF AUGMENTATION FOR AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $87,000 


 


 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a resolution to authorize the City 
Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call contract with M Group  for a Task 
Order for staff augmentation in an amount not to exceed $87,000. 


 
BACKGROUND 


 
We have been and expect to continue to experience a lot of activity in the Building and 
Planning divisions of the Development Services Department. To be able to deliver 
service to the development community and home owners, it is necessary for the City to 
continue to rely upon our On-Call Consultants for staff augmentation.  
 
On November 13, 2018, the City Council approved Resolution No. 2018-101 approving 
on-call contract services for a number of consulting firms. M-Group, 4Leaf, CSG, and 
Safebuilt are firms on the On-Call list able to provide these services. The City has most 
recently been utilizing the services of M Group for Associate Planner services. The 
additional services are necessary to keep up with the peak workload.  
 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
It is vital that we continue to rely on our On-Call Consultants for staff augmentation to 
assist in managing the variable workload. We have seen a large volume of projects in 
Pinole; the additional resources are required to deliver service to the community and 
provide them in a timely manner.   
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The funding necessary to cover this task order was already budgeted in the 
Professional Services line item for budget unit 461, so there is no fiscal impact.  


131 of 170







City Council Meeting 7F 
November 5, 2019  2 
 
 


 
ATTACHMENTS 


 
A. Resolution  
B. M Group Contract Amendment Task Order 


 


132 of 170







  ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019- 


 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE,  


COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, 
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE ON CALL CONTRACT WITH  


M GROUP ISSUING A TASK ORDER FOR CONTRACT STAFF AUGMENTATION  
IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED TO $87,000 


 
 
WHEREAS, the City has utilized M Group in recent years for staff augmentation 


for Planner services;  
 
WHEREAS, in November 13, 2018, the City Council approved several on-call 


contracts which included M Group for a period of four (4) years ending November 13, 
2022 with the understanding that any contract amendments in excess of $45,000 be 
presented to the City Council for approval; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City is currently experiencing high levels of building activity; and  


 
WHEREAS, M Group can provide the staff augmentation to assist the City in 


preforming services for the peak in planning needs brought about by development; and  
 
WHEREAS, the total anticipated cost for all currently planned staff augmentation 


from M Group for FY19/20 is expected to be $87,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, funding for this task will be provided though the fee structure for 


services; and  
 
WHEREAS, funding for this effort has already been allocated in the adopted FY 


2019/20 budget.  
 


 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby authorize the City Manager to execute an amendment to the On-Call 
contract for a task order for M Group to provide staff augmentation in an amount not to 
exceed $87,000.  


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole held on the 5th day of November 2019, by the following vote: 
 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:    


NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:     


 


133 of 170







Pinole City Council 
Resolution No. 2019-__ 
Page 2 


 


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 5th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 


134 of 170







  ATTACHMENT B 


  


AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 


M GROUP 
 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated November 20, 2018 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and M Group (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as “Parties”) is 
approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
Exhibit A and B shall read as follows:  
 
Task Order to provide staff augmentation in an amount not to exceed $87,000.  
 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Services 
Agreement, dated November 20, 2018, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
  
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Michelle Fitzer       
City Manager         
 
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
        
 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 
Dated: _____________________  
 


135 of 170







   


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT  7G
  
  


 
 
  
 
 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019  
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: HEATHER IOPU, CITY CLERK  
 
SUBJECT: PLACEMENT OF LIENS FOR DELINQUENT UNPAID WASTE 


COLLECTION CHARGES FALLING DELINQUENT BETWEEN 
MAY & AUGUST 2019, CONSIDERED AT AN ADMINISTRATIVE 
HEARING ON OCTOBER 3, 2019 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution authorizing the 
placement of liens for the purpose of collecting outstanding payments for 
garbage collection services pursuant to PMC Section 8.08.110 (b) and (c). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Pursuant to Section 8.08 of the Pinole Municipal Code, an administrative hearing 
was held on October 3, 2019 regarding unpaid garbage collection services that 
fell delinquent between May and August 2019. No parties attended the hearing to 
protest the charges. The administrative hearing was the final step in the process 
to collect the delinquencies, prior to Council approval to place the liens on the 
subject properties to recover the full amount owed, including delinquent charges 
and administrative fees.    
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The City of Pinole receives an administrative recovery charge for each lien at the 
time of tax settlement or payment of the lien.  There are 123 properties on which 
liens are being imposed, representing a total of $44,429.36 in delinquent service 
charges.  The total administrative recovery fee is $60 per lien; a portion of which 
is remitted to Contra Costa County. The administrative recovery fees are 
$7,380.00; the total lien amount including recovery fees are $51,809.36.   
 
Following approval by Council, a revised list will be provided to the City Clerk for 
recording, removing properties where accounts have been brought current since 
the publication of this report. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A Resolution  


136 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-___  


 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA, PLACING LIENS 


ON PROPERTIES SITUATED IN THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF CONTRA 
COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS 


UNPAID WASTE COLLECTION CHARGES FROM AN ADMINISTRATIVE HEARING 
CONDUCTED OCTOBER 3, 2019 


 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Municipal Code of the City of Pinole, Chapter 8.08, 
Section 8.08.090, subscription to garbage collection service is required for all premises 
in the City of Pinole, and the premises described in Exhibit "A" located in the City of 
Pinole, County of Contra Costa, State of California, were provided with garbage 
collection services as required by PMC, Chapter 8.08; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 8.08.110, the owners of said 
premises were notified in writing of their requirement to subscribe to and make payment 
for garbage collection services as provided in said Code Section; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the owners of the premises failed to make payment for garbage 
collection services as required (collection charges fell delinquent between May and 
August 2019); and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 8.08.110, a hearing was held 
on October 3 2019; and 
 
 WHEREAS, as a result thereof, the City of Pinole has incurred expenses for 
delinquent collection charges and administrative costs as enumerated in Exhibit "A"*, 
which amounts remain unpaid. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that pursuant to Section 8.08.110 of the 
Municipal Code of the City of Pinole, the City Council of the City of Pinole does hereby 
place a lien against said premises for the amounts as described above and as 
applicable to each specific premise identified as Exhibit "A" attached hereto and, by this 
reference, incorporated herein; and 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Clerk is hereby directed to record this 
resolution with the Office of the Recorder of Contra Costa County, California. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 5th day of November, 2019, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBERS:    
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBERS:    
ABSTAIN:    COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted on this 5th day of  
November, 2019.   
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
*     Exhibit A is not included as an attachment to this resolution that is posted on the City website 
or disseminated as part of the City Council Agenda Packet.   The names of the individuals are 
confidential until the liens are recorded and become public record. 


 


137 of 170







   


  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7H 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER  
 
SUBJECT: UPDATE TO THE MEASURE S 2014 FIVE-YEAR FUNDING PLAN  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve the updated Measure S 2014 Five-
Year Funding Plan. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
In November 2014, the Pinole voters approved Measure S 2014 which included a 
general sales tax measure of ½ cent.  The City Council recognized that it would be 
financially prudent to approve a five-year spending plan, and to maintain these funds 
in a separate fund from the General Fund.  The City Council approved the initial five-
year plan on May 5, 2015. The Measure S 2014 Five-Year Funding Plan has been 
amended each subsequent fiscal year.  
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
Appropriations for a new Five-Year Plan were approved by City Council June 18, 2019 
with the adoption of the FY2019-20 Operating Budget.  The new Measure S 2014 
Five-Year Funding Plan covers fiscal years 2019-20 through 2023-24. Subsequent to 
the adoption in June 2019, the plan was amended on October 1, 2019 to add projects 
through the Capital Improvement Plan, which was approved on September 17, 2019.   
 
Another amendment is now before Council in response to the Camera Upgrade 
Project through the Police Department, approved by the Council on October 15th.  The 
project total is $264,051, which was authorized from the Measure S 2014 Fund 
Balance. 
 
The revised plan before Council for consideration now includes a total of $1,956,650 in 
requested use of Fund Balance in FY 2019/20.  Given the modification, the estimated 
Fund Balance at June 30, 2020 is projected to be $1,045,204.  It should be noted that 
future fiscal years also include some planned use of Fund Balance totaling $482,000. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The update proposed to the Measure S 2014 5-Year Funding Plan was approved by 
the Council October 15, 2019. The change utilizes Fund Balance, which will reduce 


138 of 170







City Council Report – 7H 
November 5, 2019  2 


the available balance from that originally anticipated and approved by Council in June 
2019.   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution 
B Updated Measure S 2014 Five-Year Funding Plan 
 


139 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 


 


 


RESOLUTION NO. 2019-___ 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE UPDATED 


MEASURE S 2014 FIVE-YEAR FUNDING PLAN 
 


WHEREAS, the Council approved a new Measure S 2014 Five-Year Funding 
Plan as part of the City’s Operations Budget on June 18, 2019; and 


 
WHEREAS, the approval of the Fiscal Year 2019-20 through 2023-24 Capital 


Improvement Plan and budget for FY 2019-20 on September 17, 2019, included 
additional allocation of Measure S 2014 funding not known as of June 18, 2019; and  


 
WHEREAS, the approval of camera system upgrade project out of Measure S 


2014 Fund Balance on October 15, 2019 was not known as of the last update to the 
Funding Plan on October 1, 2019; and  


 
WHEREAS, an amendment is needed to the Measure S 2014 Five-Year Funding 


Plan to accommodate the additional funding allocation. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby 


approve the updated Measure S 2014 Five-Year Funding Plan. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 


the 5th day of November 2019 by the following vote: 
 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
 


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 5th day of November 2019. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 


140 of 170







CITY OF PINOLE
MEASURE S 2014 FIVE-YEAR FUNDING PLAN


ADOPTED JUNE 18, 2019 / REVISED OCTOBER 1, 2019 / REVISED NOVEMBER 1, 2019
Annual Available Funding Approx $1.9 Million based on 95% of HdL Projections   
Had to move $100,000 in MS 06 allocation to MS 14 due to the loss of 3 large retailers


Functional Area Notes FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24


Cable Television
Operating Contribution 55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         


Total 55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         


City Facilities
Roof Repairs/Replace Roof Flashing - All City Facilities [1] -$               272,000$       140,000$       -$               -$               
Replace HVAC & Associated Roof at Senior Center [1] 110,000$       -$               -$               -$               -$               
Replace HVAC at City Hall [2]  $      120,000 -$               -$               -$               -$               
Paint City Hall Inside and Outside [1] -$               70,000$         -$               -$               -$               
Fowler House Lot Reuse [2]  $      200,000 -$               -$                $                -    $                -   


Total 430,000$       342,000$       140,000$       -$               -$               


City Hall
Annual Measure S 2014 Audit 1,200$           1,200$           1,200$           1,200$           1,200$           
Management Partners Contract - Council Team Building & 
Community Strategic Planning Projects [2] 57,200$         
Laserfiche Training in IT budget [1] 3,600$           -$               -$               -$               -$               
Replacement of document scanner in IT budget [2] 20,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               
HdL Contract for Sales Tax Analysis 1,233$           1,250$           1,250$           1,250$           1,250$           


Total 83,233$         2,450$           2,450$           2,450$           2,450$           


Recreation
Operating Subsidy - Swim Center 45,000$         45,000$         45,000$         45,000$         45,000$         
Ancillary Equip/Software for Rec Desk [1] 39,000$         
Summer Sounds in the Park- Twice a Summer 2,500$           3,000$           3,500$           4,000$           4,500$           
Cinema in the Park-3 Times a Summer 2,000$           2,000$           2,500$           2,500$           2,500$           
Community Service Commission 2,000$           2,000$           2,000$           2,000$           2,000$           
Annual Tree Lighting 1,000$           2,000$           2,500$           2,500$           2,500$           
Replace Senior Center Equipment: FY 19/20 = Dishwasher; 
20/21 = Tables; 21/22 = Chairs 7,000$           23,000$         28,000$         -$               -$               
Replace Commercial Refrigerator, Freezer & Stove at Youth 
Center 8,200$           -$               -$               -$               -$               
Replace Vinyl Floor at Youth Center -$               -$               10,000$         -$               -$               
Tiny Tots: FY 19/20 = Furniture, Tables, Shelves 
Replacement; 20/21 = Dishwasher; 21/22 = Shade; 22/23 = 
Countertop; 23/24 = Restroom Walls/Floor Repair/Replace. 14,800$         550$              2,400$           1,900$           11,000$         


Total 121,500$       77,550$         95,900$         57,900$         67,500$         


Development Services
Project Manager (Full Time 50%  Measure S and 50% from 
Other Funding Sources) 77,810$         83,257$         89,085$         95,321$         101,993$       
Initiate Internal Services Fund-Depreciation  to Replace 2 
Vehicles/Year Excludes Heavy Equipment 5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           
Downtown Parking & Pedestrian Safety Improvements Study [2] 100,000$       -$               -$               -$               -$               
Code Enforcement Vehicle 30,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               
Tablet for Code Enforcement 2,000$           -$               -$               -$               -$               


Total 214,810$       88,257$         94,085$         100,321$       106,993$       


Parks
Annual re sod @ two Soccer Fields 10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         
Replace Chips/Rubber Matting at various locations 
(carryover) [1] 50,000$         -$               -$               -$               -$               
Annual bench/table repairs/replacement 5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           
Replace Fernandez Park turf & annual repairs -$               5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           5,000$           
New Restrooms at Fernandez Park [1]  $      333,603 -$               -$                $                -    $                -   
Senior Center Parking Lot Pavement Maintenance [1]  $        67,196 -$               -$                $                -    $                -   
Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation [2]  $      200,000 -$               -$                $                -    $                -   
Fernandez Park Baseball Field Rehabilitation [2]  $      200,000 -$               -$                $                -    $                -   


Total  $      865,799  $        20,000  $        20,000  $        20,000  $        20,000 


141 of 170



fitzer

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT B







CITY OF PINOLE
MEASURE S 2014 FIVE-YEAR FUNDING PLAN


ADOPTED JUNE 18, 2019 / REVISED OCTOBER 1, 2019 / REVISED NOVEMBER 1, 2019
Annual Available Funding Approx $1.9 Million based on 95% of HdL Projections   
Had to move $100,000 in MS 06 allocation to MS 14 due to the loss of 3 large retailers


Functional Area Notes FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24


Public Works
1 Maintenance Worker ( Full Time)  $      108,991 116,620$       124,784$       133,519$       142,865$       
Initiate Internal Services Fund-Depreciation  to Replace 2 
Vehicles/Year Excludes Heavy Equipment 30,000$          $        30,000 30,000$         30,000$         30,000$         
Initiate Internal Services Fund-Depreciation  for Heavy 
Equipment 50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         50,000$         
Residential/Arterial  Street Maintenance Program 500,000$       500,000$       500,000$       500,000$       500,000$       
Storm Drainage Master Plan - Phased 25,000$         25,000$         25,000$         -$               -$               
Storm Drainage Annual Rehabilitation 150,000$       150,000$       150,000$       150,000$       
Hazel Street Drainage Improvements [4] 192,000$       
Replacement of Traffic Signs 20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         
Public Tree Maintenance 20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         
Sidewalk Maintenance 20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         20,000$         
Pedestrian Bridge Inspection & Maintenance [2] 100,000$       -$               -$               -$               -$               


Total  $   1,065,991  $      931,620 939,784$       923,519$       932,865$       


Police
Community Safety Specialist (1 Full Time) [3] 103,087$       110,303$       118,024$       126,286$       135,126$       
1 Vehicle Replacement 55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         55,000$         
Patrol Overtime (reallocated from MS '06) 100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       100,000$       
Dispatch Overtime 25,000$         25,000$         25,000$         25,000$         25,000$         
Camera System Upgrades Project [2] 264,051$       
Emergency Preparedness [1] 50,000$         


Total 597,138$       290,303$       298,024$    306,286$       315,126$       


Fire
Full Time Fire Chief 263,628$       282,082$       301,828$       322,956$       345,563$       
Station 73 & 74 Maintenance -$               10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         
Fire Training Academy 30,000$         30,000$         30,000$         30,000$         30,000$         
Annual Dept Training Requirements 10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         10,000$         
Replace Training Props 2,500$           -$               -$               -$               -$               


Total 306,128$       332,082$       351,828$       372,956$       395,563$       


City Attorney
Municipal Code Update 35,000$         35,000$         35,000$         35,000$         35,000$         


Total 35,000$         35,000$         35,000$         35,000$         35,000$         


Grand Total 3,774,599$    2,174,262$    2,032,070$    1,873,431$    1,930,497$    


One-time use of Fund Balance 1,692,599$    342,000$       140,000$       


Net Current FY Revenue Required 2,082,000$    1,832,262$    1,892,070$    1,873,431$    1,930,497$    


Total Fund Balance as of 6/30/18 3,001,854$    
Net Allocated Fund Balance as of 3/31/19 535,218$       


Estimated Unallocated Fund Balance as of 6/30/19 2,466,636$    


Requested Use of Unallocated Fund Balance for FY 19/20 1,421,432$    
Estimated Fund Balance as of June 30, 2020 1,045,204$    


NOTES:
[1] Carried over from prior FYs; to be paid out of Fund Balance.
[2] One-time expense recommended to be paid from Fund Balance
[3] Was funded as 2 part-time in prior years; requesting to make it 1 F/T
[4] $150,000 transferred from Storm Drain Annual Rehab Allocation; Additional $42,000 requested from Fund Balance.


142 of 170







   


  CITY COUNCIL 
  REPORT 7I 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  
 
FROM: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: APPROVE AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 


AGREEMENT WITH EMERGENCY SERVICES CONSULTING 
INTERNATIONAL (ESCI) IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,500 
TO PERFORM ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS IN THE FIRE SERVICE 
DELIVERY STUDY 


 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council approve a Professional Services Agreement 
with ESCI in an amount not to exceed $10,500 to perform additional analysis in the 
Fire Services Delivery Study, authorize the City Manager to execute the 
Amendment, and authorize the Finance Director to amend the budget accordingly. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At their March 19, 2019 meeting the Council approved a Professional Services 
Agreement with ESCI to perform a Fire Services Delivery Study in an amount not to 
exceed $60,000.    
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The ESCI team worked diligently with City staff to prepare the draft Fire Services 
Delivery Study.  The Council received the draft report at a special workshop held on 
October 8th.  At that meeting, Council requested additional analysis be completed as 
part of preparation of the final report.  That included: 
 


• Evaluation of the possibility of implementing a Reserve Firefighter Program; 
• Evaluation of the possibility of running a Paramedic (non-Firefighter) unit out 


of Station 74; 
• Adding a cost allocation line item for each service delivery model option that 


includes a low-income senior discount; and 
• Updating the financial analyses to reflect updated 5-Year Forecasts for the 


General Fund and both Measure S funds. 
 


143 of 170







City Council Report 7I 
November 5, 2019  2 


FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The proposal for the Amendment reflects a cost of approximately $10,500, which 
brings the total authorized contract cost to $70,500. 
 
The recommended funding source remains Measure S 2006 Fund Balance, which is 
currently over $2 million dollars. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A: Resolution 
B: ESCI Proposal for Fire Service Delivery Study 
C: Amendment to Professional Services Agreement 
 


144 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 


RESOLUTION NO. 2019-                
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 


WITH EMERGENCY SERVICES CONSULTING INTERNATIONAL (ESCI) IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $10,500 TO PERFORM ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS IN THE  


FIRE SERVICE DELIVERY STUDY 
 


WHEREAS, at their March 19, 2019 meeting the Council approved a Professional 
Services Agreement with ESCI to perform a Fire Services Delivery Study in an amount not 
to exceed $60,000; and  


 
WHEREAS, the Council received the draft Report at a special workshop held on 


October 8, 2019; and  
 
WHEREAS, at the October 8th meeting, Council requested additional analysis be 


completed as part of preparation of the final report, including: 
 


• Evaluation of the possibility of implementing a Reserve Firefighter Program; 
• Evaluation of the possibility of running a Paramedic (non-Firefighter) unit out of Station 


74; 
• Adding a cost allocation line item for each service delivery model option that includes a 


low-income senior discount; and 
• Updating the financial analyses to reflect updated 5-Year Forecasts for the General 


Fund and both Measure S funds; and 
 


WHEREAS, the proposal for the Amendment reflects a cost of approximately 
$10,500, which brings the total authorized contract cost to $70,500; and  


 
WHEREAS, the recommended funding source remains Measure S 2006 Fund 


Balance, which is currently over $2 million dollars.  
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does 
hereby:  
 
Section 1: Authorize the City Manager to execute an Amendment to the Professional 


Service Agreement with Emergency Services Consulting International (ESCI) in 
an amount not to exceed $10,500 to perform additional analysis in the Fire 
Services Delivery Study, bringing the total contract approval to $70,500; and 


 
Section 2: Authorize the Finance Director to amend the FY 2019/20 budget to add an 


additional $10,500 expenditure in the Fire Department Professional Services 
line item for the ESCI contract, allocated from Measure S 2006 Fund Balance. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 


the 5th day of November, 2019 by the following vote: 
 


145 of 170







Resolution No. 2019- 
November 5, 2019 
Page 2 
 
 
 


AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:   


NOES: 
 
ABSENT: 


COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 


COUNCILMEMBERS: 


 
 


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted 
on the 5th day of November 2019. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC  
City Clerk 


146 of 170







  
EMERGENCY SERVICES CONSULTING INTERNATIONAL 


 Pinole Fire Department 
Pinole, California 


4795 Meadow Wood Lane, Chantilly, VA 22033 • 800.757.3724 
www.esci.us 


Proposal to Develop an Addendum to The  


REGIONAL FIRE SERVICE 
DELIVERY STUDY 


October  2019 


147 of 170



fitzer

Typewritten Text

ATTACHMENT B







 


 
 1 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Contents 
Addendum to Phase VI—Project Scope of Work ........................................................................ 2 


Phase I: Project Initiation & Information Acquisition .......................................................................... 2 
Task I-A:  Initiate the Project ......................................................................................................................... 2 


Task I-B: Data Acquisition ............................................................................................................................. 2 


Phase II: Prepare Addendum to Phase VI of Original Project ............................................................... 2 
Task II-A:  Update Original Financial Calculations ......................................................................................... 2 


Task II-B: Develop Parcel Tax Options ........................................................................................................... 2 


Task II-C: Reserve Firefighter Program. ......................................................................................................... 2 


Task II-D: Proposal Review of Single-Role ALS Ambulance ........................................................................... 2 


Phase III: Development, Review, & Delivery of the Project Addendum ................................................. 3 
Task III-A: Development & Review of Draft Report ....................................................................................... 3 


Task III-B: Publication of Final Addendum Report ......................................................................................... 3 


Project Timeline & Fee Proposal ............................................................................................... 4 


Project Completion Timelines .......................................................................................................... 4 


Reasonableness of Cost & Price ........................................................................................................ 4 


Project Rate/Fee Schedule ............................................................................................................... 4 
Proposed Payment Schedule ........................................................................................................................ 4 


Information Relative to Cost Quotation ........................................................................................................ 5 


Project Team Assignments ...................................................................................................... 6 


Appendix A: Project Team Qualifications .................................................................................. 7 


  


148 of 170







 


 
 2 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Addendum to— Regional Fire Service Delivery Project Scope of 
Work 


The following additional phase and tasks will be completed to produce an addendum to the final report and 


recommendations. This methodology has been developed specifically for this project based on our 


understanding of the City of Pinole’s expectations. ESCI will utilize approaches, tools, and techniques proven 


through experience to provide the kind and quality of information needed to make objective, informed 


decisions. 


Phase I: Project Initiation & Information Acquisition 


Task I-A:  Initiate the Project 


ESCI will work with the City of Pinole and the Pinole Fire Department to initiate the process for beginning the 


addendum to Phase VI of the original project. 


Task I-B: Data Acquisition 


ESCI will request from the City of Pinole, the Pinole Fire Department, and any other relevant individuals or 


organizations, the necessary data and information to complete this addendum. 


Phase II: Prepare Addendum to Phase VI of Original Project 


Task II-A:  Update Original Financial Calculations  


ESCI will utilize the City’s updated 5-year projections for the General Fund, and both Measure S Funds to 


update all financial and option cost analysis within the original report. 


Task II-B: Develop Parcel Tax Options  


• ESCI will request pertinent information and data from the City and department. This data will be used 


extensively in the analysis and development of an updated formula and breakdown of parcel tax 


scenarios related to the funding of service-delivery recommendations.  


• This option will include a calculation for Senior Citizen discount. 


Task II-C: Reserve Firefighter Program. 


• The ESCI project team will conduct an analysis of California, CAL-OSHA and NFPA Standards related to 


the operation of a reserve firefighter program. 


• Costs, viability, and applicability for augmenting full time staff will be explored and commented on.  


Task II-D: Proposal Review of Single-Role ALS Ambulance 


• ESCI will review the proposal from CCFPD to provide the City with a dedicated single-role ALS 


ambulance. The proposal will be analyzed and compared with the current service-delivery needs of the 


City of Pinole. 


• ESCI will analyze the efficiency of a two-person ALS-qualified Staffed Quick Attack Type VI apparatus 


versus a Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Contracted single-role ALS ambulance. 


  


149 of 170







 


 
 3 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Phase III: Development, Review, & Delivery of the Project Addendum  


Task III-A: Development & Review of Draft Report 


ESCI will develop and produce an electronic version of the draft written addendum for review by the client and 


client representatives. Client feedback is a critical part of this project and adequate opportunity will be provided 


for review and discussion of the draft report prior to finalization. The report will include:  


• Detailed narrative analysis of each report component structured in easy-to-read sections and 


accompanied by explanatory support to encourage understanding by both staff and civilian readers 


• Clearly designated recommendations highlighted for easy reference and cataloged as necessary in a 


report appendix 


Task III-B: Publication of Final Addendum Report 


• Following review of the draft, ESCI will complete any necessary revisions of the draft and produce five 


publication-quality bound, final versions of the written report along with an electronic copy in PDF file 


format.  


  


150 of 170







 


 
 4 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Project Timeline & Fee Proposal 


Project Completion Timelines 
The timeline for the proposed project is anticipated to be 90 days or less. It is noted that the timing starts once 


the requested  information is received from the client in response to ESCI’s initial data request. 


Reasonableness of Cost & Price 
ESCI develops project pricing based on a system in which we identify a scope of work, calculate the hours 


estimated to complete each task as listed in the work plan, and assigning an hourly rate accordingly. Having 


completed hundreds of projects nationally and many in California, we have designed a pricing structure that is 


highly competitive and, most importantly, fair to the client. Hourly rates are translated into a total project cost. 


The proposed pricing is a fixed amount, inclusive of all expenses incurred. For this reason, absent changes to 


the scope of work that may be agreed upon, there will be no surprise cost overruns and are no hidden costs 


other than the stated contract value.  


Project Rate/Fee Schedule 
The following is a breakdown of the bid price by phase, consulting, and expense as outlined in the Scope of 


Work as follows:  


Project Phase Consulting Fees Expenses  Total 


Phase I: Project Initiation & Information Acquisition $0 $0 $0 


Phase II: Prepare Addendum to Phase VI of Original Project $7,435 $0 $7,435 


Phase III: Development, Review, & Delivery of Addendum  $1,000 $1,988 $2,988 


Total Cost of Project Without Option: $10,423 


 


The rate schedule for all resources necessary to complete the proposed services is shown below. Any optional 


services requested by the client and performed by ESCI will be provided at the specific rates shown as assigned 


to specific job responsibilities and/or duties needed for the work. 


• Project Manager: $175/hour   


• Associate Consultants:  $160/hour 


• Additional Public Presentations:  $1,500 each (includes time and expenses) 


Proposed Payment Schedule 


• 10% payment due upon signing of the contract. 


• Monthly invoicing thereafter as work progresses. 


  


151 of 170







 


 
 5 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Information Relative to Cost Quotation 


• Bid quotation is valid for 90 days. 


• ESCI Federal Employer Identification Number: 23-2826074. 


• When requested, and in a timely manner, the client will provide data, information, and materials required 


for the completion of the objectives outlined in the Scope of Work submitted in this proposal.   


• ESCI shall perform any additional work on a time and materials basis as requested in writing by the client 


at a negotiated hourly rate.  


152 of 170







 


 
 6 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Project Team Assignments 
Emergency Services Consulting International has assigned the following associates to the project. All team 


members will be available for the duration of the project. Along with the project team, ESCI’s full-time staff will 


be available to assist on the project as needed. Detailed information on the background and qualifications of 


each member of the team will be found in Appendix A. 


The selection and experience of the project manager is important to the success of this project. ESCI is offering 


a project manager who will: 


• Assist in the development and coordination of a project work plan. 


• Have the ability to work closely with your representatives. 


• Facilitate project team meetings to share project findings and ideas. 


• Provide direction based on experience in similar situations, and knowledge of organizational staff 


analyses. 


 


Team Member Project Assignments 


Kurt Latipow, Project Manager 
Project Manager; responsible for the overall content and quality of 
the project and will ensure that the project is accomplished on 
schedule and within budget. 


Randy Parr Financial components 


John Stouffer, Regional Manager General Project Oversight 


 


  


153 of 170







 


 
 7 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Appendix A: Project Team Qualifications 
Kurt Latipow 
Senior Associate/Project Manager  


Summary of Qualifications 
Mr. Latipow has enjoyed 40   years in Public Safety with over 27 years of Public 


Administration in Fire Chief and Chief Officer positions. He has developed and implemented 


numerous comprehensive fire and emergency services related plans. Mr. Latipow has 


facilitated the adoption of those plans via a variety of governing bodies. Mr. Latipow offers 


extensive experience in developing and implementing emergency, strategic, master plans 


and succession plans/management processes   as well as developing and implementing 


Standards of Cover Analysis, Fees for Service Cost Recovery Programs and ALS Program Development and 


Implementation for both transport and engine company-based organizations.  


Work Experience  


• City of Lompoc, CA - Fire Chief  


• Washoe County, NV - County Fire Services Coordinator  


• City of Ukiah, CA - Fire Chief  


• State of California, Governor's Office of Emergency Services – Deputy Chief, Fire and Rescue Branch  


• Stanislaus Consolidated Fire Protection District, CA - Fire Chief/Chief Executive Officer  


• Hesperia Fire Protection District, CA - Fire Chief  


• City of Arroyo Grande, CA - Fire Chief/Director of Building and Fire  


• City of Monterey Park Fire Department, CA - Battalion Chief/Fire Marshal  


Education  


• National Fire Academy – Accredited Executive Fire Officer  


• California Fire Marshal Training and Education System  


Publications and Instructor Experience  


• IAFC/Volunteer Combination Officers 2017 Symposium in the West -Building Leaders  From Within    


• IAFC and League of California Cities 2016 - "The Achilles Heel of Local Government"  


• California Fire Chiefs 2016 - "The Why and How of Succession Planning and Implementation"  


• League of California Cities 2015 - "Contracting for Fire Services; the Trials, Tribulations, Landmines and 
Political Challenges"  


• League of California Cities 2014 - "Leading Change in the New Reality"  


• California Fire Chiefs Association 2012 - "Re-engineering Fire Service-Based Service Delivery"  


• IAFC/ICMA 2012 - Success & Sustainability  


Professional Affiliations  


• California Fire Chiefs Association  


• League of California Cities Fire Department – Past President  


• League of California Cities Public Safety Policy – Past Committee Chair  


• Life member International Association of Fire Chiefs  
 
 


Note: This is a brief summary of Mr. Latipow’s CV. A complete version can be made available on request 


  


154 of 170







 


 
 8 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


Randall Parr 
Associate Consultant 


 


Summary of Qualifications 


Mr. Parr has over 40 years of experience in the fire service including 20 years as a chief officer. 


He has served in four different fire departments in Texas and Missouri. The agencies he has 


worked for range from mid-sized combination fire districts serving a population of 100,000 to a 


leading a small municipal department’s transition from a volunteer based delivery system to a 


career based delivery system. He has served the past 13 years in a career position as the fire 


chief for the City of Tomball, a suburb of the City of Houston Texas with a population of 25,000.   


He is a certified public accountant and during his career has served as the chief financial officer of several large 


regional real estate developers and also served as the City of Tomball interim financial officer. Chief Parr brings 


his diverse skills to ESCI to provide inter-agency collaboration, strategic planning, master planning, and 


organizational evaluation. He has a track record of focusing on cost effectiveness and efficiency, with a 


reputation for building regional collaborative solutions. He has advised policy-makers on fire service delivery 


options, created financial models and has made presentations to larger workshops on such topics as regional 


collaboration. 


Educational Background 


• Bachelors in Business, Accounting Major, Indiana University, 1970 


• Master’s in Public Administration, Sam Houston State University, Huntsville, TX, 2016 


• Executive Fire Officer Graduate – National Fire Academy 


• Extensive training in leadership, financial management, and planning 


Professional Experience 


• Fire Chief/Emergency Management Coordinator – City of Tomball, TX (2004 – present)  


• Fire Chief – Cypress Creek Fire Department, Houston, TX (1999 – 2004)  


• Chief Financial Officer – Turner Adreac Development, Sugar Land, TX 


• Controller/Financial Officer – Trammel Crow Residential/Gables Residential Trust 


Relevant Experience 


• Board of Directors of the Southwest Division of the IAFC  


• Southeast Region Director, Texas Fire Chiefs Association  


• Facilitator, Northwest Harris County Fire Chiefs Association 


• Treasurer, Institution of Fire Engineers, USA Branch 


• Peer Assessor I, Center for Public Safety Excellence Accreditation Site Team 


Associated Professional Accomplishments 


• 2009 recipient of IAFC-VCOS John Buckman Leadership Award 


• Developed UASI grant to equip 90 departments in a three-county area, including the City of Houston, with 
the same electronic accountability system 


• Led the development of the Standards of Cover and Strategic plan for the Tomball Fire Department 
 
 
Note: This is a brief summary of Mr. Parr’s CV. A complete version can be made available on request.  


155 of 170







 


 
 9 


Regional Fire Service Delivery Study Phase VI Addendum Proposal City of Pinole Fire Department 


John A. Stouffer 
Western Regional Manager/Project Manager 


Summary of Qualifications 


Mr. Stouffer began his career in public safety in 1976 as a firefighter/EMT with Yakima 


County (WA) Fire District #10, where he established the first EMS program in the 


department. In 1980, he attended the Paramedic Program at Central Washington 


University and obtained a position with Yakima (WA) Medic One becoming a field 


paramedic and the organization’s first Training Officer. In 1988, he was offered the 


position of the Director of the Yakima County (WA) Department of Emergency Medical 


Services. After holding that position for nine years, he took a position with Gresham (OR) Fire & Emergency 


Services as the EMS Coordinator, occasionally serving as the acting Chief of the Training Division, until his 


retirement in 2009. Since 1992, in addition to his other employment, Mr. Stouffer has been providing a wide 


variety of public safety consulting services to clients throughout the U.S. and Canada.  


Professional Experience 


• Project Manager/Associate Consultant, Emergency Services Consulting International 


• Technical Advisor/Program Developer, Vision 20/20 & Institution of Fire Engineers 


• EMS Research Investigator/Coordinator, Oregon Health & Science University 


• EMS Coordinator (Captain), Gresham Fire & Emergency Services 


• Senior Consultant, Pacific Northwest Associates, LLC 


• Director, Yakima County Department of Emergency Medical Services 


• Training Officer/Paramedic, Yakima Medic One 


• Firefighter/EMT-Paramedic/Medical Services Officer | Yakima County Fire District #10 


• More than 40 years diverse experience in fire and emergency medical services 


Educational Background & Certifications 


• Central Washington University 


• Yakima Valley Community College 


• Western Oregon University 


• National Fire Academy Incident Command for EMS 


• Seattle/King County Resuscitation Academy Fellowship 


• Multiple instructor certifications (NFPA I & II, ACLS, PHTLS, WSFST Instructor II, EZ-IO Instructor) 


• Numerous advanced-level EMS certifications 


• More than 250 hours fire service education, Washington State Fire Service Training 


Associated Professional Accomplishments 


• Project Manager and consultant on a number of fire and EMS projects around the U.S. and Canada 


• Co-authored and published a number of international prehospital studies (available on request) 


• Authored two guides on Community Risk Reduction for Vision 20/20 (available on request) 


• Project Co-Director, King LT Airway Implementation Project for Multnomah County (OR) 


• Author, Phases I & II of the Yakima County EMS Master Plan 


• Earned fourteen professional awards during his career (available on request) 
 
 
Note: This is a brief summary of Mr. Stouffer’s CV. A complete version can be made available on request. 


156 of 170







ATTACHMENT C 


  


AMENDMENT TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 


BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 
EMERGENCY SERVICES CONSULTING INTERNATIONAL (ESCI) IN AN AMOUNT NOT 


TO EXCEED $10,500 TO PERFORM ADDITIONAL ANALYSIS IN THE 
FIRE SERVICE DELIVERY STUDY 


 
This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated April 19, 2019 (the 
“Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal corporation, 
(“City”) and ESCI (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as “Parties”) is 
approved as of the date executed below. 
 
Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 
 
Section 1 shall be amended as follows:  
 
“Services shall be amended to include the additional items identified in the 
Proposal to Develop an Addendum to the Regional Fire Service Delivery Study.” 
 
Section 2 shall be amended as follows: 
 
“The City hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed $70,500 for 
all work set forth in Exhibit A, the Proposal to Develop an Addendum to the 
Regional Fire Service Delivery Study, and all associated expenses incurred in 
performing the work.” 
 
With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Professional 
Services Agreement, dated April 19, 2019, remain in force and effect.  
 
The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the Authority. 
 
City of Pinole      Contractor 
      
____________________________  _______________________ 
Michelle Fitzer       
City Manager         
 
Dated: _____________________   Dated: __________________ 
 
Approved as to Form     
        
____________________________ 
Eric S. Casher 
City Attorney 
 
Dated: _____________________  


157 of 170







  
 
 
 
 


  


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT  8A 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
  
SUBJECT: ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 10.78 TO THE PINOLE 


MUNICIPAL  CODE RESTRICTING OVERSIZED VEHICLE 
PARKING ON CITY STREETS 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the City Council introduce and conduct a first reading of an 
ordinance adding Chapter 10.78 to the Pinole Municipal Code restricting oversized 
vehicle parking on city streets in the City of Pinole. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
At its regularly scheduled meeting on Tuesday, September 3, 2019, the City Council 
received a presentation and Staff Report describing the ongoing issue of oversized 
vehicle parking within the City, along with some examples demonstrating how other 
cities have addressed the issue. 
 
In recent months the City has received complaints regarding the parking of 
oversized vehicles and trucks on San Pablo Avenue and other areas of the City.  
Subsequently, the City was notified that a large number of oversized vehicles were 
parking in residential neighborhoods in the City.  These oversized vehicles have 
been moved en masse between various neighborhoods, apparently to avoid 
detection by the City.  In response, the City Council directed staff to investigate and 
make a proposal regarding a Municipal Code amendment to regulate and restrict 
oversized vehicle parking in the City. 
 
The City currently has several restrictions on parking that may be applied to 
oversized vehicles.  Chapter 10.40.040 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code (“PMC”) 
provides that no operator of any vehicle shall stop or park a vehicle under certain 
circumstances, specifically in any area where the parking or stopping of any vehicle 
would constitute a traffic hazard or would endanger life or property.  Chapter 
10.40.040 also restricts stopping and parking at any place within twenty feet of a 
crosswalk at an intersection when such place is indicated by appropriate signs or by 
red paint upon the curb surface. 


158 of 170







City Council Report 
November 5, 2019  2 


 
Chapter 10.40.210 also gives the City traffic engineer the authority to designate no-
stopping zones by placing and maintaining appropriate signs, indicating that stopped 
vehicles are prohibited and the hours and days applicable to this prohibition. 
 
Chapter 10.40.220 explicitly restricts the parking of large vehicles and provides that 
the parking of vehicles six feet or more in height, including any load thereon, within 
one hundred feet of any intersection, may be a hazard to the safe movement of 
vehicular or pedestrian traffic.  It gives the Council further authority to designate, by 
resolution, the specific location and parking prohibitions where the above conditions 
exist.   
 
Chapter 10.40.250 prohibits, where authorized signs are in place giving notice, any 
person from parking or stopping a vehicle in excess of twenty feet in length on any 
street or portion thereof designated by ordinance or resolution of the Council. 
 
Finally, Chapter 8.24 places restrictions on the parking of commercial vehicles and 
oversized motor vehicles in residential areas specifying restrictions on the amount of 
time these vehicles can be parked.  Chapter 8.24 is limited to residential districts as 
defined in the Municipal Code. 
 
On September 3, 2019, City staff presented an overview of current parking 
restrictions in the Municipal Code, along with suggested options for further regulation 
of oversized vehicle parking within the city.   
 
The City Council discussed this matter, and directed the City Attorney and Staff to 
prepare a proposed ordinance further restricting oversized vehicle parking beyond 
what is currently provided for in the Municipal Code. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Contra Costa County Municipal Code section 46-4.003 already prohibits parking or 
stopping any commercial vehicle having a manufacturer’s gross vehicle weight rating 
of 10,000 pounds or more on any street, unless making pickups or deliveries.   
 
The City of Hercules has a similar provision in the Municipal Code, providing that no 
heavy duty commercial vehicle shall be parked for more than three hours unless 
actively loading or unloading material.  (Hercules Municipal Code Section 3-4.1019.)  
Heavy duty commercial vehicle is defined as a vehicle with more than two axles, 
twenty or more feet in length, or more than 6 feet, 8 inches in width. 
 
Finally, the California Vehicle Code provides some explicit authority to cities for the 
passage of ordinances regulating parking on city streets.  Vehicle Code Section 
22507.5 allows local authorities by ordinance or resolution to prohibit or restrict 
parking of vehicles on certain streets between the hours of 2 a.m. and 6 a.m., and 


159 of 170







City Council Report 
November 5, 2019  3 


commercial vehicles having a manufacturer’s gross vehicle weight rating of 10,000 
pounds or more in residential districts. 
 
The proposed ordinance adds to the Pinole Municipal Code a new section restricting 
parking of oversized vehicles on city streets for more than three hours, unless 
actively loading or unloading property.  The proposed ordinance shall not repeal, 
replace, or eliminate any existing Municipal Code sections and shall only apply to 
those areas not already regulated by the Municipal Code.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact related to adoption of this proposed ordinance.  The 
City Council approved a fiscal year budget for Municipal Code updates which will 
cover the cost of preparing the ordinance, and later publication. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – Ordinance  
B – PowerPoint   
 
 


160 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 


1 


ORDINANCE NO. 2019-___ 
 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE  
ADDING CHAPTER 10.78 OF THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE REGARDING THE 


REGULATION OVERSIZED VEHICLE PARKING ON CITY STREETS 
  


 WHEREAS, Vehicle Code section 22507 authorizes the City of Pinole to regulate the 
parking of vehicles on City streets; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the availability of street parking throughout the city is in short supply ; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the safe passage of vehicles on public streets is vital to the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, oversized vehicles parked on City streets make it difficult for drivers to see 
other drivers, bicyclists, and pedestrians; and 
 
 WHEREAS, oversized vehicles take up excess parking spaces on city streets, while also 
creating hazardous driving conditions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to limit parking of oversized vehicles on City streets; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City wishes to provide for limited exceptions to the prohibition on 
oversized vehicles parking in the public right-of-way;  


 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does ordain as follows: 
 


Section 1. Recitals.   
 
The above recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Ordinance. 
 
Section 2. Approval of Amendment. 
 
Section 10.78 is added to the Pinole Municipal Code, as shown in attached Exhibit A, which is 
incorporated herein by reference (deletions in strikethrough; additions in underline).  
 
Section 3. Severability. 
 
If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is 
held invalid, the remainder of this Ordinance, including the application of such part or provision 
to other persons or circumstances shall not be affected thereby and shall continue in full force 
and effect.  To this end, provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The City Council of the City 
of Pinole hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more 
sections, subsections, subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held 
unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable. 
 


161 of 170







ATTACHMENT A 


2 


Section 4. California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”). 
 
The proposed amendments are exempt from CEQA based on the rule set forth in CEQA 
Guidelines Section 15061(b)(3) that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for 
causing a significant effect on the environment.  As a series of text amendments and additions, it 
can be seen with certainty that there is no possibility that the proposed amendments to the 
Municipal Code will have a significant effect on the environment. 
 
Section 5. Effective Date. 
 
In accordance with California Government Code Section 36937, this Ordinance shall take effect 
and be in force on the thirty-first day after adoption. 
 
Section 6. Publication. 
 
Within fifteen (15) days after the passage of this Ordinance the City Clerk shall cause this 
Ordinance or a summary thereof to be published or to be posted in at least three public places in 
the City of Pinole in accordance with the requirements of California Government Code Section 
36933. 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 5th day of November, 2019, by the following vote: 


AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 


 
             
       Peter Murray, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 


162 of 170







10/31/2019


1


Municipal Code Amendment: 
Oversized Vehicle Parking 


Restriction
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney


Background
• City initially received


complaints about
oversized trucks
parked on San Pablo
Ave.


• City Council
requested a staff
report on existing
regulations


Sunnyview Drive at San Pablo Ave.


ATTACHMENT B


163 of 170







10/31/2019


2


Background


• September 3, 2019 City Council Meeting 


– Staff presented on existing ordinances restricting 
parking and gap in ability to enforce parking 
restriction for oversized vehicles.


– Residents spoke about frustration with Got-Junk 
trucks parked on street in front of residence.


– City Council directed staff to draft ordinance.


Proposed Ordinance 
What does Chapter 10.78 do?


Prohibits oversized vehicles from parking on 
city streets for more than 3 hours at a time.


• Defines “oversized vehicle” to include:


• Vehicles more than 7.5 feet tall
• More than 7.5 feet wide
• Exceeding 22 feet in length
• With manufacturer’s gross weight rating 


exceeding 10,000 lbs.


164 of 170







10/31/2019


3


Proposed Ordinance 
What exceptions apply?


• Active loading or unloading


• Parked in connection with 
a service within the same 
block


• Emergency vehicles of any 
kind


Proposed Ordinance 
Chapter 10.78 does not…


• Repeal, replace, or eliminate any existing 
Chapters of the Pinole Municipal Code that 
regulate vehicle parking.


All other Chapters of the Municipal Code are still in 
effect.


165 of 170







10/31/2019


4


Proposed Amendment


Questions and Discussion


Q&A


166 of 170







   


  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 9A 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
COPY: MICHELLE FITZER, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: PROVIDE DIRECTION ON PROCESS AND ACTIVITIES RELATED 


TO BECOMING A CHARTER CITY 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council provide direction on how the City Council 
would like to proceed with activities related to becoming a charter city, in particular, 
what process the City Council wants to use for developing a proposed charter.   
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Cities in California are organized as either general law cities or charter cities. 
General law cities derive their powers from general laws enacted by the Legislature, 
while charter cities derive their powers from the California Constitution and their own 
charters.  Thus, general law cities are bound by the state’s general laws.  In 
contrast, the “home rule provision” of the California Constitution provides that charter 
cities have full authority over municipal affairs, and are only subject to laws 
regarding matters of statewide concern. A significant authority possessed by charter 
cities is the authority to impose a real property transfer tax (“RPTT”) at an increased 
rate. Becoming a charter city requires approval by a majority of voters, as does any 
increase in the RPTT. 
 
The City of Pinole is currently a general law city. At the City Council’s meeting on 
March 19, 2019, the City Attorney’s Office provided a general overview of the nature 
of charter cities and the process for becoming a charter city. The Council expressed 
interest in continuing to consider becoming a charter city, and directed that the 
matter be brought back for further discussion in the future.  
 
DISCUSSION 
 
A. Charter City vs. General Law City  
 
A general law city has the authority to act locally, but its acts must be consistent with 
all general laws adopted by the Legislature.  In contrast, a charter city is only 
required to act consistent with state laws regarding matters of statewide concern.  A 


167 of 170







City Council Report 9A 
November 5, 2019 


charter city may use its “home rule” authority to adopt laws regarding “municipal 
affairs” that vary from state laws. A city’s charter defines the structure of the city’s 
government and the scope of a city’s authority over municipal affairs. Some cities 
have very detailed charters, while other cities have charters that are limited in scope. 
Some charters specify that the city may exercise all powers a charter city has unless 
a power is expressly excluded by the charter, while other charters specify that a city 
may only authorize a power if expressly authorized by the charter. A city’s charter 
must be approved by the voters, as must any amendment to the charter.  
 
There is no constitutional or statutory “list” of municipal affairs.  Courts, not the 
Legislature, decide on a case-by-case basis what constitutes a municipal affair. 
However, what constitutes a municipal affair can change over time with changes in 
case law.  Areas that the courts have said constitute municipal affairs include: the 
form of city government; local elections, including qualifications for office and public 
funding of campaigns; some aspects of zoning and land use; the process of 
contracting for public works; and the scope of authority related to fines, taxes and 
assessments.   
 
A significant authority possessed by charter cities is the authority to impose a real 
property transfer tax (“RPTT”) at an increased rate.  A RPTT is a tax imposed on the 
deed, instrument, or writing by which interests in real property are transferred. Under 
the California Revenue and Taxation Code, general law cities may impose a RPTT 
of no more than $.55 per $1,000 of value on the property transferred (the County 
may also impose a RPTT equal to this rate).  Pinole currently has a RPTT of the 
maximum allowed for general law cities of $0.55 per $1,000 of value.  
 
Charter law cities are not subject to state law regarding RPTTs because RPTTs are 
deemed municipal affairs.  As a result, charter cities may impose RPTTs at a rate 
higher than the maximum statutory rate of $0.055 per $1,000.   
 
Below is a chart of the base RPTT rates applied in neighboring charter cities.  
 
City Tax (per thousand dollars) 
Alameda $12.00 
Albany $11.50 
Berkeley $15.00 
El Cerrito 12.00 
Emeryville $12.00 
Oakland $15.00 
Piedmont $13.00 
Richmond $7.00 
Median 12.00 
 
Over the last 10 years, Pinole has received an average of $71,754 from the RPTT, 
with a low of $44,699 in 2009-10 and a high of $98,593 in 2016-17. Adjusting the 
RPTT rate to $12 per $1,000 would have produced a 10-year average of 


168 of 170







City Council Report 9A 
November 5, 2019 


$1,565,543, with a low of $975,251 in 2009-10. The City can choose to adopt tiered 
RPTT rates, with higher rates for property valued at over a certain amount, and 
provide RPTT rebates for certain improvements performed by the property owner 
prior to sale. Under state law and the California Constitution, cities cannot impose, 
increase or extend any tax unless the tax is approved by the voters. Accordingly, the 
increased RPTT would require a vote of the electorate. 
 
B.  Process of Becoming Charter City  
 
 Becoming a charter city requires approval by a majority of voters.  The City 
Council may, on its own motion, propose a new charter and submit it directly to the 
voters for approval at the next established statewide general election.  The City 
Council must vote to submit the proposed charter to the voters at least 88 days 
before the election.  Prior to approving submission of the charter to the voters, the 
City Council must hold at least two public hearings on the proposal of the charter 
and the content of the charter. There are special noticing requirements for these 
hearings. In order for the City Council to place a charter measure on the ballot for 
November 3, 2020, the City would need to hold the first public hearing on a 
proposed charter at the first meeting in May 2020. 
 
A proposed charter may be developed in any of the following ways:  
 
 1. Council Developed 
  
 The City Council can develop the proposed charter itself and then submit it to 
the voters for consideration. This could be done either through a special meeting or 
through workshops prior to the start of regular council meetings.  
 
 2. Council Subcommittee Developed 
 
 The City Council can appoint a subcommittee of 2 Councilmembers to draft a 
proposed charter. The Council can appoint a subcommittee at an upcoming meeting, 
and then the subcommittee will likely need to meet 2-3 times.   
 
 3. Community Committee Developed 
 
 The City Council can appoint a larger community committee consisting of up 
to 2 Councilmembers and members of the community to draft a proposed charter. In 
creating the subcommittee, the City Council can choose the number of members 
and decide whether there should be any special requirements regarding the makeup 
of the committee. For example, some cities have decided that one member of the 
committee should be an employee representative.  If the Council desires to appoint 
a committee, staff can prepare a proposed process for selecting the committee to be 
approved at an upcoming meeting. The recruitment and application process will 
likely take an additional few weeks before the Council will be able to formally appoint 
the committee. The community committee will likely need to meet 3-5 times   
 


169 of 170







City Council Report 9A 
November 5, 2019 


Regardless of what method the Council uses to develop a draft charter, the 
proposed charter must be approved by the City Council before it is submitted to the 
voters. The Council will have the opportunity at that time to make any changes to the 
proposed charter, if desired. Staff, including the City Attorney’s Office, will assist the 
Council and/or any appointed committee in preparing the proposed charter. 
 
C.  Polling  
 
Most local jurisdictions that have become a charter city recently have conducted 
polling to gauge community interest before placing the measure on the ballot. The 
City Council can direct staff to retain a pollster to conduct polling regarding a 
potential charter city measure. This polling can be done now, or later once the 
content of the proposed charter is established. In addition, because becoming a 
charter city is a complicated issue that can easily cause confusion, many other 
jurisdictions have retained communications professionals to help explain to the 
public what becoming a charter city entails. At the City Council’s direction, a 
communications consultant can be retained later in the process.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
If the City Council decides to proceed with pursuing a measure to become a charter 
city, there will be a fiscal impact related to preparing a proposed charter and 
undertaking the process to place the measure on the ballot. The exact amount of the 
impact will depend on what process is used for preparing the draft charter. Any 
process will involve staff time, including the City Attorney’s Office. In addition, there 
will be costs to place the measure on the ballot. If an increased RPTT is approved 
by the voters as part of a charter city measure, the additional revenue from the first 
year of the increased RPTT will greatly exceed these costs. However, it is uncertain 
whether voters will approve an increased RPTT.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
 
 


 


170 of 170





		2019-11-05

		11.05.19 Appeal Packet

		Staff Report 890 San Pablo Appeal - FINAL

		DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS



		FROM: JUSTIN SHIU, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS

		 The project is a light industrial use on a site designated Service Sub Area (SSA) in the General Plan. The SSA designation within the San Pablo Avenue area is intended to “preserve land for manufacturing and industrial uses, particularly ‘green indu...





		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENT(S):





		Attachment A - Resolution 890 San Pablo Appeal - FINAL

		Attachment B - PC Staff Report 8.26. 19

		Attachment C - Draft PC Minutes 8-26-19

		Attachment D - Appeal Statement



		11.05.19 REGULAR PACKET

		6B-2

		6B-3

		7A

		7A1

		7B

		7C

		SB2 Grant

		DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		RECOMMENDATION

		BACKGROUND

		ATTACHMENTS



		SB2 Grant Resolution

		CC Report Attachment Planning-Grant Application only



		7D

		Park Grant Staff Report

		DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		Park Grant Reso

		RESOLUTION NO. 2019-XX



		Park Grant Per_Capita_Program_Procedural_Guide



		7E

		4LEaf 11052019 Amendment

		DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019

		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS

		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS



		4LEAF 112019 funding RESO

		4Leaf 11052019 Task Order Amendment



		7F

		Mgroup 11052019 Amendment

		DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019

		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS

		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS



		m Group 112019 funding RESO

		M group 11052019 Task Order Amendment



		7G

		SR Garbage Liens SR 11.05.19

		Garbage Liens Reso 11.05.19

		RESOLUTION NO. 2019-___





		7H

		City Council_Revised Measure S 2014 Five-Year Plan REVISED 11-5-19

		MS 2014 Plan Reso REVISED 11-5-19

		Measure S 2014 5 Year Projection REVISED for Council 2019-20 - 2023-24 11-5-19

		Measure S 2014 Plan_REV_9-17-19





		7I

		ESCI Consulting Contract Amendment for Fire Study Report

		DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		ESCI Consulting Contract Amendment Reso

		RESOLUTION NO. 2019-



		Pinole Regional Fire Service Study- Amendment

		ESCI Consulting Contract Amendment doc



		8A

		SR 8A

		DATE: NOVEMBER 5, 2019

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS



		FROM: ERIC S. CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY

		SUBJECT: ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 10.78 TO THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL  CODE RESTRICTING OVERSIZED VEHICLE PARKING ON CITY STREETS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		FISCAL IMPACT



		Resolution Oversized Vehicle Parking Ordinance

		PPT Presentation Oversized Vehicles



		9A





		Button1: 






